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Chairman’s Statement

EFRHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the annual report of China
Sandi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2023 (the “reporting period” or the “Year” or
“2023").

RESULTS

For the Year, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately RMB3,302.8 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 4.2% as compared with the year ended
31 December 2022 (the “previous reporting period” or
the “Previous Year” or “2022"). The gross profit for the
Year was approximately RMB509.9 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 46.7% as compared with
the Previous Year. The loss attributable to the owners of
the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB464.6 million. Basic losses per share was RMB9.13
cents (2022: earnings per share of RMB0.83 cents). The
contracted property sales of the Group for the Year was
approximately RMB842.1 million with contracted gross floor
area ("GFA") of approximately 92,601 square meters (“sq.
m."), representing a decrease of approximately 63.0% in
contracted sales and approximately 55.8% in contracted GFA
as compared with the Previous Year.

REVIEW OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

In 2023, the relaxation of housing policies has provided
a short-term impetus. However, due to the impact of
macroeconomic and the event risks by real estate enterprises,
the confidence of buyers has not been fully restored, and
the effect of policies remains to be observed. According
to the data from the National Bureau of Statistics, from
January to December 2023, the national sales area of
commercial properties was approximately 1,117.35 million
sg.m., decreased by approximately 8.5% as compared with
the same period last year; the sales amount of commercial
properties was approximately RMB11,662.2 billion, decreased
by approximately 6.5% as compared with the same period
last year.

Under the continuous downturn of the real estate market,
the Group adhered to the development keynote of seeking
progress in a stable manner, ensuring the development
and delivery of projects, proper cash flow management
and consolidation of strategic layout advantages to form a
virtuous cycle.
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PROSPECTS

The main macroeconomic theme for China in 2024 will be

“full recovery”; 2023 was the first year of recovery from
the epidemic, 2024 will be a year of continued recovery,
and will see a shift to “full recovery”. In respect of the real
estate market, policies to solve the financing difficulties of
real estate enterprises, such as the financing “white list” and
“three no less than” have been implemented successively,
the reasonable financing needs of real estate enterprises have
been basically satisfied, and the confidence of high-quality
real estate enterprises has been gradually restored.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our valued
customers, suppliers and business associates for their
invaluable contributions and support. | also want to express
my gratitude to our management team and all staff of the
Group for their hard work during the Year. Last but not least,
I am most grateful to our shareholders for their continuous
support and confidence.

Guo Jiadi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENW®RR DN

SANDI IN CHINA —HEPEH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total revenue for the reporting period was
approximately RMB3,302.8 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 4.2% as compared with
approximately RMB3,449.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Gross profit for the reporting period was approximately
RMB509.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 46.7% as compared with approximately
RMB957.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Loss for the reporting period was approximately
RMB422.4 million, as compared to profit for the year
ended 31 December 2022 of approximately RMB14.3
million.

Loss attributable to owners for the reporting period was
approximately RMB464.6 million as compared to profit
attributable to owners for the year ended 31 December
2022 of approximately RMB42.1 million.

Basic losses per share was RMB9.13 cents (2022:
earnings per share of RMB0.83 cents).

Contracted sales amount of the Group for the reporting
period amounted to approximately RMB842.1 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 63.0% as
compared with approximately RMB2,277.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

GFA was approximately 92,601 square meters (“sq.m.”)
for the reporting period, representing a decrease of
approximately 55.8% as compared with approximately
209,343 sg.m. for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the reporting period (2022: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in property development,
and holding of property for investment and rental purpose.

Property development

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 14 property
projects under development which are situated in different
cities in the PRC. Key cities include Shanghai, Fuzhou, Xi‘an,
Baoji and Hangzhou. The Group primarily focuses on the
development of residential properties, as well as residential
and commercial complex properties, product types including
apartments, offices, retail shops, villas, etc.

Contracted property sales

During the reporting period, the Group achieved contracted
sales of approximately RMB842.1 million with contracted
GFA of approximately 92,601 sq.m., representing a decrease
of 63.0% in contracted sales and 55.8% in contracted GFA
in comparison with the year ended 31 December 2022. The
decrease in contracted sales is mainly influenced by the
depressed real estate sales environment in 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENW®RR DN

The table below illustrates the contracted sales (stated before TRIRAEBFRREHAN S L EES
the deduction of applicable taxes) achieved by the Group for (M EARER) :
the reporting period:

Average Percentage

price of of total

Contracted Contracted contracted contracted Group

Property projects Type sales amount sales area sales  sales amount interest
BHHE BHHE BHHE
MEEH il BHHEE miE THYERE HEEIM FEEER
RMB'000 sq.m. RMB/sq.m. % %

ANREFT FiHK NRE/ FrK % %
Shanghai
L
Sandi Manhattan Commercial 161,191 8,573.36 18,801.39 19.1 100
ZHRERE mE
Zhejiang Province
WiIg
Sandi Yasong Meizhu Residential 126,318 9,214.34 13,708.87 15.0 100
“HEEEE €
Shaanxi Province
BE4
Sandi Bahe Yihao Residential 97,703 5,717.61 17,088.05 116 70
ZHBIEYR e
Sandi Century New City Residential/Commercial 69,639 5,525.15 12,604.06 8.3 100
Z FE/ %
Sandi Jinyu Gaoxin Residential 52,394 14,178.97 3,695.16 6.2 100
S kAo t=t =3
Sandi Weinan Yunding Fengdan Residential/Commercial 25,681 8,327.21 3,083.95 3.0 100
ZHEREREA e/ mE
Sandi Xi'an Qujiang Fengdan Commercial 25,722 6,197.14 4,150.69 3.1 100
iR [GE

REZAZKRARAE 2023FH 9



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

Average Percentage

price of of total
Contracted Contracted contracted contracted Group
Property projects Type sales amount sales area sales  sales amount interest
BHHE BHHE BHHE
ESELE! =i BHHER i FHEE HAEAIHM KAREER
RMB'000 5g.m. RMBI/sq.m. % %
ANEEFT FER NRE/FHH % %
Fujian Province
BEE
Sandi Yungitai Residential 130,337 13,944.59 9,346.78 15.5 51
CHEER =z
Others Residential/Commercial 153,160 20,922.97 7,320.18 18.2
Eih e/ m%
Total 842,145 92,601.34 9,094.31 100.0
@zt
Attributable to the Group 764,042 83,964.79
AEEELR
Notes: Hiat -

(a) Contracted sales and the calculation of average selling price (@) ABHHESELTHEENITERER

are based on the sales revenue before the deduction of RN ER B ER L H MM inFE
business/value-added tax and other surcharges/taxes. ZHEW S BRERTHE -

(b) Contracted sales and GFA attributable to the car parking b) BEANEBEMMANEEBENEEER

spaces are excluded in the contracted GFA and average selling BIrEREAHEEREZEAMBLTEY
price calculation. EEHEh o

1 0 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN
Property under development BEHBYE
The table below summarises the major property development TEHMARAERR _ZE-_=F+=A8
projects of the Group as at 31 December 2023: =T BIZEXEYEERIER
Completed
Bxl
Expected Saleable GFA Planned GFA
completion delivered/ GFA available ~ GFA under for future Group's
Property projects dates Site area pre-sold for sale development development interest
BRf/ ARBRE
st BRETHE AHEE BR® it 8 rERE
NXER ZIAH IHER AREER ARFER AREER 4REER i
sg.m. sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. %

FrA F FrA FrA FHHA

R

Shaanxi Province

BREE

Sandi Century New City 2024 169,923 1,103,231 71,090 62,659 - 100
=it i —E-mE

Sandi Jinyu Gaoxin 2024 65,157 94,563 1,474 105,114 - 100
ZRtHeT —E-NE

Sandi Yunding Fengdan 2024 52,870 42,848 - 87,832 - 100
ZHRERRES —E-mE

Sandi Bahe Yihao 2024 77,018 - - 235,433 - 70
SHETER ZEIQEE

Sandi Jinyunfu 2024 40,592 - - 77,331 - 51
ZHBER e a2

Fujian Province

REE

Sandi Jiangshan Waterfront 2024 310,176 10,525 - 215,010 - 100
SRR ZEIEE

Sandi Xishanyuan 2024 177,010 - - 96,449 - 100
ZHELR “EoME

REZAZKRARAE 2023FH 1 1
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and Analysis

== =4 A aN
EEERN@wmR DM
Completed
BxI
Expected Saleable GFA Planned GFA
completion delivered/ GFA available  GFA under  for future Group's
Property projects dates Site area pre-sold for sale development development interest
ERH/ ARERE
Bt RETHE AHHE BE® it 8 rEE
ESELC ZIAH tHER AREER AREER ABREER 4REER B
sq.m. sg.m. sq.m. sq.m. sq.m. %
PR FHK FIK FI FIR %
Sandi Yasong Fengdan Garden 2024 38,539 - - 39,825 - 100
SEEEEATEE it S 112
Sandi Yungitai 2024 60,928 - - 96,879 - 51
“HEER “EomE
Sandi Jinyu Yunjing 2024 29,332 - - 67,193 - 100
SHENER o 11:2
Sandi Jinyu Yunyue 2024 17,386 - - 15,383 - 100
ZReHEH 112
Zhejiang Province
pIg)
Sandi Fengdan Yaju 2023 27,491 54,756 1,167 - - 100
ZHEARE —F-cf
Sandi Yasong Meizhu 2024 37,252 - - 66,090 - 100
CHEEERE “E-ME
Shanghai
L
Sandi Manhattan 2024 104,251 155,128 56,499 120,280 - 100
“HERE kot 11:2
Total 1207925 1,461,051 129,063 1,285,478 -
&zt
Attributable to the Group 1,135,075 1,461,051 129,063 1,129,485 -
AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The table above includes properties for which the Group has
obtained the relevant land use rights certificate(s) but has
not obtained the requisite construction permits or the Group
has received the confirmation letter(s) on bidding of granting
land use rights but is in progress to obtain the land use
right certificate(s). The figures for “GFA available for sale”,
“GFA under development” and “Planned GFA for future
development” are based on figures provided in the relevant
governmental documents, such as the property ownership
certificates, the construction work planning permits, the
pre-sale permits, the construction land planning permits or the
land use rights certificate. The categories of information are
based on our internal records.

The figures of “Saleable GFA pre-sold” and “GFA available for
sale” include saleable GFA of car parks spaces; while figures
of “GFA under development” and “Planned GFA for future
development” also include non-saleable GFA such as ancillary
area.

“GFA available for sale”, “GFA under development” and
“Planned GFA for future development” are derived from the
Group's internal records and estimates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

The following section provides further details of major
ongoing projects of the Group.

Shaanxi Province
Sandi Bahe Yihao

Sandi Bahe Yihao (“Bahe Yihao") project is located in Bagiao
District, Xi'an, north of Xiangyun Road and east of Ba Liu
Yi Road. The project is adjacent to the Ba River Ecological
Wetland Park, occupies the rare river view resources of the
Bahe River, and has an excellent ecological environment in
Xi'an.

Bahe Yihao is comparable to New York’s ONE and London’s
One Hyde Park, and is a top-level project built by China
Sandi in accordance with the concept of “international vision
and quality home building”. The project occupies an area
of about 19 acres, with a total GFA of 243,363 sq.m., a
floor area ratio of 2.21, and a green area ratio of 35%. The
project makes full use of the landscape of the Bahe River
to create a high-end improvement quality development in
the Bahe River New Area. The project plans five high-rise
buildings (24-25 floors), five small high-rise buildings (15-
16 floors) and eight multi-storey buildings (5-9 floors) along
the Ba River, covering a full range of dwelling choices such
as pied-a-terre, houses, and large bungalows, making the
project the only high-end quality architectural complex with a
full range of dwelling choices along the Ba River. Pre-sale of
the project commenced in 2022. During the period from the
sales commencement date to 31 December 2023, contracted
sales amounted to approximately RMB407.5 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Zhejiang Province

Sandi Yasong Meizhu

Sandi Yasong Meizhu (“Yasong Meizhu”) is located in
Qiantang New District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province.
Qiantang New District is one of the rapidly developing
areas in Hangzhou City, which is a “Pudong New Area” of
Hangzhou planned by the government. Yasong Meizhu is
approximately 12 away kilometers away from Hangzhou
Xiaoshan Airport, with two metro lines under construction
and a high-speed railway station in the planning stage
nearby. In addition, there are national wetland park,
commercial areas, school and hospital in the vicinity of
Yasong Meizhu. Yasong Meizhu is a privileged quality
project of the Group, and is planned to be developed into 11
high-rise apartment buildings. The contracted sales amount
of approximately RMB600.9 million were recorded during the
period from the pre-sales date up to 31 December 2023.

Shanghai

Sandi Manhattan

Shanghai Sandi Manhattan project (“Sandi Manhattan”) is
a major project of the Group in Shanghai. It is situated in
the prime location of Shanghai Songjiang District, Songjiang
New Town International Ecology Business District with a site
area of approximately 104,251 sq.m.. Sandi Manhattan is a
mixed-use development complex, including offices, shopping
malls and hotels. Hyatt Regency Shanghai Songjiang (“Hyatt
Regency”) and Shanghai Sandi Xintiandi (“Sandi Xintiandi”),
the projects of Sandi Manhattan, opened in July and
December 2021, respectively. Hyatt Regency, an international
5-star hotel, belongs to one of the major investment
properties of the Group in Sandi Manhattan. Hyatt Regency is
located at the core area of Songjiang New Town International
Ecology Business District and provides privileged services to
guests. It provides multi-functional spaces of approximately
1,900 sq.m. and 256 guestrooms, including 18 suites, with
floor-to-ceiling views of Wulong Lake, gardens or Ecology
Business District skyline. Sandi Xintiandi is also located at
the core area of Songjiang New Town International Ecology
Business District. It is the first ecology semi-open commercial
complex project, with approximately 170,000 sg.m. GFA.
The contracted sales amount of approximately RMB2,074.1
million were recorded during the period from the pre-sales
date up to 31 December 2023.
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Land bank replenishment

The Group's strategy is to maintain the sufficiency of land
bank portfolio to support the Group’s own development
pipeline for the next few years. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group had a quality land bank amounting to a total GFA
of approximately 300,000 sg.m., of which approximately
300,000 sg.m. were attributable to the owners of the
Company.

The table below summarises the landbank by location as at
31 December 2023:

THEEFT
AEEMNRBEABRIUIFAEE
AKEFERRZ T HHEHEHEE RN -F
=+ -A=+—H AEEHEER
7 SETH 8 49300,000F KM B & + b
1% - H A 49300,000F 75 K57 B R AR A
HWEA -

TR -—_E-_=F#+—-_HA=+—8
R LR &l D A R

Total GFA Attributable GFA

Land bank by location Rib BB oW L bR REEHEE EiEBEEEEE

(‘000 sq.m.) (000 sq.m.)

(FF5K) (FF52K)

Shanghai lapis! 179 179

Zhejiang Province T 121 121

Total st 300 300
Property Investment MELRE

During the reporting period, the Group recognised rental
income and property management and related fee income
of approximately RMB131.1 million (2022: approximately
RMB152.4 million), which was mainly generated by two
furniture malls situated in Fuzhou and Baoji. The Group's
investment properties also include hotels, commercial and
office premises, all of which are all located in the PRC and
generated a stable income stream to the Group.
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Set out below are the major investment properties held by

the Group as at 31 December 2023:

TRHFIAKEER_-_FT_=F+_H
ST -HRBAZIBEREME:

Existing/  Approximate Group’s
Location Intended use(s) GFA interest
BE/ B4
A=+ RER®Z HEEEE ZTEERNZ
sg.m. %
FI K %
Completed investment properties
ERIREME
Fujian Province
BEa
Sandi Furniture Plaza, No. 173 Gongye Road, Yizhou Street, Shopping Mall 113,252 100
Taijiang District, Fuzhou City
BNMAIRBENTEIERITBR-EREES BYES
Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu Square Zone B, Fuxia Road, Commercial/Hotel 48,713 100
Cangshan District, Fuzhou City
&N A L [ AR 3R R B B FE ) = i Bl R B IEBIE EEYRLYS
Various blocks, Sandi Kaixuan Fengdan, No. 202 Minjiang Commercial/Hotel 13,477 100
Avenue, Cangshan District, Fuzhou City
BN A LR KE20258 = @ e il /45 T 1% mE/BE
Shaanxi Province
b Yig)
Red Star Macalline, Block 196, No. 8 Bao Guo Road, Jin Tai Shopping Mall 63,643 100
District, Baoji City
BT AR ETIRSEr 1961841 2 E 55 BYES
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and Analysis

Existing/  Approximate Group's
Location Intended use(s) GFA interest
BE/ )
wE BRERRE HWEZEEE AEEANZF
sg.m. %
F 5K %
Sandi Plaza, Block 186, No. 8 Bao Guo Road, Jin Tai District, Shopping Mall 63,125 100
Baoji City
EEMEARER KM 180IE =S B s
Ramada Hotel Block No. 184, No. 8 Bao Guo Road, Jintai District, Hotel 15,181 100
Baoji City
BEETMLARERKSH I 184EE X AL i
Pesht Boutique, Block No. 25, No. 8 Bao Guo Road, Jintai Hotel 12,248 100
District, Baoji City
EETL AR B IKSTEFL 250 M AT+ B /s BIE
Jinjiang Inn, Block No. 18, No. 8 Bao Guo Road, Jintai District, Hotel 7,094 100
Baoji City
BEEMSARERIKSHFISIER T ZEBE i
Shanghai
&
Lot N5, No. 11 Zhongshan Street Neighbourhood, Songjiang Commercial/Hotel 59,701 100
District
TR P LA B 1 1 A NS 1R mE/BE
Lot N11, No. 11 Zhongshan Street Neighbourhood, Songjiang Commercial 26,071 100
District
IEHR LB EHIENT R GRS
Investment properties under construction
ERREWE
Fujian Province
BEE
Tang Kou, Xi Nan Village, Ge Ling Town, Yongtai County, Hotel 89,668 100
Fuzhou City
BMNTARGEEREZEN SN BIE
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Existing/  Approximate Group’s
Location Intended use(s) GFA interest
RnE/ B
(VA=+ BERRZ REEEE AEERNEZE
sg.m. %
FHR %
Shanghai
L&
Lot N6, No. 11 Zhongshan Street Neighbourhood, Songjiang Commercial/Hotel 122,749 100
District
MOLER P LB NG IR B/ BE
Zhejiang Province
Northwest of Weiliu Road and Jingwu Road, Qiantang New Residential 16,356 100
District, Hangzhou City
MMTEERRENKELARIXAOEILA F=
Northeast of Jingsi Road and Changfeng Road, Qiantang New Residential 8,204 100
District, Hangzhou City
MMNTmEETRLHEERRBEIX AR A F=x

RE=ZAZRARALT
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OUTLOOK

In 2024, China’s economy will accelerate the pace of
recovery, active fiscal policies will increase its effectiveness,
and the state will further improve the confidence and
expectation of the market entities. The country insists
on the direction of “houses are for living in and not for
speculative investment”. It is also expected that policies in
core second-tier cities will be fully loosened, while policies in
first-tier cities will have great potential for optimisation with
continuous adjustment, such as the lowering interest rate of
loans, lowering the down payment ratio and optimisation of
restricted purchase. Also the comprehensive optimisation of
preventive measures will further drive the economic recovery
in 2024. It is believed that the real estate market has reached
the bottom. With the continued launch of stimulus policies,
the industry will see the silver lining.

The Group will keep abreast of policy changes, grasp changes
in the market cycle and adjust its marketing strategies to
promote sales returns. We focus on accelerating sales,
ensuring delivery and securing cash flow, and maintaining a
steady and sustainable growth with like-minded partners and
hardworking employees.

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue is primarily derived from property sales,
which contributed approximately 96.0% of the revenue
for the reporting period. The table below sets forth the
breakdown of the Group’s revenue by operating segment as
indicated:

For the year ended
31 December 2023

RE

— = —

“EoMF AEKEMMRERESX
BEMBEBRMEEY BRGE—F
RADSEIBELNESY - BRBRFF
FRRAKEN  TEARYE B ENL
B A0 Z R T A R S 2 RR
m—RUHBRRABEANELE
WA R EERFE - REEN
O RBIERES - R - 2mELH&R
BB — B T ELEER
HEFMETSH D RIA - BEE RB KK
BN HE L - TR RDRER S -

AEEEREBRREEBR  BEMSH
ARSI BAELHRE RABEED
o HPIFERIMRFE -~ FER M S T
RESR LRERESNEIEBRHER
HENBTARRERAIFEERR -

EBEEENVKEE

PN

REBZRAZTERENEHES Bk
LEH 7 WA #)96.0% ° RS HIIEFTRAS
BOEE D 2 ANEE W AR

For the year ended
31 December 2022

BE-E=-= HE_ZT_—
+t=ZA=+—BLFEE +-A=+—HILFE
RMB’'000 % RMB’000 %
ARMTF T % ANERETFT %
Property development #%3%RE 3,171,629 96.0 3,296,618 95.6
Property investment MERE 131,126 4.0 152,350 4.4
3,302,755 100 3,448,968 100
Revenue from property sales LEX - -1/ ON

The Group’s revenue from property sales decreased to
approximately RMB3,171.6 million for the reporting period
(2022: approximately RMB3,296.6 million).
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The table below summarises the revenue from property sales

for the reporting period:

TERBAREHRAZYWERHERA

Average Percentage
Sales selling of total
Property projects Type revenue GFA price amount
HRSH
MEER il HEBA BEEHEE TYER ZHEAE
RMB’000 5q.m. RMB/sq.m. %
AEBETT FHK AEE %
F K
Zhejiang Province
WL
Sandi Fengdan Yaju Residential 738,903 53,589 13,788 23.3
AR Fx
Fujian Province
BEE
Sandi Yasong Fengdan Residential/Commercial 704,155 60,116 11,713 22.2
=REaA EE/HE
Sandi Yungu Fengdan Residential/Commercial 503,405 52,694 9,553 15.9
ZHEAERN FE/ %
Sandi Yazhu Fengdan Residential 136,635 9,865 13,851 43
Sk =
Shaanxi Province
REE
Sandi Jinyunfu Residential 329,228 53,097 6,201 10.4
ZHRERM Fx
Sandi Century New City Residential/Commercial 141,142 21,808 6,472 45
Z Bt e EE /Mm%
Sandi Yunding Fengdan Residential 169,937 43,298 3,925 5.4
ZAZETER A Fx
Shanghai
i<}
Sandi Manhattan Commercial 333,615 10,861 30,716 10.5
ZHERE BE
Others 114,609 8,569 13,375 3.6
Hith
Total 3,171,629 313,897 10,104 100.0
st

RE=ZAZRARALT
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Notes:

Sales revenue amount and the calculation of average price are
based on the sales revenue after the deduction of business/
value-added tax and other surcharges/taxes.

ii. GFA and sales revenue attributable to the car parking spaces
are excluded in the GFA sold and the average selling price
calculation.

Revenue from property investment

Revenue from property investment including rental income
and property management and related fee income amounted
to approximately RMB131.1 million for the reporting period
(2022: approximately RMB152.4 million), which was derived
from the Group’s investment properties situated in the
PRC, including shopping malls, commercial buildings and
kindergartens.

Cost of properties sales

The Group's cost of properties sales increased to
approximately RMB2,790.9 million for the reporting period
(2022: approximately RMB2,484.9 million). The increase
was primarily attributable to the increase in the cost of
construction materials during the reporting period as
compared with 2022, which led to the increase in the cost of
properties sales.

Write-down of inventories of properties

For the year ended 31 December 2023, write-down of
completed properties held for sale to net realisable value of
approximately RMB37,252,000 (2022: nil) was recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, write-down of
properties under development for sale to net realisable value
of approximately RMB261,198,000 (2022: nil) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

These write-down of properties due to the the impact of
mainland real estate market, which resulted in the expected
net realizable value being lower than the carrying value.

2 2 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Change in fair value on investment properties and
upon transfer to investment properties

For the reporting period, the Group recognised a net
fair value loss of approximately RMB394.7 million on its
investment properties (2022: approximately RMB7.1 million).
The increase in net fair value loss on the Group’s investment
properties was a result of the macro-control measures
on industry and the continued decline in the market
environment of the real estate industry in the PRC.

Change in fair value of derivative components of
convertible bonds

During the reporting period, the Group recognised a
fair value gain of approximately RMB6.3 million (2022:
approximately RMB101.4 million) on the derivative
components of the convertible bonds with principal amount
of HK$500 million, issued to Primary Partner International
Limited (“Primary Partner”), which is wholly-owned by
Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”), on 30 January 2019 as the
consideration for acquisition of All Excel Industries Limited.
The derivative component of the convertible bonds
represented the conversion option to convert into shares of
the Company and early redemption option before its maturity
date on 30 January 2024, which were classified as derivative
financial instrument and measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Other losses, net

The Group recognised net other losses of approximately
RMB40.4 million for the reporting period (2022:
approximately RMB38.7 million), which was mainly attributed
to net exchange losses during the Year as mentioned above.

Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses decreased
by approximately RMB115.7 million from approximately
RMB202.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB86.5 million for the reporting period.
Such change was due to less agent fees were incurred as a
result of decrease in contract sales.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by
approximately RMB58.5 million from approximately
RMB125.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB67.2 million for the reporting period.
Such change was due to a decrease in salary expenses as a
result of reduced number of employees.

MIE -\-_J' Af &/-\ *ﬁ'

REVEREZREVWEERZZA
-0
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Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest expenses on banks and other
borrowings, convertible bonds, promissory note, contract
liabilities, amounts due to a related company and lease
liabilities. The finance costs amounted to approximately
RMB130.6 million (2022: approximately RMB117.8 million)
for the reporting period. The increase in finance cost was
attributable to the increase of interest rate of loans.

Income tax credit

Income tax credit mainly comprises the PRC enterprise income
tax and land appreciation tax amounted to approximately
RMB73.2 million for the reporting period (2022: income tax
expense of approximately RMB158.1 million).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB6,047.8 million
denominated in RMB (31 December 2022: approximately
RMB6,720.0 million denominated in RMB) and other
debts comprising convertible bonds, promissory note and
amounts due to related companies in total amount to
approximately RMB1,022.0 million denominate in HK$ and
RMB (31 December 2022: approximately RMB1,164.3 million
denominated in HK$ and RMB). As at 31 December 2023 and
2022, all bank and other borrowings were secured with fixed
interest rate. The bank and other borrowings with maturities
falling due within one year, in the second year, in the third
to the fifth year, over five years amounted to approximately
RMB2,802.9 million, RMB1,896.9 million, RMB559.0 million
and RMB789.0 million, respectively (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB1,933.7 million, RMB2,375.8 million,
RMB1,423.5 million and RMB987 million, respectively).
Further details of the bank and other borrowings, are set out
in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements in this
report.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB148.1 million (31 December
2022: approximately RMB310.9 million) which were mainly
denominated in HK$ and RMB.
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As at 31 December 2023, the gearing ratio for the
Group was approximately 143.2% (31 December 2022:
approximately 149.0%), calculated based on the net debts
(comprising bank and other borrowings and other debts
comprising convertible bonds, promissory note and amounts
due to related companies less cash and cash equivalent)
of approximately RMB6,921.8 million (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB7,562.5 million ) over the total equity
of approximately RMB4,833.2 million (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB5,074.3 million). The debt ratio was
approximately 79.5% (31 December 2022: approximately
80.6%), calculated as total liabilities over total assets of the
Group.

The Group's current available liquidity resources are sufficient
to meet its capital commitments. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group’s net current liabilities amounted to approximately
RMB1,267.2 million (31 December 2022: net current assets
approximately RMB1,542.4 million). The Group’s current
ratio, being percentage of its current assets and its current
liabilities, amounted to approximately 91.10% (31 December
2022: approximately 111.2%).

The Group continued to adopt a prudent funding and
treasury policy to manage its liquidity needs. The objective is
to maintain adequate funds for financing working capital and
capture investment opportunities as and when they become
available. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital structure of the Group and fund raising activities
during the reporting period are summarised as follows:

(i) Bank and other borrowings

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB6,047.8 million
(31 December 2022: approximately RMB6,720.0
million), of which approximately RMB2,802.9 million
are repayable within one year and approximately
RMB3,244.9 million are repayable beyond one year. The
Group's bank and other borrowings bear interest rates
ranging from approximately 2.8% to 10.0% per annum.
All the bank and other borrowings were denominated
in RMB.

MGE ;ﬁmm&/\ﬂf
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(ii) Promissory note

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company
had a 5-year promissory note (the “Promissory Note”)
with principal amount of HK$600 million issued to
Mr. Guo, the chairman of the Board and an executive
Director, with interest to be 3% per annum for the
first and second years after the date of issuance,
4.5% per annum for the third and fourth years after
the date of issuance and 6% per annum for the fifth
year after the date of issuance, with interest payable
annually in arrears and the principal will be repaid when
the Promissory Note falls due on 30 January 2024.
Promissory Note is denominated in HK$. There was no
early redemption of the Promissory Note requested by
the Company or Mr. Guo during the reporting period.

(iii) Convertible bonds

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company had
a 5-year convertible bonds (the “CBs”) with principal
amount of HK$500 million issued to Primary Partner
International Limited (“Primary Partner”),
wholly-owned by Mr. Guo, the chairman of the Board
and an executive Director, with interest to be 1%
per annum payable annually in arrears and carrying a
conversion price of HK$0.412 per conversion share,
with conversion rights to convert into a maximum of

1,213,592,233 shares.

Regarding the CBs and the Promissory Note, the Group
has amended the relevant terms and conditions after the
reporting period. For details, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Significant Events after the Reporting Period”

below.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Except for investment in subsidiaries, there were no
significant investments held by the Group as at 31 December
2023.

The Group disposed of Hanzhong Xu Sandi Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd on 31 October 2023 to an
independent third party at an aggregate consideration
of RMB5,950,000. Save for the disposal as mentioned,
the Group had no other material acquisitions or disposal
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
reporting period.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 30 January 2024, the Company and Primary Partner
entered into a deed of amendment (the “CB Amendment
Deed”) pursuant to which the Company and Primary Partner
have conditionally agreed to amend the terms and conditions
of the CBs to the effect that: (i) the principal amount of the
CBs changed from HK$500,000,000 to HK$300,000,000;
(i) the maturity date changed from 30 January 2024 to
30 January 2029; (iii) the interest rate changed from 1%
per annum to 2% per annum; (iv) a right was granted to
Primary Partner to require the Company to redeem all of
the outstanding CBs; and (v) the conversion price of the
CBs changed from HK$0.412 to HK$0.090 per Conversion
Share. The CB Amendment Deed and the transactions
thereunder were approved by independent Shareholders
on 13 March 2024 and the CB Amendment Deed took
effect retrospectively from 30 January 2024. Save for the
aforesaid amendments, all other terms and conditions of the
CBs remain unchanged. The fair value of the new CBs was
HK$300,000,000 on 30 January 2024.
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EEENWR DN

On 30 January 2024, the Company and Primary Partner
entered into a deed of amendment (the “PN Amendment
Deed"”) pursuant to which the Company and Primary Partner
have agreed to amend the terms of the Promissory Note to
the effect that: (i) the principal amount of the Promissory
Note changed from HK$600,000,000 to HK$800,000,000;
(ii) the maturity date changed from 30 January 2024 to
30 January 2029; (iii) the interest rate remain at 6% per
annum for the sixth to tenth year after 30 January 2019;
and (iv) a right was granted to Primary Partner to require the
Company to redeem all or part of the Promissory Note. The
PN Amendment Deed took effect from the date of the PN
Amendment Deed. Save for the aforesaid amendments, all
other terms of the Promissory Note shall remain unchanged.

Detail of the amendments of terms and conditions of the
CBs and the Promissory Note is set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 30 January 2024 and 13 March 2024
and circular dated 22 February 2024.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had pledged certain
investment properties, properties under development,
land use rights and certain inventories of properties of an
aggregate carrying value of approximately RMB16,240.0
million (31 December 2022: approximately RMB17,756.8
million) together with certain rental proceeds over investment
properties, and shares of certain subsidiaries of the Group to
secure the bank and other facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had entered into agreements with certain banks
to provide guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties. As at
31 December 2023, the Group provided guarantees for
mortgage loans in an amount of approximately RMB3,532.9
million (31 December 2022: approximately RMB4,692.2
million) to banks in respect of such agreements. Certain
subsidiaries of the Group has provided corporate guarantees
of approximately RMB561.0 million (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB872.8 million) to certain financial
institutions in respect of loan facilities granted to certain
companies that were indirectly wholly owned or controlled
by Mr. Guo. In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group
had also provided corporate guarantees amounting to
approximately RMB222.7 million (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB233.6 million) to certain financial
institutions in respect of loan facilities granted to certain
independent third parties during the reporting period.
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COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of investment properties, properties
under development and property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMB985.2 million (31 December
2022: approximately RMB987.1 million).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the business operations in the PRC and
Hong Kong denominated in RMB and HK$, respectively. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
assets and liabilities. The Group will closely monitor its
foreign currency exposure and will consider using hedging
instruments in respect of significant foreign currency
exposure as and when appropriate. As at 31 December
2023, the Group had no investment in any financial
derivatives, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency
swaps, hedging or other financial arrangements for
hedging purposes to reduce any currency risk nor made any
over-the-counter contingent forward transactions.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of
273 employees (31 December 2022: 417 employees) of
which 271 employees (31 December 2022: 415 employees)
were hired in the PRC and 2 employees (31 December
2022: 2 employees) in Hong Kong. Total remuneration
paid to the employees for the reporting period amounted
to approximately RMB53.9 million (2022: approximately
RMB93.2 million). In addition to competitive remuneration
packages offered to the employees, the Group also provides
other benefits including contributions to mandatory provident
fund, as well as group medical and accident insurance.
On-going training sessions were also conducted to enhance
the competitiveness of the Group’s human assets. The
Company also maintains a share option scheme, pursuant
to which share options may be granted to the Directors,
executives and employees of the Company to provide them
with incentives in the growth of the Group.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuation on the Group’s investment properties
located in the PRC as at 31 December 2023 had been
carried out by an independent qualified professional valuer,
Graval Consulting Limited. The property valuation was used
in preparing the annual results. The valuation was based
on income capitalization approach by making reference to
comparable market information as available in the relevant
markets. For investment properties under development, the
valuation has also taken into account the construction costs
expended and to be expended to complete the development.
The Group’s investment properties were valued at
approximately RMB10,233.8 million as at 31 December 2023
(31 December 2022: approximately RMB10,734.3 million). A
net fair value loss of approximately RMB394.7 million (2022:
net fair value loss of approximately RMB7.1 million) was
recognised to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the reporting period.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "“Stock Exchange” and the “Listing
Rules”, respectively) as its code of conduct in respect of the
securities dealing by the Directors. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors in respect of the securities
dealing by the Directors and all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code during the reporting
period.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the reporting period, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise an effective Board, sound internal control,
appropriate independence policy, transparency and
accountability so as to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders.

The Board is committed to comply with the code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) under Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules to the extent that the Directors consider
it to be practical and applicable to the Company. During
the reporting period and up to the date of this report, the
Company has complied with the CG Code except for the
following deviation:

Code Provision C.2.1

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
should be segregated and not be exercised by the same
individual. The chairman is responsible for the corporate
strategic planning and formulation of corporate policies for
the Group, while the chief executive officer is responsible for
overseeing day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

Mr. Guo currently serves as the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”).

Up to date of this report, no individual was appointed as
the chief executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ"). The
day-to-day management of the Group's business is monitored
by the executive Directors and senior management. Given
the size of the Group, the current business operations
and administration have been stable, the Board is of the
view that the current management structure is able to
effectively discharge the duties of both positions. However,
going forward, the Board will review from time to time
and separate the roles of the Chairman and the CEO when
necessary.
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The Company has applied the principles of the CG Code to
its corporate governance structure and practices as described
in this report. The Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than
those in the CG Code. The Board will continue to monitor
and review the Company’s corporate governance practices
in order to ensure that such practices may meet the general
rules and standards as required by the Listing Rules. The
Board believes that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for sustainable growth of
the Group and for benefit of the Group and the Shareholders
as a whole.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board's primary responsibilities include the formulation
of long-term corporate strategies, policy decisions and
overseeing the management of the Group's operations.
In addition, the Board evaluates the performance of the
Group and assesses the achievement of targets periodically
set by the Board. In carrying out its duties and projects,
the Board delegates certain specific considerations to
designated board committees and management task forces.
The daily management, administration and operations of
the Company are delegated to the executive Directors and
senior management and divisional heads. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed by
the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers. All Directors have full and timely
access to all relevant information in discharging their duties,
and in appropriate circumstances are normally granted rights
to seek independent professional advices at the Company’s
expense.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance of skills and experience for effective leadership and
independence in decision making. As at the date of this
report, the Board comprises 6 Directors, whose biographical
details and their relationships are set out in the “Biographical
Details of the Directors of the Company” on pages 62 to
65 to this report. There are 3 executive Directors, namely
Mr. Guo Jiadi, Ms. Amika Lan E Guo and Mr. Wang Chao,
and 3 independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Yee Ping, Michael, Ms. Wong Wai Man and Mr. Lam Wai
Fung, Dominic. Mr. Guo Jiadi serves as the Chairman.
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo is a daughter of Mr. Guo Jiadi. The
Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and
3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of a
sufficient number of independent non-executive Directors
and at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise throughout
the reporting period. The Company has received annual
confirmations from all independent non-executive Directors
that they did not have any businesses or financial interests
with the Group and were independent in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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TERERBSE

In compliance with Rule 3.09D of the revised Listing Rules
which took effect on 31 December 2023, Ms. Wong Wai
Man, who was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 15 June 2023, obtained the legal advice referred
to in Rule 3.09D (the “Legal Advice”) on 18 May 2023, and
Ms. Wong has confirmed that she understood her obligations
as a Director.

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure that
independent views and input are available to the Board, a
summary of which is set out as follows:

1.

In terms of composition of the Board, (i) at least
one-third of its members are independent non-executive
Directors; (i) the Company would receive independence
confirmations from its independent non-executive
Directors annually pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules; and (iii) the Board composition and
the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors are reviewed by the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company
on an annual basis (in particular, for independent
non-executive Directors who have served for more than
nine years).
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2. In terms of conduct of Board proceedings, (i) all
Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are provided with regular updates of the
Group's performance, position and prospects to enable
them to make informed decision; (ii) all members of
the Board may seek independent professional advice
when necessary to perform their responsibilities; (iii) the
Directors shall not vote or be counted in the quorum
on any Board resolution approving any contract,
arrangement or any other proposal concerning a matter
that is significant to the Company’s business in which
such Director or any of his/her close associates has a
material interest, save as otherwise permitted under the
Listing Rules; and (iv) the chairman of the Board shall
meet the independent non-executive Directors at least
once annually.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of
the above mechanisms on an annual basis.

APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION PLANNING
OF DIRECTORS

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing its
composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors;
and monitoring their succession. The Board’s established
policies include procedures for the appointment of Directors
nominated by the Shareholders. The existing Bye-laws of
the Company empower the Board to appoint any person as
Director either as an additional member or to fill a casual
vacancy.

The term of office for each of the executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors is 3 years. The existing
Bye-laws of the Company provide that at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or,
if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every 3 years. A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retire may fill the vacated office.
In addition, all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional Director shall retire in the next annual
general meeting but eligible for re-election.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
in respect of the securities dealing by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors in respect
of the securities dealing by the Directors and all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
during the reporting period.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established 3 Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, each of which is delegated with
specific roles and responsibilities by the Board. All the Board
committees follow the same principles and procedures as
those of the Board. The Board receives the minutes of each
committee on a regular basis, including their decision and
recommendations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”). The Audit Committee currently comprises the
following independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael (Chairman)
Ms. Wong Wai Man
Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic

The chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or
related financial management expertise and members of the
Audit Committee comply with the requirements under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors. The primary responsibilities of the Audit
Committee include the followings:

(@) to review the Company’s financial information
including annual report and half-yearly report and the
appropriateness of any significant financial reporting
judgments contained therein;
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(b) to review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and

() to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures. Further information is disclosed in the
section titled “Risk Management and Internal Controls”
below.

The Company’s results for the reporting period and interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2023 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before the submission to
the Board.

During the reporting period, two meetings had been held
by the Audit Committee. Attendance of each member at the
Audit Committee meeting is set out in the table under the
section headed “Meeting Attendance” below.

Summary of work in 2023

For the reporting period, the Audit Committee has performed
the following:

o reviewed the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 and the related documents, made
recommendations to the Board for approval and
discussed with the management and the external
auditor the accounting policies and practices which
may affect the Group, the report prepared by the
external auditor covering major findings in the course
of the audit and the accounting and financial reporting
matters;

o reviewed the interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2023 and the related
documents, and made recommendations to the Board
for approval;
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i

The

"M\Aﬁﬂ:

reviewed and monitored the Company’s financial
reporting procedures, the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems as well as
the Group’s internal audit function;

reviewed the re-appointment, remuneration and
engagement letter of the Company’s external auditors,
its independence and objectivity, and the effectiveness
of the audit process;

reviewed the appointment of the internal control
consultant;

reviewed the Audit Committee’s independence and
effectiveness in discharging its role and responsibilities,
and its terms of reference; and

reviewed the composition of the Audit Committee.

terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

for inspection on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange's website.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The

Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/

payable to Moore CPA Limited (formerly known as Moore
Stephen CPA Limited) (“Moore”), the external auditor of

the

Company, for the following services provided for the

reporting period.

Nature of services
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1,780
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The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board
that the level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor is reasonable. There has been no major disagreement
between the external auditor and the management of the
Company for the reporting period.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael
Ms. Wong Wai Man

The Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of Directors either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next annual
general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every 3 years and shall be eligible for
re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
suitable qualified candidates and making recommendations
to the Board for consideration. The process of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship includes the
consideration of referrals and the engagement of external
recruitment professionals. The selection criteria is based
mainly on the assessment of their professional qualifications
and experience relevant to the Company’s businesses.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during
the reporting period. Attendance of each member at the
Nomination Committee meeting is set out in the table under
the section headed “Meeting Attendance” below.
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Summary of work in 2023

For the reporting period, the Nomination Committee has
performed the following:

reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

o reviewed the implementation with measurable targets,
progress and effectiveness of the Company’s policy on
board diversity (the “Board Diversity Policy”);

o assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors;

o reviewed appointments or re-appointments of the
Directors;

° reviewed succession planning for Directors;

o nominated Board candidates for election/re-election by
Shareholders at the annual general meeting; and

o reviewed the time required by the Directors and the
evaluation of whether the Directors have devoted
enough time to fulfill their responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available for inspection on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

Summary of Board Diversity Policy, including
measurable objective, monitoring and review of the
Policy

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Company’s Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
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With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
Board’s composition has been disclosed in the Report of the
Directors.

The Board aims to have at least one member of the Board
to be female. As the Board currently has two members who
are female, the Board considers that the objective for gender
diversity has been achieved.

To develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board
to achieve gender diversity, the Company has adopted
relevant hiring policies for considering candidates of senior
management positions which would take into account
diversity perspectives including gender diversity.

As at 31 December 2023, the percentage of male and
female in the workforce (including the senior management)
is 52.2% and 47.8%, respectively. The Company’s
workforce (including its senior management) has achieved
gender diversity between males and females. The Company
will continue to take into account diversity perspectives
including gender diversity in its future hiring to maintain
gender diversity across its workforce (including its senior
management).
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Monitoring and review

The Nomination Committee has monitored the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and there is no
derivation from this Board Diversity Policy for the reporting
period. The Nomination Committee will keep on reviewing
this Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of this Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required,
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

NOMINATION POLICY

A nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) sets out the
selection criteria, procedures and process of appointing
and reappointing a Director. The selection criteria used in
assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, his/
her academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity
and whether he/she can contribute to the diversity of the
Board as detailed in the Policy. The procedures and process
of appointing and reappointing a Director are summarised as
follows:

- nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any
member of the Nomination Committee or the Board;

—  evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all
selection criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy;

- performing due diligence in respect of each candidate
and making recommendation for the Board’s
consideration and approval;

- in case of nomination of an independent non-executive
Director, assessing the candidate’s independence under
the relevant Code Provisions and the Listing Rules;

— where nominating an independent non-executive
Director for election at general meetings, having due
consideration of matters under Code Provision B.3.4;
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— in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors,
reviewing the candidate’s overall contribution and
performance and making recommendations to the
Board and/or the Shareholders for consideration in
connection with his/her re-election at general meetings;
and

— convening a meeting of the Board to consider the
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a
Director.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”). The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises the following independent non-executive
Directors:

Ms. Wong Wai Man (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael
Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendation on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and senior management of
the Company, the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing such policy, and the review of
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management of the Company by reference to
corporate goals and objective resolved by the Board from
time to time. The Remuneration Committee will review and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

The principal elements of the executive Directors’
remuneration package include basic salary, benefits in kind,
discretionary bonus, retirement benefits and participation
in the share option scheme adopted by the Shareholders in
2011. The remuneration packages of the executive Directors
will be proposed by the Chairman of the Group annually for
the review by the Remuneration Committee based on the
following factors:

(a) the executive Director’s responsibilities and contribution;
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(b) the executive Director’s individual performance; and

() performance of the business unit(s) headed by the
executive Director.

The independent non-executive Directors’ remuneration
includes Directors’ fee and participation in the share
option scheme, and subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration Committee. The term
of appointment of the independent non-executive Directors is
three years. Other detailed terms of appointment have been
disclosed in the Report of the Directors and the consolidated
financial statements. The Board’s authority to fix Directors’
remuneration was granted by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during
the reporting period. Attendance of each member at the
Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the table
under the section headed “Meeting Attendance” below.

Summary of work in 2023

For the reporting period, the Remuneration Committee has
performed the following:

reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and senior management remuneration and on the
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

o reviewed the remuneration package of the executive
Directors and senior management;

o reviewed the remuneration of the independent
non-executive Directors; and

o assessed the performance of the Directors.

reviewed the letter of appointment of Ms. Wong Wai Man
as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model under
Code Provision E.1.2(c)(ii) and make recommendations to the
Board for approving in relation to remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.
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The term of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the reporting
period are set out in the note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MEETING ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and as business
need arises. The Company’s memorandum of association and
Bye-laws provide for participation at meetings via telephone
and other electronic means. The Directors have full access
to information on the Group and independent professional
advice at all times whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors.

During the reporting period, four board meetings had been
held for reviewing business performance, considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company,
and other business matters. Attendance of each member at
the board meetings, board committee meetings and general
meetings of the Company, on a named basis, during the
reporting period is set out in the table below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EEERRBAE

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate Exeg5 }E%‘HETF* lHI X EA2ME
governance duties as set out in the terms of reference HlEBESEMSTEE R -
equivalent to Code Provision A.2.1.

Summary of work relating to corporate governance in 2023: TE AT EE RN IIEHNE .

reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and made recommendations to
the Board;

reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

reviewed and monitored the code of conduct and
compliance manual of the employees and Directors;

reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code;
and

endorsed the annual corporate governance report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
covering the liabilities of the Directors and officers that may
arise out the corporate activities which has been complied
with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

EEREABEZER
RAARERHBEERRE  RESRASR
BEELAAEBPRAGELEZEERM
RIZ - WEEBSFREESRTA - RIREHE
E!E TT*AE—J.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial period/year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. Save as
disclosed herein, the Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or condition that might cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue in
business. Accordingly, the Board has prepared the financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis.
The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
Company’s annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators as
well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

The above statements, which should be read in conjunction
with the independent auditor’s report set out from pages
88 to 97 of this annual report, are made with a view to
distinguishing for Shareholders how the responsibilities of
the Directors differ from those of the auditor in relation
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Having
made appropriate enquiries and examined major areas
which could give rise to significant financial exposures, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the reporting period,
the Directors considered the Group has applied appropriate
accounting policies consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable in accordance
with applicable accounting standards. The interim and annual
results and reports were published within the time limits as
required under the Listing Rules after the end of the relevant
periods to provide stakeholders with transparent and timely
financial information.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. In compliance with Code Provision C.1.4
of the CG Code, continuing briefing and professional
development for Directors will be arranged at the expenses
of the Company where necessary. During the reporting
period, each of the Directors has participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars and/
or studying materials relevant to Director’s duties and
responsibility. Their training records have been provided to
the Company.

EECRKEASERE

BREZAZHEETENEEREZRME
REXER 2EAISEABRZA
BARM UHREEETBEARRER
KEE WHAEETRRBEEER
FETEFAAEZEERER -

EERBERRHEBEEREESEIMA
RERRRERZEHER  UWERF
BITBE /SBTEXERTHZTA
FEXECIAME RRABBERERFTERR
EETHFBEMNTREXRRRK ERA
ARRAZE REHNAZESFDEBL
g R RABE R R
BEZENM2EBBEREXHRR SLRAA
REFE A IRCER o

Attended training
courses/Reviewed
training materials

HEEIIRRE

Directors BE= E I MR
Mr. Guo Jiadi 20008 % & 4
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E GuoZz £ v
Mr. Wang Chao FHEE v
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael PR s T % & 4
Ms. Ma Shujuan RS R

(retired on 15 June 2023) (RZZT—_=FA+HBEME) v
Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic B 5 4 v/
Ms. Wong Wai Man BEEu L

(appointed 15 June 2023) (RZZEZ=FAT+HBEZHF) v
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Company has developed and adopted various
risk management procedures and guidelines with defined
authority for implementation by key business processes and
office functions. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. For details of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the reporting period, please refer to the
section on the summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee above.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines in relation to,
among others, corporate governance, risk evaluation
and management, anti-corruption, disclosure of insider
information, confidentiality and financial reporting in
order to achieve effective and efficient operations, reliable
financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

All divisions/departments conducted internal control
assessment regularly to identify risks that potentially impact
the business of the Group and various aspects including key
operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance
and information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted
annually to confirm that control policies are properly
complied with by each division/department.
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During the reporting period, the Group engaged an
independent professional consultancy firm for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the internal control systems. Key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls are examined
and the independent professional consultancy firm provided
its findings and recommendations for improvement to the
Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well
as the management report and the internal audit findings,
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls,
for the reporting period, and considered that such systems
are effective and adequate. The annual review also covered
the financial reporting and internal audit function and staff
qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

With reference to the Internal Audit Manual of the Group,
the Group’s internal audit function has been established
to provide risk-based and objective assurance, advice and
insight to the Board through the Audit Committee. The risk
management and internal control systems are reviewed and
assessed on a continuous basis by the Audit Committee and
the executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and
assessed at least once per year by the Board. These systems
were considered effective and adequate.

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls
for handling and dissemination of inside information. Since
shares of the Company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, the Company has adopted a policy which aims
to set out guidelines to the Group’s directors, officers and
all relevant employees to ensure inside information of the
Company is to be disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner in accordance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and the
Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted.
He/she is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is
fully appraised of the relevant legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and facilitating the induction and professional development
of Directors.

During the reporting period, Ms. Ho Wing Tsz, Wendy
("Ms. Ho") have attended relevant professional seminars
to update her skills and knowledge. She met the training
requirement set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary on corporate governance and board
practices and matters. Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, an executive
Director, has been designated as the primary contact person
at the Company which would work and communicate
with Ms. Ho on the Company’s corporate governance and
secretarial and administrative matters.

CHANGE OF AUDITORS IN PRECEDING 3
YEARS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22
August 2022 in relation to the change of auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 22 August 2022. On the same date, Moore
had been appointed as the auditor of the Company. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. The consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and for the
year ended 31 December 2023 were audited by Moore.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on
21 March 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”) in order to provide
return to the Shareholders.

Under the Dividend Policy, provided that the Group is
profitable and without affecting the normal operations
of the Group, the Company may consider to declare and
pay dividends to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount,
the Board shall take into account, among others, the Group's
actual and expected financial performance, retained earnings
and distributable reserves, working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion plans,
liquidity position, Shareholders’ interests, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Group
and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Declaration and payment of dividend shall remain to be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject
to the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and
any applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Company will
continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right
in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Company that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

n

()]

How Shareholders Can Convene A Special
General Meeting And Putting Forward Proposals
at Shareholders’ Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene a
special general meeting, and special general meetings
shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by
the Companies Act, and, if default, may be convened
by the requisitionists. On the requisition of members
of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, the Directors forthwith proceed duly
to convene a special general meeting of the Company.
If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the said date.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to
the Board

Enquiries of the Shareholders can be sent to the
Company either by email at info@chinasandi.com.cn or
by post to the Company’s Hong Kong head office at
Office Unit E, 9/F, Golden Sun Centre, 59-67 Bonham
Strand West, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. Shareholders
can also make enquiries with the Board directly at the
general meetings.

J/J__\"MsAﬁﬂ:

IRERER

U

(1))

BRRMABRBRRERNAERR
BRRAESREZR

EEURERRABLZKIRA
RERIKE - AR AE IRA]
ERRIEMREZEREARRN W0
BREZBKEARRREIKRE -
A HBERAABRRRERNAE -
REXFREERRAERARAEE
ERXRERIEZARAERER (B
EARRBBERRE ERR) FPR+
DZ—ZARABRERFBREZ
ERAT EFEIABFRARARK
RENAE MEFTRERFRE
EHEF - +—ARDARERAE
ZEFBRATIRRBEBRA—F
AN BIREEZAERBRLKARINA
ﬁmﬁﬁ EEAAEAER L
at B B ET R B = (B A 1R R TT -

i X

MEEERHEAZER

[i% 58 7] 47 38 T8 %6 Zinfo@chinasandi.com.cn
EBEEZARAEBSARER (b
I REE LR AE9-675% 2 B
EEFPLILEE) MARAERSE
AoREMAINRBRERE EHEER
EEEELER -

RE=ZAZRARALT

2023F 5 3



Corporate Governance Report
J/J__\ A ﬁﬁ: \A ﬁ p==1

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company recognises the importance of the
communication with the Shareholders. In order to maintain
and further enhance the investors’ relationship with the
Shareholders, the Company established various channels of
communication with the Shareholders:

e  The annual general meeting provides a platform for the
Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
members of the Board and external auditors will attend
the meeting. The Group encourages all Shareholders to
attend and raise any comment on the performance of
the Group. The Board welcomes to exchange views with
the Shareholders at the meeting.

e The Company has regularly met with financial analysts,
fund managers and potential investors during the
reporting period, in order to enhance the understanding
the Group’s operations and developments.

o Information relating to the Company’s financial
information is provided through publications of annual/
interim reports, announcements, circulars and press
release.

o The Company has established a corporate website
which provides regularly updated Company financial
information and other corporate information.

The Board reviewed the shareholders’ communication policy
for the reporting period and found that the shareholders’
communication policy is both effective and adequate as the
Board was able to solicit the Shareholders’ concerns in an
efficient manner.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, there was no change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

54 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

REERBERERRER

ARAFAAERRBBECERN -/
%iﬂﬂ%ﬁéﬁi&%z&ﬁ%?%% ZANVNE]
ERZZEEBRBEBZIRE

s BREFASARREEFERN
ERZ¥R -EFEgKEHEIBEZ
BHEHEAE AEEZBHEE
BRREFURAEE 2 RBREGLE
ﬁuﬁ EEgRARRNRAE L

RTmEBR e

s HREPAXRBEMEMBONE
HeREREREESH  UNR
WMEBHAREEENRER B -

e ARRBEB/HNHFHFE FHHES -
NE - BREEFMRREEBAL
R BERZEM -

e ARFAEBRINFIME  THREM
ARABMBEREEMARENZ
RHMEM

%%A B A AR BB BB R
W RREREES @E%’]Mﬁxﬁlﬁ_mﬁji
Hx%?ﬁ& BREBBRRBAILTR

BERXHF
JEHA - ARARMER XL EEY -



The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) herein
submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the reporting period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the performance of the Group by operating
segments for the reporting period is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the reporting period and the
financial performance of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 98 to 256.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of
any dividend for the reporting period.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND COMMENTARY
Financial Results

The financial results and business review of the Group for
the reporting period are set out in this annual report and
particulars in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” from pages 6 to 30.

Environmental measure and performance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability
of the environment and maintaining a high standard
of corporate social governance essential for creating a
framework for motivating staff, and contributes to the
community in which we conduct our businesses and creating
a sustainable return to the Group.

Detail of which are disclosed in our Environmental, Social
and Governance report, which will be issued separately by
the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group. During the reporting period,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable of relevant laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its
immediate and long-term goals. We enjoy good relationships
with suppliers and customers with mutual trust. Accordingly,
our management have kept good communications, promptly
exchanged ideas and shared business updates with them
when appropriate. During the reporting period, there were
no material and significant dispute between the Group and
its suppliers and/or customers.

Employees are valuable assets of the Group. The Group
strives to motivate its employees with a clear career path
and improvement of their skills by encouraging them to take
part in external training courses, professional seminars and
examinations and support them by sponsoring. The Group
puts efforts into providing staff with a harmonious, positive
and inspiring working environment. The Group always
adheres to its people-oriented concept, values and maintains
their employees’ legitimate rights and interests.

By providing employees with a good working environment
and competitive trainings, employees’ productivities and their
performances are greatly improved.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting (the “AGM") of the Company
will be held on Thursday, 13 June 2024. A notice convening
the AGM will be issued and sent to the Shareholders in due
course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM to be held on Thursday, 13 June 2024, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 7 June
2024 to Thursday, 13 June 2024, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer of
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level
17, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 6 June
2024.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’'s financial conditions, results of operations,
businesses prospects would be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our
Group’s businesses which including business risk, policy and
market risk, operational risk and financial management risk.

Business Risk

Performance of our Group’s core business will be affected
by various factors, including but not limited to economic
conditions such as performance of regional property markets,
which would hardly be mitigated even with careful and
prudent investment strategy and strict procedure.

Policy and Market Risk

As a key economic pillar industry for the PRC's development,
the property sector is more susceptible to the impact
of macro-economic and industrial policies. Our Group's
performance may be adversely affected by changes of the
political, social and economic conditions in the PRC if we are
unable to respond to the ever-changing market conditions in
a timely manner.

Report of the Directors

EEEHREE

T ERERRERTFE
AETHESR _ZTMFSA+=H
(EHM) BOREBFASIRE
RENERE AXRABR-ZZMHER
A+ B (EHR)E-_T_MFESA+=
H(EHM) (BREEREMAE) = e
BhBFPELFE HHEABTEHER
MBFPFERFE AFEAEREHERE
BFREYRELERE FERGOBR
XHEREERERBFRIEBETER
—ZT-NEXNANAE(ESM) TFEOE
ST RERARBIZEEROHBFPER
NEEEZREHERAQR it AES
ERBICHERSBMAP 7HE - LA
BERFE-

TERBRRIAEERE

AEBEPFBHRR KEXRAREHAR
PRt e X BAAEEEHERUME
ERzETRRBEIMNEERAZMATE
HbeREEKAR BEREETS  £ERE
N s e IR R R

o

EBEE
AEREZLEBZRABRIZERNER
FE BREMRREHENR - WEEY)
EmERE - HARNEAE/ NOEEREZ
RERE MEERRF TRHIAZR -

BERT SRR

ERTEERNEZEEIREERX &
WETREIRXBZBRBERITEBRRDY
B o T PI BE Ko B B B T B L By
MIHGRR  AEBENEEA XD FE
Boa - e MEBERREHH TN E -

RE=ZAZRARALT

2023F 5 7



Report of the Directors

EEEREE

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Responsibility for managing operational
risks basically rests with every function at the divisional and
departmental levels. Key functions in our Group are guided
by their standard operating procedures, limit of authority
and reporting framework. Our management will identify and
assess key operational exposures regularly so that appropriate
risk responses can be taken.

Financial management risk

The main financial management risk and the Group's
financial management measures are shown in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those mentioned above which are not known to the Group
or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited consolidated financial statements and restated as
appropriate, is set out below. The summary does not form
part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

“E-zZf —E-- —Ez- “TCFF ZTNF

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFLT AREFT ANREFT  AREFT  AREFT

(note i) (note i) (note i) (note i) (note i)

(Hii) (H1:4i) (#1:%i) (Frstii) (W)

Revenue g 3,302,755 3,448,968 2,927,554 3,255,088 1,941,565
Profit (loss) for the year/period ~ AR FAHEEAEEE/

attributable to the owners of HRRR (F8)
the Company (240,730) 42,103 169,707 420,503 482,165
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Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interest
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At 31 December

RtZB=1+-8
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZE-Zf -“E--fF -E--F —E-FF —E-)F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFLT ANREFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT
(note i) (note i) (note i) (note i) (note i)
(W) (i) (i) (H13ti) (i)
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Non-current assets FRYEE 10,438,766 10,866,575 10,683,219 9,868,688 8,847,037
Current assets TEEE 12,968,261  15254,762 19,305,479 17,239,739 11,427,775
Total assets BEE 23,407,027 26,121,337 29,988,698 27,108,427 20,274,812
Current liabilities MEEaE 14,235,493 13,712,319 15,740,603 14,061,175 10,375,071
Non-current liabilities ERBaE 4,562,162 7,334,677 9,142,434 8,140,547 5,900,209
Total liabilities aaf 18,797,655 21,046,996 24,883,037 22,201,722 16,275,280
Total equity BiEn 4,609,372 5,074,341 5,105,661 4,906,705 3,999,532
Attributable to: WFE B
Owners of the Company NI 4,392,297 4,881,630 4,836,052 4,672,807 3,945,563
Non-controlling interests MR ER 217,075 192,711 269,609 233,898 53,969
Notes: BEr

(i) These financial information were extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements as set out on page 98 to
256 in this report.

(i) The financial information for the years ended 31 December
2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 were extracted from the
Company’s 2019 annual report, 2020 annual report,
2021 annual report and 2022 annual report. The financial
information for the year ended 31 December 2019 has been
restated under merger accounting and has also been adjusted
for the change of presentation currency.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment
purposes are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the reporting period are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital
during the reporting period are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company’s share options
during the reporting period are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debenture during the
reporting period.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the reporting period are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
102 and 103 of this annual report and in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately RMB1,042,596,000 as at
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: approximately
RMB1,042,596,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting period, less than 10% of the Group’s
sale were attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers respectively.

In addition, the five largest suppliers of the Group together
accounted for approximately 41% of the Group’s total
purchases during the reporting period, with the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 16%.

60 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

EBRYE
FIERBEZEEMEFRIANKR S M
WRMEI6

WX BERRE
AEBME MERIBERBREHNZ
EBHHERNGES P HREM TS -

R 2 3 B IR 1
ARRBEARBREHAZEHFBHN
e M HRARM 24 -

$ AERERNRESHAZEHFIEH
RERE TSR M E25 -

R E
RIREEA - ARRLEEITEMERE -

fit 18

$El)§2$ ARRERARNZFEEE
FIBED R HNAFEHREI02E1038 Z 47

/\% SEER LA M mARMNE3S -

A 4t 7 K fek 4

KRARRZTZ=F+=ZA=+—Hz2

Al o R 7 4 A AR ®1,042,596,000
T(ZE-—F+-_A=+—H: HAR

#1,042,596,0007T) °

FEEFRHER
BEHALEEZRARTEAREF D A1
AEBHEBRTE10% °

oh REBRAHEERAS KB AEE
EREHANNBRBENLI % EF &K
AEFEREH£I16% °



None of the Directors, any of their close associates or any
substantial Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the reporting period, the Group made charitable
contributions of approximately RMBO.1 million (2022:
approximately RMBO.3 million) to various charitable
organisations.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guo Jiadi (Chairman)
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo
Mr. Wang Chao

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael
Ms. Wong Wai Man (appointed on 15 June 2023)

Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic
Ms. Ma Shujuan (retired on 15 June 2023)

In accordance with the Bye-laws 111(A), 111(B) and 115
of the Bye-laws of the Company, Ms. Amika Lan E Guo,
Ms. Wong Wai Man and Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael,
Dominic shall retire from their offices at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and (i) Ms. Wong
Wai Man will not offer herself for re-election and (ii)
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo and Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the said
meeting.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no change in the Directors’ information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”), aged 64, is a merchant and
was appointed as the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company with effect from 12 December 2014. Mr. Guo
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company,
incorporated in Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands
(the "BVI") respectively engaged in investment holding and
also a director and legal representative of certain operating
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC. Mr. Guo is also an
ultimate beneficial owner of a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Guo started his business in international trading and,
in 26 years, diversified into businesses including footwear
manufacturing, chemical technology, mining, real estate
development and hotel investment with presence throughout
Europe, the United States, Hong Kong, Shanghai, Fujian,
Shaanxi and Jilin. Mr. Guo has over 30 years of experience in
trading business and over 20 years of experience in property
development.

Mr. Guo entered into the property market in the PRC by
establishing Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Fuzhou Gaojia”) and has since acted as its chairman.
Fuzhou Gaojia has obtained (Qualification Certificate (Class
1) for Real Estate Development Enterprise in the PRC¥*)
from the Department of Housing and Urban and Rural
Development of the PRC*. Fuzhou Gaojia has completed
certain real estate projects in Fuzhou, Putian, Baoji and
Shanghai.

Mr. Guo is the father of Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, who is an
executive Director of the Company. Apart from the aforesaid,
Mr. Guo does not have any other relationship with any
Director, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholder(s) of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
Mr. Guo does not hold directorship in other public listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

*  For identification purposes only
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Ms. Amika Lan E Guo (“Ms Guo”), aged 38, has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Company with
effect from 9 July 2014 and is a director of certain Hong
Kong and BVI subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Guo is
responsible for the overall business development of the
company. Her current position is the Director of Business
Operations and is responsible for general operation
management, corporate development and planning matters.
Ms. Guo has graduated from Simon Fraser University in
Canada with a bachelor degree of Business Administration.
She also holds a MBA degree from The University of Hong
Kong.

Ms. Guo is the daughter of Mr. Guo Jiadi, who is the
Chairman and an executive Director and the ultimate
beneficial owner of a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Guo does not have
any other relationship with any Director, senior management,
substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of the Company.
Save as disclosed above, Ms. Guo does not hold directorship
in other public listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Mr. Wang Chao (“Mr. Wang"”), aged 47, was appointed
as an executive Director of the Company with effect from
5 February 2018. Mr. Wang hold a bachelor’'s degree of
Laws from the Xiamen University*. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked in companies that specialised in property
development industries for over ten years. Mr. Wang is
the general manager of Fujian Sinco since 1 January 2018
and responsible for the overall operation for the various
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC.

Mr. Wang does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s)
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wang does
not hold directorship in other public listed companies in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

*  For identification purposes only
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael (“Mr. Chan"), aged 46, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 9 July 2014. Mr. Chan was also appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration (Honours) in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member with practicing
certificate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over ten years of
working experience in the fields of accounting and audit,
corporate secretarial management and corporate governance.

He is currently the company secretary of China Sunshine
Paper Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2002), which
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, as well as
Northeast Electric Development Co., Limited (stock code: 42),
a joint stock limited company incorporated in the PRC and
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange respectively.

He was also an independent non-executive director of
Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 1470), Champion Alliance International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1629) and SoftMedx Healthcare Limited
(formerly known as China Wah Yan Healthcare Limited)
(stock code: 648) from September 2017 to December 2018,
from November 2018 to February 2021 and from July 2014
to May 2022, respectively. Mr. Chan has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director for two companies,
namely, StarGlory Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
8213) since November 2016 and Beijing Media Corporation
Limited (stock code: 1000) since June 2020.

Mr. Chan is the director of MCI CPA Limited. Mr. Chan
does not have any relationship with any Director, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan does not hold
directorship in other public listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.
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Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic (“Mr. Lam”), aged 51, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 10 April 2021. Mr. Lam was also appointed as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Lam is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a chartered financial
analyst of the CFA Institute and a certified financial risk
manager of the Global Association of Risk Professionals.
Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) Degree
in Accountancy in the City University of Hong Kong and
Mr. Lam worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong
for over seven years for assurance and business advisory
services and has worked in various finance roles in listed
companies for over 10 years.

Mr. Lam does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s)
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lam does not
hold directorship in other public listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Ms. Wong Wai Man (“"Ms. Wong"”), aged 50, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 15 June 2023. Ms. Wong was also appointed
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Ms. Wong is the group legal counsel and
company secretary of a listed company. Prior to joining
the said listed company as the legal counsel in late 2017,
Ms. Wong had been a qualified solicitor in private practice
for over 15 years in Hong Kong, specialised in general
commercial matters, mergers and acquisitions, corporate
financing and regulatory compliance works of listed
companies. Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor of laws (LLB) in
1995 and a postgraduate certificate in laws (PCLL) in 1996
from the University of Hong Kong. She was admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong in late 1998.

Ms. Wong does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s)
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Wong does
not hold directorship in other public listed companies in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Guo Jiadi, being an existing executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing on 12 December
2014. The service contract had been renewed for a further
term of three years commencing on 12 December 2017, 12
December 2020 and 12 December 2023, respectively.

Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, being an existing executive Director,
has entered into a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing on 9 July 2014.
The service contract had been renewed for a further term of
three years commencing on 9 July 2017, 9 July 2020 and 9
July 2023, respectively.

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael, being an existing independent
non-executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing on 9 July 2014. The service contracts had been
renewed for a further term of three years commencing on 9
July 2017 and for a further term of two years commencing
on 9 July 2020 and 9 July 2022.

Mr. Wang Chao, being an existing executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing on 5 February 2018
and the service contract had been renewed for a further
term of three years commencing on 5 February 2021 and 5
February 2024.

Ms. Wong Wai Man, being an existing independent
non-executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing on 15 June 2023.

Mr. Lam Wai Fung, Dominic, being an existing independent
non-executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing on
10 April 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the reporting period, the Group had the following
transactions with connected person which constituted
connected transaction under the Listing Rules:

Acquisition of All Excel Industries Limited (“All
Excel”) and provision of guarantees

On 21 September 2018, Grand Supreme Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as purchaser) had
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Primary
Partner International Limited (“Primary Partner”, as vendor),
a company beneficially owned by Mr. Guo, to acquire the
entire equity interest in All Excel. The total consideration of
the acquisition was HK$1,500 million, which is satisfied by
i) cash of HK$200 million; ii) issue of promissory notes in
principal amount of HK$600 million; iii) issue of 485,436,893
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.412 per share
(equivalent to HK$200 million); and iv) issue of convertible
bond in principal amount of HK$500 million.

All Excel and its subsidiaries (collectively the “All Excel
Group”) are principally engaged in property development,
property investment and hotel operation business in the
PRC. Certain members of the All Excel Group have also
provided corporate guarantees (the “Corporate Guarantees”)
to certain entities (the “CP Group”) that were indirectly
wholly owned or controlled by Mr. Guo or Ms. Shum Xi Xia
("Ms. Shum™), the sister-in-law of Mr. Guo, to guarantee
the payment obligations of the bank loans (the “Guaranteed
Loans”) grant to the CP Group. The aggregated principal of
these Guaranteed Loans amounted to RMB1,410.3 million
before the acquisition.

The Corporate Guarantees will become contingent liability of
the Group upon the completion of the acquisition. In order
to protect the Group from the potential liabilities arising
from the Corporate Guarantees, on 21 December 2018,
the parties entered into a supplemental deed, pursuant to
which, (i) Mr. Guo has undertaken to indemnify the Group
in full regarding any loss incurred by the Group under the
Corporate Guarantees, and (i) the amount due by the Group
to Mr. Guo and/or CP Group, the promissory note and the
convertible bonds issue to Primary Partner were charged
as first charge in favour of the Company to safeguard the
Group's interest. Details of term of the supplemental deed
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 31
December 2018.
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As Mr. Guo is an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and a controlling shareholder of the Company, Primary
Partner is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being an associate of Mr. Guo and therefore the acquisition
constituted a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Furthermore, as Ms. Shum is a deemed
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.21(1)(a),
each of the entities of the CP Group is a connected person
of the Company by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Guo
or Ms. Shum. As such, the on-going provision of Corporate
Guarantees upon the completion of the acquisition also
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The acquisition and provision of Corporate Guarantees were
approved at the Company’s special general meeting held
on 16 January 2019 and the acquisition was completed
on 30 January 2019. Further details are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 21 September 2018,
31 December 2018, 16 January 2019 and 30 January 2019,
and the circular of the Company dated 26 December 2018,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the existing Corporate Guarantees
provided by the Group to the CP Group were set out as
follows:

HRIBEER/RRRRNITES EFQ
FFEMIERPLER - Primary PartnerfE & 8
FHEZBMBEAMKARARZ@EANLT

Fit - WEEETMENX EHHRBE14AT

BRARBIZ—BEBRS - I - 1BIE
EWRBIE14A21(1)@)K X TR

BRAABTNBEAL MCPEEZES
HEALERI L LT 2HEATMKA
RRARCBEALT - EHit REXKIES
1515:?““&@“TW%)T%th%EEIJ
FBIUABRE NARAlz —TAEER S -

W%%E&h#“Tﬁ%Eﬂ$ GBS
—NWFE—A+BE8EIT2KRERER
AgLtEMEBRBEEER_Z—N
F-—A=THZEK -EZFE5 A H7
RARBIBBHA-ZTE-—N\FNLAZ +*
H - N\&+ZA=+—H- =
—NWF—A+~BER=ZZFE—hL&—A
T+ HZREURARGBHBAZE
—NE+ZAZ+B 2@k

R-E-_=ZF+-_A=+—H &x5H
MCPEEREMIBAE QBRI WOT :

Loan Repayment
Borrower Lenders Guarantor principal Outstanding Interest rate date
&R L] BRA ERkeE KRESE FZE BRAY
(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
ANEETT) (AE¥TFT)
Fujian Sandi Real Estate Huaxia Bank Co., Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate 690,000 561,000 5.40% 16 October 2028

Development Co., Limited Limited Development Co., Limited
("Fujian Sandi”) ("Fuzhou Gaojia")

RE-HEHERZABRLAR EERNTRNHERAR BNEEERERE ZECN\E
(MEg=u)) BRAR(RMNEE]) +A+7H

690,000 561,000

These Guaranteed Loans were also secured by pledge of
certain properties held by the CP Group. None of these loans
is overdue.

ZEERERMABRIRCPEERE 25
TUMRERR - ZFEEFHREBH -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken by the Group during the Year are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company has complied with the applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules for those related party transactions
which constituted non-exempt connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions. Other related party
transactions either did not constitute connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions or constituted connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions but were
exempted from all disclosure and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' MATERIAL INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” disclosed above and note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements headed “Related Party
Transactions and Balances”, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its parent company, or
its parent company’s subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or any entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year nor
was there any other transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Group’s business between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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Report of the Directors

EEEREE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or in existence during the
reporting period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates is or was interested in any
business apart from the Group’s business that competes or
competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business at any time during the
reporting period and up to the date of this report.

Mr. Guo Jiadi (“"Mr. Guo"”) is an executive Director, the
chairman of the Company and a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Guo carries out property development
and investment businesses and other businesses in the PRC
through companies controlled by him, including but not
limited to Fujian Sandi Property Development Limited (“Fujian
Sandi”) and Fuzhou Gaojia. Fuzhou Gaojia had become an
indirect wholly-owner subsidiary of the Company since 30
January 2019.

To deal with the potential conflict of interests between
Mr. Guo and the Company, Mr. Guo; Fujian Sandi;
Fuzhou Gaojia and the Company had entered into a deed
of non-competition dated 1 January 2015 (the “2015
Deed"”). Each of Mr. Guo, Fujian Sandi and Fuzhou Gaojia;
(the "Covenantor(s)”) has given his/its non-competition
undertakings in favour of the Company on the terms set out
below:

(a) The Covenantors will not, and will procure his/its close
associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, engage,
invest or be involved in any manner any business which
competes with the business of the Company from time
to time with the following exceptions:
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

the holding of shares of a company which is
engaged in the business of acquisition of land
for development, building construction and
acquisition of real properties (including projects
with construction in progress) in the PRC for sale,
lease or other investment purposes (the “Property
Investment Business”) and whose shares are listed
on a recognised stock exchange provided that
such shares do not exceed 10% voting rights at
the general meeting of the company;

the engagement in the Property Investment
Business through the Group;

the acquisition or holding of real property for
self-use;

the property projects that the Covenantors
have already engaged as at the date of the
undertakings;

the engagement of property projects in any
province of the PRC in which the Group has
not considered, planned to or invested in the
development of its Property Investment Business;
and

the engagement of property projects in any
province of the PRC in which the Group has
considered, planned to or invested in the
development of its Property Investment Business
subject to the right of first refusal granted to the
Group (on the terms set out in the undertakings).

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EEEREE

Since the date of the 2015 Deed, the scope of the
operation of the Group was expanded. Therefore,
Mr. Guo and the Company has entered into a new
Non-competition Deed on 15 March 2017 (the “2017
Deed”) to replace the 2015 Deed. Further details was
disclosed in the announcement dated 15 March 2017.
Set out below is a summary of the principal terms of

the 2017 Deed and relevant information.

Mr. Guo (for himself and as the agent for his close
associates) irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes

in favour of the Company that:

(a) he shall and shall procure that his close associates
not to, directly or indirectly, engage in, invest in,
participate in, whether on his own account or with
each other or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person or company or otherwise holds or
owns any interest in any manner in the PRC in any
business that may compete, directly or indirectly,

with the Group Business;

(b) he shall provide all the information that the
Company reasonably considers to be necessary to
enforce the undertakings given by him under the
2017 Deed and would make an annual declaration
on compliance with the 2017 Deed in the annual

report of the Company; and

(c) he and/or his close associates shall abstain from
voting in the Board meetings and the general
meetings of the Company in relation to any matter

in connection with 2017 Deed.
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Mr. Guo further undertakes to the Company that he
shall not (and shall procure his close associates not to):

(a) solicit or entice away any customer, contractor,
supplier, director, employee or consultant of the
Group (or any potential customer, contractor,
supplier with whom the Group has already entered
into negotiations); and/or

(b) use, disclose to anyone or publish, or allow
the disclosure or publication of, the non-public
information in relation to the Group (trade secrets,
business strategies or otherwise) that he or his
close associates received or may receive.

If any New Business Opportunity is made available to
Mr. Guo and/or his close associates, he and/or his close
associates:

(@) shall issue a written notice to the Board pursuant
to the terms of the 2017 Deed and provide the
information reasonably requested by the Company
to facilitate the Company making an informed
evaluation of the New Business Opportunity; and

(b) shall not pursue or otherwise participate in the
new business opportunity in any manner unless
and until the New Business Opportunity has been
declined by the Group, provided that Mr. Guo
and/or his close associates cannot pursue the New
Business Opportunity on terms more favourable
than those offered to the Group.
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Report of the Directors

EEEREE

If Mr. Guo and/or any of his close associates wishes to
sell any interest in the Guo Business (same meanings as
defined in the announcement dated 15 March 2017) (in
whole or in part) to any third party (the “Opportunity
for Sale”), Mr. Guo will offer and will procure that his
close associates to offer the Opportunity for Sale to the
Company and the Company shall have a right of first
refusal in respect of such Opportunity for Sale. In this
regard, Mr. Guo and/or his close associates:

o shall issue a written notice to the Board pursuant
to the terms of the 2017 Deed and provide the
information reasonably requested by the Company
to facilitate the Company to reasonably evaluate
the Opportunity for Sale; and

o shall be at liberty to offer the Opportunity for
Sale to third parties if the Opportunity for Sale is
declined by the Group, provided that the terms
thereof shall not be more favourable than those
provided to the Group.

The Non-competition Undertakings do not apply to the
following:

(a) the same property projects excluded from the
2015 Deed (being those property projects of
Mr. Guo and/or his close associates already in
existence as at the date of the 2015 Deed);

(b) the hotel business in connection with three existing
hotels located in Fujian Province which has been
engaged by Mr. Guo (and/or his closes associates)
prior to the Group’s proposed engagement in the
hotel sector;

(c) the holding of or being interested in, directly or
indirectly, by Mr. Guo and/or his close associates
any shares in any company, provided that (i) such
shares are listed on a recognized stock exchange;
and (ii) the total number of such shares held by
Mr. Guo and/or his close associates does not
amount to more than 5% of the issued shares
carrying voting rights;
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(d) the engagement in any business via the holding of
the equity interests through the Group;

(e) the acquisition or holding of property by Mr. Guo
and/or his close associates for their respective
self-use;

(f)  the engagement in the Group Business in any
province in the PRC where the Group has not
considered or planned to carry out the Group
Business; or

(g) (subject to the provisions regarding the New
Business Opportunity) the engagement in the
Group Business in any province in the PRC where
the Group has considered or planned to carry out
the Group Business.

The obligations of Mr. Guo under 2017 Deed shall be
terminated upon the earlier of:

(@) the Shares ceasing to be listed on the Stock
Exchange; and

(b) Mr. Guo and his close associates together ceasing
to control 30% (or such percentage as may from
time to time specified in the Listing Rules to be
regarded as a controlling shareholder) or more of
the voting rights at any general meeting of the
Company.

During the Year and up to the date of this report,
Mr. Guo declares that he complied with all the terms
and conditions as set out in 2015 Deed and 2017 Deed.
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Report of the Directors

EEEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571,
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO") which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company

EERFETBRAERKRSG A
EROREEE 2RBERAR

NRZBE-_=%+-A=+—HB EBEEK
RABEBITHA B R AR R 3 H M5
EFE(FEREBBESNELZNB SRS
B0 ([FHREBEGED]) BEXVE) 2 &
D MR REEET  BEG)ARE
BAEREEEDEXVEETR EID I
SARBIRBRAT(BEREESALEE
BROIER G X EERR B 2 s KoK
) (iR IEEFH & B E 1§ F 352K
MARNBFE ZZLMATEE R iyAa
RSN LR B $RC3 2 22 57 B 40
SANR MR 2 (RS SOA R I

REXTDROREERG 2HFR

Number Approximate

Number of of share  percentage
Number  underlying options of the issued
Name of Director Capacity of shares shares held capital
HERG FRBRE GERTRX
Expg 5% RH#E 8B BB Z#NEsk
(note 3) (note 4)
(H1323) (Hiit4)
Mr. Guo Interest of controlled corporation 3,386,905,895 1,213,592,233 - 90.41%
(note 1) (note 2)
BrE RBEE R (Hizt1) (Hiz#2)
Beneficial owner - - 2,000,000 0.04%
EREAA
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo Beneficial owner - - 4,400,000 0.09%

Amika Lan E GuoZ £ ERBEBEA
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Notes:

1. These shares were held by the controlled corporations of
Mr. Guo as follows:

Name of controlled corporation

REEEER

Report of the Directors

EEEHREE

Wit -

1. ZEBRMAILEZZEEEE
BT

No. of Shares

R4 & B

United Century International Limited (“United Century”)

Primary Partner International Limited ("Primary Partner")

United Century International Limited
([United Century])

2,581,054,801

Primary Partner International Limited

([Primary Partner ) 485,436,893
King Partner Holding Limited (“King Partner”) King Partner Holding Limited

([King Partner]) 320,414,201
Total @t 3,386,905,895

All the above corporations were incorporated in the BVI
with limited liability and wholly-owned by Mr. Guo.

2. This represents the maximum number of Shares to be
issued upon exercise in full of the conversion rights
attaching to the convertible bonds issued to Primary
Partner on 30 January 2019.

3. The share options were granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme (as defined below), details of which
are set out in the paragraphs headed “Share Option
Scheme"” below.

4. As at 31 December 2023, the number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company was 5,088,207,546, which
has been used for the calculation of the approximate
percentage.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates had or was deemed to have any
interests, in the long position or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations which was required (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions in which he/she was taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); (b) which was
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) which was required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors

EEEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, other than the interests of a
Director or chief executive of the Company as disclosed
under the heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s
interest and short position in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, the following persons (not being a
Director or the chief executive officer of the Company) have
an interest or a short position in shares or underlying Shares
which would be required to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be entered in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

IERRRBROREBERD 2
wmRRR

RZE-_=ZF#+-A=+—H KB LEX
(BEERETETHRABRKG - HERNG
MEEBEZEGZRARIBBEZARAE
ERFETHABEZERI LU TAL
(WIFEEBRARBITHAR) RIRMD X
HERGOT  HEREBEESFRBE KD
FEXVERE2 R B3I HAG AR AR R R
RFIBEZERRAR  RALAKR
NAEIBREEBESFRBEKAIEICHKEFTE Z
B ogmsoX T

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Number of underlying issued capital
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares Shares (Note 3)
HERTREAZ
BAEAL
BREE B/ ERiE RAEE HERAEE (H1723)
Long Position
e
United Century Beneficial owner 2,581,054,801 - 50.73%
United Century ExBEA
King Partner Beneficial owner 320,414,201 - 6.30%
King Partner ExBAA
Primary Partner Beneficial owner 485,436,893 1,213,592,233 33.39%
(Note 2)
Primary Partner EXHAA (Hisz2)
Central Huijin Investment Ltd Person having a Security interest - 2,604,479,555 51.19%
in shares (note 1)
FRESHEEREMCAH RO HEEEREZ AL
(Bizt1)
China Construction Bank Person having a Security interest - 2,604,479,555 51.19%

Corporation
FEERRTRHERAA
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Notes:

1 It represents security interest held by Chance Talent
Management Limited (“Chance Talent”). Chance Talent's
intermediate holding company is CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, and its ultimate holding company is Central
Huijin Investment Limited.

2 This represents the maximum number of Shares to be issued
upon exercise in full of the conversion rights attaching to the
convertible bonds issued to Primary Partner on 30 January
2019.

3. As at 31 December 2023, the number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company was 5,088,207,546, which has been
used for the calculation of the approximate percentages.

Save as disclosed above, so far as was known to the
Directors, as at 31 December 2023, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had any interests or short positions in the
Shares and the underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during
the reporting period are set out below:

(@) Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) which is approved at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 16
September 2011 and expired on 15 September 2021.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may
grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for the
Company’s shares subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. All options granted but not yet
exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable.
The directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries are entitled to participate in the share
option schemes operated by the Company.
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Report of the Directors
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The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible and effective means of
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants. The Share
Option Scheme covers any employee (full time and part
time) holding salaries, agents, contractors, consumers,
suppliers and others providing similar services as the
Board in its sole discretion considers eligible.

Without prior approval from the Shareholders, (i) the
total number of shares to be issued under the options
of the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the

shares of the Company then in issue.

Options may be exercised at any time not exceeding
a period 6 years from the date on which the share
options is accepted. The exercise price is determined by
the Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’'s

shares.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable period
and the number of shares subject to each option were
determined by the Board at the time of grant.

46,000,000 share options (“Batch 1 Options”) under
the Share Option Scheme granted on 22 February 2016
and the vested option will be exercisable at an exercise
price of HK$0.285 per share in accordance with the

following schedule:

25%: from 22 February 2016
25%: from 22 February 2017
25%: from 22 February 2018
25%: from 22 February 2019

80 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

BRESSEERARAHAREEE
ERRHEAMTARSBEREET
BB MEe WERLEN-BK
RS REEFTE2RNBERA/AE
Bz EMEBMFRIFHES  RE
AE - HBRE  HERREHEREMU
ARAGEVELABA o

AEBRRELLE  (REHFEZ
BRESTETZRODEHTEER
BETRAREMN-—FERT LA
BT EMEABRERSTETZR
H210%  NEEBBARAERD #
ﬁHﬁ@Z1 % °

B & @R E R LB BT B
ARERITERBRE THEERESE
EASAEERATERSE ()X
DEBRMREHABRZEHE : (DK
DREERHAHMABEEXR 2F
FWHE  RGNARRED ZHE -

EFEEMNREBERERETENE
BzZITEE BB TEHEA
WEBHEE -

46,000,00017 B A% 4 ([ 55 — #t B %
EDERBEBEREFEN_Z— F
ZRZHZBRE mABEBER
EHEARETIEBRETFEESR
0.285EF JL1Tf# -

5% BE-E-RNF-A -+ -HIE
5% BE-E—+F_A -+ _HiE
5% B-ZF-\FZAZ+ZHE
5% B-_E—NF_A=-_+-Hi



On 24 April 2018, a total of 59,700,000 shares options
(“Batch 2 Options”) were granted to the directors,
consultants and employees of the Group at a cash
consideration of HK$1 per grantee which entitle the
grantees to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.420 per share.
The exercise price is determined with reference to the
highest of (i) the closing price of HK$0.420 per share
as quoted in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange daily
quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of approximately HK$0.412 per share as
quoted in the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HK$0.01 per
ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company.
The validity period of the Batch 2 Options is 6 years
from the date of grant (i.e. 24 April 2018 to 23 April
2024 (both days inclusive)). The vesting period of the
Batch 2 Options is as follows:

40% of the Batch 2 Options shall vest on 24 April
2018,

30% of the Batch 2 Options shall vest on 24 April
2019; and

30% of the Batch 2 Options shall vest on 24 April 2020

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Details of movements in the number of outstanding HMEHANERETZIET BARITE
share options under the Share Option Scheme during ZEREEHBEEYFBLOT

the reporting period are as follows:

Nurber of shares options
BRERA
Cancelled/
Granted  Exercised Expired Exercise
Beginning during during during Endof  priceper  Date of grant of Exercisable
oftheyear ~ theYear  theYear  theYear the Year share share option period
KEER  BEER  AEER §Ef BhE
£ b g E8/ER EX & RHRE T8
Directors EH

M. Guo i3 2,000,000 - - - 2000000  HKSO.420 24 April 2018 24 Apiil 2018 to
23 April 2024
04207 3\ ZF-/\EMACTEAZ
MAZTEA  ZE-REMAZTH
Ms. Amika Lan £ Guo ~ Amika Lan £ Guo 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HKS0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
(Note) rthd) 23 Apil 2004
04207 3\ ZE-)\EMACTEAE
MAZTEA  —E-MEMAZTZH
s. Ma Shujuan ElRRt 4,400,000 - - (4400,000) - HKS0420 24 Aprl 2018 24 April 2018 to
23 April 2024
04207 “E-NE CE-NERACTRRE
MAZTEA  ZE-REMAZT=H

Sub-total %S 10,800,000 - - (4400,000) 6,400,000
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Number of shares options
BRiE#E
Cancelled/
Granted  Exercised Expired Exercise
Beginning during during during Endof  priceper Date of grant of Exercisable
oftheyear ~ theYear  theYear  theYear the Year share share option period
KEER  BEER  AEER 5k BR#
£ b if  dH/ER EX FE RiRE &8
Employees s

SandyLenHuaGuo  SandylanHuaGuo 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HKS0420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
(Note) (k) 23 Apil 2004
0420%T “E-0\f CR-\¥BAZTRAE
M_ﬂﬁ ZEIRERAZT=H
Daisy LanLan Guo~~ Daisy Lan Lan Guo 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HKS0420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
(Note) () 23 April 2024
0420%T ZE-)\§ ZE-JEMACTRAE
MAZtEA  ZE-MEMA-TZR
Stephen Zhen HangGuoSephenZhenHang 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HKS0420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
(Note) Guo (7 23 April 2024
0420%T ZE-\§ ZE-JEMACTRAE
MAZtEA  —E-MEMA-TZR
Other employees EHER 28,000,000 - - - 28000000  HKSO420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
23 April 2024
042047 3\ ZE-)\EMACTEAZ
MAZtEA  —E-MEMAZTZR

Sub-ota e 41,200,000 - - - 41,200,000

Total 3t 52,000,000 - - (4400,000) 47,600,000

Note: Mr. Guo is an executive Director, the Chairman and
a substantial Shareholder, and Ms. Amika Lan E Guo,
Ms. Sandy Lan Hua Guo, Ms. Daisy Lan Lan Guo and
Mr. Stephen Zhen Hang Guo are associates of Mr. Guo.

Wiz BEERBRTES TFERE

TREE - LA KX Amika Lan E Guo
%+ - Sandy Lan Hua GuoZ * -
Daisy Lan Lan Guo# & [ Stephen
Zhen Hang Guot £ A3 k42
BEEEA o
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(b) Convertible Bonds

On 30 January 2019, the convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$500 million (the “CB") was
issued to Primary Partner, which is wholly-owned
by Mr. Guo, at interest rate of 1% per annum with
conversion rights to convert into a maximum of
1,213,592,233 shares of the Company at conversion
price of HK$0.412 per share. Certain terms and
conditions of the CB were amended after the reporting
period. For details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Significant Events after the Reporting Period” in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
to this annual report.

Details of the CB are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company disclosed above, at no time during the reporting
period, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE GROUP

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of
the employee’s merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, with
consideration to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as
an incentive to the Directors and eligible employees of
the Group, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” above and note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.
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Other than operating the statutory mandatory provident fund
scheme for Hong Kong employees and participating in social
insurance for its employees in the PRC in accordance with
the relevant PRC regulations, the Group has not operated
any other retirement benefits schemes for the Group’s
employees. Details of the Group’s retirement benefit scheme
in operation for the reporting period are set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements in this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
accompanying the annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
INFORMATION AND DIRECTOR’S INSURANCE

Pursuant to the memorandum of association and Bye-laws of
the Company, the Directors and other officers, for the time
being acting in relation to the affairs of the Company, shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any
of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices
or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain
through their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the reporting period,
which provides appropriate cover for certain legal actions
brought against its directors and officers. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to the existing Shareholders.

RELIEF FROM TAXATION

The Directors are not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of
their holding of the shares.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the reporting period, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

DISCLOSURES UNDER RULES 13.20 TO 13.22
OF THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December
2023, the Group had no circumstances which would give rise
to a disclosure obligation under Rule 13.20 to 13.22 of the
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the best knowledge of the Directors, it
is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company'’s issued shares at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each independent
non-executive Director, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group's financial reporting process and internal controls. It
also reviews the effectiveness of the audit process and risk
evaluation. The Audit Committee which comprised Mr. Chan
Yee Ping, Michael, Ms. Wong Wai Man and Mr. Lam
Wai Fung, Dominic, all being independent non-executive
Directors, has reviewed the accompanying financial
statements prior to their publication.
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EEEHREE

AUDITORS % S ED

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for REDERARNBBRERRN 28T
the reporting period have been audited by Moore. Moore will BR- REBREEBREBEFKRKE LR
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment  {FX F & B EIREF - XA T R ME
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for EREAFRE FIREE —HREET N
the re-appointment of Moore as auditor of the Company is BERENRERELARAZEED -

to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting

of the Company.

On behalf of the Board REEED

Guo Jiadi FE

Chairman ZBhn 3

Hong Kong, 31 March 2024 FEF —E-_NMFE=A=+—H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VEZBEEERES

K| MOORE

Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Shareholders of
China Sandi Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Sandi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 98 to 256, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPAs Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Material Uncertainty Related To Going Concern

We draw attention to note 3.1 of the consolidated financial
statements, which set out that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately RMB422,414,000 for the year ended
31 December 2023, and as at that date, the Group had net
current liabilities of approximately RMB1,267,232,000 and
current liabilities of approximately RMB14,235,493,000.
However, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounting to only approximately RMB148,063,000. These
conditions, along with other matters set out in note 3.1 to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

BYRBMBES

HEEFEKEHBENERTREM
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYRBEMBES

Key Audit Matters

BERELER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional P EZETEERIER A E 3 2 H
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the REHANAEGAVERRNEEZR A
consolidated financial statements of the current period. EEMNFE SELETEHEERMERE
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit BESMBERERLAEEEZRABREE &K
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and MreHELEEFENREERER -

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter
HAREZER

Valuation of investment properties

REYXRIGE

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined
with the estimates associated with determining
the fair value. As disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements, the investment
properties of the Group were shopping malls,
hotels, office units, commercial units, residential
units, kindergartens, car parking spaces and
investment properties under construction in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) amounted
to approximately RMB10,233,800,000 as at
31 December 2023, representing 44% of the
Group’s total assets. Net loss on changes in fair
value of investment properties of approximately
RMB394,681,000 were recognised in the profit or
loss for the reporting period.

BB REMEGHERERAREREFE  REA
RBREMEZRANERBESUBRRLER
R UAREBEERAFERBEZGET -  HNGEETE
WEMTIOATEE R_E_=F+t_A=1+—
B EXBZREMERNPEARENMEA([H
B zBEYES BE WABEM BEEML-
TEEM HRE FESREBREMELD
A K #%10,233,800,0000T * 1 EXEBEE
44% - EMAREMELFEEHFEBEHA
R #394,681,0007t E A B FERR ©
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMELRONMEEHEEERSE

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of the investment
properties included:

BMEBAERENENGESEETNEFEH

o Understanding the management’s process for
reviewing and evaluating the work of the Valuer;

s HEREBEMEHRTMMGEEMNIIERANE
=2

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;
o  FHAGMEMBEET  EHORTEES

o Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer
about the valuation techniques, the performance
of the property markets, significant assumptions
adopted in the valuations; and

s RAEMEFBERGEERN MEMHORA -
HERARANERNRR &



Key Audit Matters (continued)

The key audit matter
ERERER

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

REWE1GE(E)

All of the Group's investment properties are
stated at fair value based on valuations performed
by an independent professional valuer not
connected with the Group (the “Valuer”). The fair
value of the completed investment properties was
determined by adopting the income capitalisation
approach and direct comparison approach
which are dependent on certain key inputs,
including term yield, unit rent, adjustment made
to account for differences in location and level
and analysis of recent market sales evidence of
similar properties. The fair value of investment
properties under construction was determined by
adopting the residual method approach which are
dependent on gross development value, estimated
construction costs to completion and comparable
land price. Details of the valuation techniques and
key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

e ESEENRKREMEHENHE SE£EEH
BEENBIEEMEER ([EER])ETHEE
BRAFEINER B REMEZAFETIRA
WABREERBEELEE  REHARDR - &
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZBA®RES

HAREXER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMEERONMEEBERERSE

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of the investment
properties included:

BAERFHEREDEHEEEZENEF B

o Engaging our internal valuation specialists to
assist in evaluating the valuation performed
by the Valuer, including the reasonableness of
significant unobservable inputs and the accuracy
of the source data adopted by the management
of the Group and the Valuer by comparing
them, on a sample basis, to existing tenancy
profiles, market data for a selection of investment
properties, publicly available information of similar
comparable properties and our knowledge of the
real estate industry.

e ZEBHMOAIMEEZER W EMEEETH
e BEREBMELR ESEEEEMGHER
PIERAMEBER NI BEE AZBENSEERAR
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VRBMHRES

Key Audit Matters (continued)

The key audit matter
ERERER

Valuation of inventories of properties

WEFEEE

We identified the assessment of net realisable
value (the “NRV") of the Groups inventories
of properties as a key audit matter due to the
significant estimates involved in the determination
of the NRV of these properties. As disclosed in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had completed properties for sale of
approximately RMB4,898,758,000 and properties
under development for sale of approximately
RMB6,150,987,000 (the inventories of properties)
as at 31 December 2023, which are situated in
the PRC.

BM#ER EXREYMEFENAERFE ([A#
WHEEDAEREREZEE  DEARETLE
MEN R FES REAMGG - RAOES I
WMEAMFIERE R E_=F+-_HA=+—
B EXBBEALUNRTENGFELERIMENA
[R#4,898,758,000t R ¥ EERAMENARKE
6,150,987,000c ([MEFE]) -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, management of the
Group determined the NRV of the inventories
of properties by reference to the estimated
selling prices of the inventories of properties,
which takes into account a number of factors
including prevailing real estate market conditions
in the PRC, estimated costs to completion,
and costs necessary to make the sales. Based
on management’s estimation of the NRV of
the inventories of properties, the write-down
of inventories of properties amounted to
approximately RMB306,213,000 as at 31
December 2023.

WG EN BRI TATEE - EEEER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMELRONMEEBERERSH

Our procedures in relation to the NRV of the
inventories of properties included:

BHREEEEEMXFEAZRFENBRE

Obtaining an understanding on the management'’s
process of determining of the NRV of the
inventories of properties;
BREEEECYERGFEAZEFENBE
Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated
future costs to completion of the properties, on
a sample basis, by comparing it to the actual
development cost of similar completed properties
of the Group; and

TR EN BT RRKANHEEN - FXE
MEEZEDERE EEFRUETIVENER
FERAETLER &

Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated
selling prices used by management with reference
to market prices achieved in the same projects or
by comparable properties, including an evaluation
of the appropriateness of the comparable
properties used by management of the Group
based on our knowledge of the Group’s business
and real estate industry in the PRC.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Information Other Than the Consolidated Financial
Statement and Auditor’s Report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors report
thereon, including the Management Discussion and Analysis,
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report,
and the Chairman’s Statement, Corporate Governance Report
and Report of the Directors, which are expected to be made
available to us shortly after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

When we read the Chairman’s Statement, Corporate
Governance Report and Report of the Directors, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance and take appropriate action considering our
legal rights and obligations.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEBRES

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEBRES

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZBA®RES

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the REBMRETA GRSV ERRAENSE
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 1F(E)

From the matters communicated with those charged with MEEREBBANZIES B FETEYW
governance, we determine those matters that were of LEEEHAPAEEVERRNBARES
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial EZ EAmMBRERESEE- - BRIEERE
statements of the current period and are therefore the key FERTAF L AHBEEZZTERERE
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s BEMEBERT RMPRBAEEZEMHEETS
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure EBEHEPNEEERBBEARMEBYEIE
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, MHmm T EERSF TUHEE  FE
we determine that a matter should not be communicated R EEEam RS PRt EHEEIE -
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing

so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

Moore CPA Limited ARESHRESTMEEAERLA
Certified Public Accountants HEDIA

Leung Yu Ngong RFEER

Practising Certificate Number: P06734 HEZEZMRYE - P06734

Hong Kong, 31 March 2024 EB —ZE-_ME=A=+—H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

ReEREERkEMEZEKE R

For year ended 31 December 2023 #Z-—F-—=F+-H=+—HIFEF

2023 2022
—E-= =
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Jioka AR¥FT ARETF T
Revenue Wz
Goods and services o R R 5 3,186,542 3,333,142
Rental of investment properties KEMEHES 5 116,213 115,826
Total revenue FEU@IN 3,302,755 3,448,968
Cost of sales and services 3 E & IR TS Ak AN (2,792,884) (2,491,971)
Gross profit EF 509,871 956,997
Other income E A 7 3,745 7,414
Other losses, net HiEE - F58 8 (40,378) (38,670)
Change in fair value of investment & & W% 2 NF(EE
properties 16 (394,681) (7,111)
Change in fair value of derivative AHBRERFRZITET A
component of convertible bond D2 ANFEEES 26 6,320 101,430
Write-down of inventories of MEFEMR
properties 18 (298,450) -
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of HEWRBARZ
subsidiaries Wz, (E518) 28 2,274 (401,989)
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R & X (86,501) (202,180)
Administrative expenses THFAX (67,184) (125,700)
Finance costs B & B A 9 (130,595) (117,778)
(Loss)/profit before income tax AT SR A (B1E) %A 10 (495,579) 172,413
Income tax credit/(expense) FrieEfiEe  (Fx%) 11 73,165 (158,137)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (BE) H5H (422,414) 14,276
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

SEeREBEREMEZEKRER

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F - =41+ _-HA=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E=-= —ZF-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &t ARETF T AR For
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Ht2mH(&E) W=
income
Item that may be reclassified HEAEE 7 EE B
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH -
Exchange differences arising HMEINRERELE IE
on translation of foreign HER
operations (24,766) 6,276
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  AFEEZ2E (EE) YA
for the year BEE (447,180) 20,552
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable AT A+ /E(EREE
to: (BB, &mHl -
— Owners of the Company . WNEIE Z DN (464,567) 42,103
— Non-controlling interests — JEFEAR RE RS 42,153 (27,827)
(422,414) 14,276
Total comprehensive (loss)/income LA RN AT /E(EEE
attributable to: (B8, BB :
— Owners of the Company YIN/NE=IE 7 F =N (489,333) 48,379
- Non-controlling interests - FEERER 42,153 (27,827)
(447,180) 20,552
(Losses)/earnings per share Bk (&8),/ &BF
Basic (RMB cents) ERN(ARED) 14 (9.13) 0.83
Diluted (RMB cents) BE(ARES) 14 (9.13) 0.16
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE BRI R

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

2023 2022
—E-= =
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
B aF AR¥FT ARETF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  BENEKE 15 48,452 57,694
Investment properties wEME 16 10,233,800 10,734,280
Deferred tax assets REFIEE E 17 156,514 74,601
10,438,766 10,866,575
Current assets REBEE
Inventories of properties MERSE 18 11,049,745 12,971,557
Contract costs BB 22 64,228 76,682
Trade and other receivables and FE U BE T K% H b pE U SR8
prepayment LA K2 78+ R IE 19 959,406 886,185
Deposits for land use rights for FEXRDYED
properties under development for  + b {F gL 4
sale 53,270 105,689
Prepaid income tax B FTIER 128,122 91,904
Amounts due from related JE U 8 3 A B 5B
companies 36(a) 78,262 66,322
Amounts due from non-controlling & i & A B JE 5 I A% B
shareholders of subsidiaries g 36(a) 236,461 257,550
Restricted bank deposits PR IR 1T 3K 20 250,704 487,926
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIE S 20 148,063 310,947
12,968,261 15,254,762
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables and FE SRR FR DA N L Ath B F R
accruals IBHNESTER 21 3,470,643 2,208,681
Debt component of convertible ARKRES 2 EBHD
bond 26 451,435 -
Promissory note A ER 27 546,062 -
Contract liabilities AEHBE 22 6,253,719 8,977,138
Income tax payable JET TSR 586,556 482,271
Amounts due to related companies & {~f B8 38 A 7] FUIE 36(a) 24,542 10,873
Amount due to the ultimate JE A B A% 12 AR AR SR FRIB
controlling shareholder 36(a) 99,626 99,626
Bank and other borrowings due —FRIEBZRITE
within one year Huite 23 2,802,910 1,933,730
14,235,493 13,712,319
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE(BE) BEFE (1,267,232) 1,542,443
Total assets less current EERAERABARE
liabilities 9,171,534 12,409,018
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BRI R

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HIFZF

2023 2022
—E-= —E -
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Jioka AR#¥F T ARMF T
Capital and reserves EXRR B
Share capital s 7R 24 42,890 42,890
Reserves EE= 4,349,407 4,838,740
Equity attributable to owners of RATHER ANELER
the Company 4,392,297 4,881,630
Non-controlling interests JEPE AR R RS 217,075 192,711
Total equity AR 4,609,372 5,074,341
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amount due to a related company  JEft— & F3&E N 7 518 36(a) - 223,750
Debt component of convertible AR ES 2B
bond 26 - 404,491
Derivative component of convertible A[#&EA 2 /74 T A
bond =i 26 - 6,179
Promissory note O B 27 - 519,026
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFI B A& 17 1,317,253 1,394,941
Bank and other borrowings due —FREEBZBRITR
after one year HuiEe 23 3,244,909 4,786,290
4,562,162 7,334,677
9,171,534 12,409,018

FOSE256EH VAU HEANR-ZE -
F=ZA=+— EI%%%A%E/&&&TZEX
T UYHETIHNESRREZSEE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 256
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 31 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Guo Jiadi Wang Chao
2003 THE
Director Director

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBHEX

For year ended 31 December 2023 BE=—FT=—=F+-A=+—HIFEF

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRAREARG
Retained
Share-based Property  profits/ Non-
Share Share compensaon  Capital  Merger  Statutory Translation Other ~ revaluation (accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  feseve reserve reserve losses) ~ Subtotal interests Total
Rt ARfHAEE & aft HE B8 B HEER REEA/ FER

ey R 2RREE fifi i i i fifi B8 (RHER) it it it
RSO R0 FBOI RUEOOD  ANBWO RSO RUEOO0  FBLIO RUEOD)  RUBUOO  ABON  RUBODD  AUBD
ARETL ARETL AREFL ARETL ARETL AREFL ARK T ARETE ARETT ARETE T

NER A

(Note ) (Noteil) — (Noteii)

At1 January 2022 WZE-ZE-F-R 280 83369 12,03 155 (1836270 195414 (13984) 1207336 1008997 3178682 483605 263609 5,105,661
Proft for the year BEEH - - - - - - - - R 1 B/ 177 R TV
Bichange differences arsing on transation ~~ AEJEEKELZEREE

of foreign operations - - - - - - 6,276 - - - 6,76 - 6,276

Total comprehensive (expenselincome FERRE(RR) M BE

for the year - - - - - - 6,276 - - 2103 8319 [27.807) 20,552
Lapse of share options B RSN - - 2801 - - - - - - - 28010 (@90m) G182
At 31 December 2022 i gl o 42890 833,698 9235 7255 (1636272) 195414 (7708) 120733 1008997 3220785 4,881,630 192,711 507434
(Loss)fprofit for the year RER (BE) /&7 - - - - - - - - - (4456 (464,567) 0153 4
Exchange differences arising on tranlation of A ESEZHEL 7B 2E

foreign operations - - - - - - (24,766) - - - 24,766) - (24,766)

Total comprehensive (expense)income KERRE(RR)/YALE

for the year - - - - - - (24,766) - - (d6A5en)  (489.333) Q153 ([W7180)
Disposal of a subsidary HE-HHBAR - - - - - - - - - - - Ry (17789
31 December 2023 i 3 g = el 280 833698 9,235 725 (1636270 195414 (32474 120733% 1008997 2756218 4392297 207075 4609372
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEREER

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve represents deemed contribution from equity
owner regarding to the waiver of loan for funding the
construction of an investment property in 2012.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the share
capital of the combining entities against cash consideration
paid and other considerations issued by China Sandi Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) upon completion of business
combination under common control.

The statutory reserve represents the amount transferred
from net profit for the year of the subsidiaries established in
the Peoples Republic of China (the “PRC") charged on the
subsidiaries’ PRC statutory financial statements) in accordance
with the relevant PRC laws until the statutory service reaches
50% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The
statutory reserve cannot be reduced except for setting off the
accumulated losses or increasing capital.

The other reserve, which is the contributed surplus account of
the Company, comprises of:

(i) the difference arising from the share premium reduction
which was being effective and approved by the Bermuda
Registrar of Companies on 11 May 2016. Under the
share premium reduction, entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company as
at 29 February 2016 in the sum of RMB3,049,440,000
be reduced, with part of the credit arising therefrom
being applied to offset the accumulated losses of the
Company in the sum of RMB1,824,634,000 in full
and the remaining balance of the credit in the sum of
RMB1,224,806,000 being credited to the other reserve
of the Company.

(i)  RMB17,470,000 debited to other reserve of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019
represents the difference between the amount of
consideration shares issued and the carrying amount
of non-controlling interest acquired plus the waiver
of amount due to non-controlling shareholder of
RMB38,588,000. The waiver of amount due to
non-controlling shareholder is a non-cash transaction of
the Group.

Property revaluation reserve represents the accumulated
amount of the differences between the carrying amount
and fair value of right-of-use assets and properties under
development upon transfer of such assets to investment
properties, and the related deferred tax effects recognized in
respect of such differences.

Wiz -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ - ZF—

SEF= A= —HILFE

2023 2022
—E-= = —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fr ARETFIT
Operating activities RETH
(Loss)/profit before income tax BT E AT (EiE) % F (495,579) 172,413
Adjustments for: TE
Finance costs ELE= DN 130,595 117,778
Bank interest income WITH B WA (2,206) (3,057)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERZETE
equipment 9,269 5,908
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEME QR
Z (W) KB (2,274) 401,989
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BEK&E
and equipment Z () KR (41) 304
Write-down of inventories of properties Y TF EWUR 298,450 -
Loss on disposal of an investment property HEREMEZEHE 38,161 -
Loss on disposal of an inventory of property PEFEMEER 458 -
Change in fair value of investment "EMEZ NFEE
properties 394,681 7,111
Change in fair value of derivative ABMBRES2ITETR
component of convertible bond oz FEE (6,320) (101,430)
Exchange loss b 3 B5 18 17,936 38,391
Operating cash flows before movements in BEEEFI LR
working capital EmE 383,130 639,407
Decrease in inventories of properties MEFERD 1,673,434 1,310,737
Increase in trade and other receivables and JRE LT AR K B L th JIE UK IE
prepayments VA B B RRIE I 0N (50,082) (200,175)
Decrease in deposits for land use rights for FEERPYWEZ LMIE
properties under development for sale AR e R 52,419 -
Increase in trade and other payables and JE 1~J BR 3R DA Rz B b FE 15 3R
accruals H R EFTE R 199,796 693,558
Decrease in contract costs G KA, 12,454 44,381
Decrease in contract liabilities BREERD (2,262,817)  (1,329,144)
Cash generated from operations KEXEBES 8,334 1,158,764
Income taxes paid BEATER (18,370) (37,241)
Net cash (used in)/generated from meESES (FTR) B
operating activities BHE&FHE (10,036) 1,121,523
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For year ended 31 December 2023 # = —

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HmERIRER

—SE A=t —ALER

— =

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB'OOO
AR Fr ARETFT
Investing activities REED
Bank interest received BEUWERITHE 2,206 3,057
Proceeds on disposal of property, plantand  HEW% - BER&EE 2
equipment FT5 K18 190 -
Proceeds on disposal of an investment HERBEYEZFEHRIA
property 154,354 -
Repayment from related companies BENRER - 49,227
Advance to non-controlling shareholders of [ /& 2 & 3F 12 AR A% R
Subsidiaries BR - (29)
Repayment from non-controlling shareholders M & 2 7 FE % IR AR SR AE K
of subsidiaries 21,089 302,063
Placement of restricted bank deposits GFEXRBRHIRITER (1,840,311) (1,481,425)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits REZRHIRITER 2,077,534 1,502,663
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BMEIKE (229) (1,073)
Payments for investment properties REMENK (73,297) (118,307)
Advance to third parties BT - (2,500)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow on disposals of HERBATZES (GRE)
subsidiaries YN (35,223) 66,603
Net cash generated from investing REZHMBREEH
activities 306,313 320,279

RE=ZAZRARALT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ - ZF—

ZFLTA=1—HIFFE

2023 2022
—E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
Financing activities Rl EEE
Interest paid for bank and other borrowings  R{TRHEMEEZ
ERHE (381,594) (376,229)
Interest paid for promissory note AW EEZBEMNFE (29,135) (19,754)
Interest paid for convertible bonds AR ES 2 B F B (4,141) (4,296)
Advance from third parties EZFRR 1,192,699 128,840
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERTREMEE (799,056) (1,672,712)
New bank and other borrowings raised R T R EMER 137,696 1,015,830
Repayment to third parties ME=ZFEX (306,932) -
Repayment to related companies MEAERNBIENR (257,600)  (2,163,147)
Advance from related companies EEFCWNEIE=E 13,668 1,361,484
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEBHFAREFHE (434,395)  (1,729,984)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEHL FHE (138,118) (288,183)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUzBREeRELEE
beginning of year 310,947 592,854
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNESTE R g 2 B (24,766) 6,276
Cash and cash equivalents FR2EERALEE
at the end of year 148,063 310,947
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the Stock Exchange).
Its parent and ultimate parent is United Century
International Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (BVI). The ultimate controlling party is Mr. Guo
Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”). The address of registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are located
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda and Office Unit E, 9/F, Golden Sun Centre,
59-67 Bonham Strand West, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

—RER
ARABARBREIMHRL AR
ERAR -EBRMREBBERS
FrERAR (IBRFT]) e E&
N A R &R A BUnited Century
International Limited (7 % B & &
HE(RBEXES])) MK
pA/NCIDIEE = § - S248 Rk
E(MFxEE]) c AR zEMIEE
RN B EEME 2l o B R
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda & &
IR X R A E59-679 ¢ HE B H 09
BEE o

ARel/—RAEEERRR - EE

EMNBRAZ E2EBEANMIEIT7 -

Z2ERAMBHRENARE (AR
B2 REARRZWEEER -

=113

REZAZKRARAE 2023FH 107



APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The material account policies and methods of
computation used by the Group in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 are consistent with those adopted in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022, except for the adoption of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs as explained in below.

The HKICPA has issued several new and amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group.

Insurance Contracts and
related amendments

HKFRS 17 (including
the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform-
Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Policies
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Except as described below, the application of the
above new or amendments to HKFRSs has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and position for the current and prior periods and/or
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HILFEF

FE R FTE] KRS BRI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HIFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements is amended to replace all instances
of the term “significant accounting policies” with
“material accounting policy information”. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.
If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure
material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgments (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures
and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance but has affected the disclosure of the
Group’s material accounting policies set out in note 4.

In accordance with the guidance set out in the
amendments, accounting policy information that is
standardised information, or information that only
duplicates or summarises the requirements of the
HKFRSs, is considered immaterial accounting policy
information and is no longer disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements so as not to
obscure the material accounting policy information
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

FERFE KRBT RN
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Al) &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 BE=—FT=—=F+-A=+—HIFEF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments narrow the
scope of the recognition exemption of deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15 and
24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer applies
to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
application of the amendments in the current year had
no material impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HIFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAMIRKEITERNE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BREEA(BEBMBHREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS all) &)
("HKFRSs") (continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but EEMENKRERZEEITER
not yet effective M| EZEA
The Group has not early applied the following AREBTHIEEERULTDEGE
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are M AN 2 A& BB 1SR &S XER -
not yet effective:
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
BEHB%
Z &R H
FEHBBR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
E;%Hﬁ“ﬂ#&%ﬁ,ﬁﬂ FI0SE NG KREEHHEBEAFXEGE AR ENEED FE
GEHERIE285: (BFTAR) EFFE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2024

Non-current and Related Amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
BB ST ERFE 15 (BFTA) BESHE ﬁ//lébi#u@b&ﬁfﬁﬁ/%aﬁ Z2ES —_E-WFE—H—H
RZERI (ZEZFF)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
BB EREIT(BFTAR) HMERENIERBDAR —ZE-_WMF—-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
ERMBREERFEI165% ErERNEERE —ZE-_MF-—H—H
(EFTAR)
Amendments to HKAS 7 and  Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
HKFRS 7
BB ERETRREBNE HEMRE T —E-_HWHF—-H—H
WwEERIFT (BFTAX)
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
ERGERE215 (BFTAR) BRZ ARk —E-_hF—-H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of NEB FAEFGZERRENE ME
what the impact of these developments is expected to MEARTEHIE A E o 25 A 1F -
be in the period of initial adoption. So far the directors RANTIEERE HRNZEEAR
of the Company have concluded that the adoption of KNG A REELEST A
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the & o

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the
consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participants ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

1 1 2 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in conformity with the principles
applicable to a going concern basis. The
applicability of these principles is dependent upon
continued availability of adequate finance or
attaining profitable operations in future and the
success of the below plans and measures.

—F oS+ Af—AILEE

— =
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ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁizgﬁﬁ

TES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
RMB422,414,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023, and as at that date, the Group
had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB1,267,232,000 and current liabilities of
approximately RMB14,235,493,000, including i)
bank and other borrowings due within one year
amounting to RMB2,802,910,000; ii) convertible
bond and promissory note due to a substantial
shareholder amounting to approximately
RMB997,497,000, in aggregate, which are
repayable on demand; iii) amounts due to
related companies and the ultimate controlling
shareholder amounting to approximately
RMB24,542,000 and RMB99,626,000, respectively,
which are repayable on demand; and iv) certain
advance from third parties, which are included
in other payables, amounting to approximately
RMB1,505,893,000, in aggregate, which are
repayable on demand. However, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents amounting to only
approximately RMB148,063,000.

The above conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. The validity of the use of the
going concern basis in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is dependent
upon the Group’s ability to generate adequate
cash flows in order to meet its obligations as and
when the obligations fall due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAUGRECHBHER2EE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEEHHREEH »)

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 3.1 RAGEUBBRZEE(H)
financial statements (continued)
Going concern basis (continued) FEAEEE (&)
Notwithstanding the above results and financial BEH Pt 28 R ERR -
condition, the consolidated financial statements AR NN S ERLE
have been prepared on a going concern basis, BB B KN FE SR A
as t]twe| dlre.c(;torstlof ’E[hethCo]ran[Janyllha\l/sltg|veg EEETEE R U ERE
careful consideration to the future liquidity an RS BT E A

performance of the Group and its available sources
of financing in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to continue as a

MARRBEERRBANE
AABERIR - NEBE S HKI

going concern. Certain measures have been taken %?%Eﬁ%i}ﬁﬂ%}ﬁ@ﬁ@@
by the Group to mitigate its liquidity pressure and 7 &\Ey*ﬁﬁﬂﬁf%ﬂﬁﬁ BEE
to improve its financial position which include, but ARVIATFIEA -

are not limited to, the followings:

(i) regarding the convertible bond and ) SOBmBRESEEEALE
promissory note, the Group has amended Ems AEBECEIHE
the relevant terms such that the maturity s WAl -
date shall be changed from 30 January 2024 —mE—FB=-+ABENA
to 30 January 2029 whereas a right shall be . _hi:ﬂ =+R

granted to the holder of the convertible bond
and promissory note, who is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and beneficially

i A & BE 75 B R 1B
FBEAN(RARRABEER

owned by Mr. Guo, to require the Company %&Eﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ%iﬁé%ﬁ)
to redeem all of the outstanding convertible ARERARAIKERR
bond and promissory note on demand. Bl AT M AT AT AR E
Details of the amendments of terms and 7 NAEHRIE - BRER]
conditions of the convertible bond and Al RR E & M R E I E
promissory note are set out in the Company’s REIEENFBEHRRARD
announcements dated 30 January 2024, FAMA—Z—E—A
21 February 2024 and 13 March 2024. The =+B. . —ZE-—m&E-A
maturity date of the convertible bond and —+-—gR-—T-—pmE=
promissory note have been extended to 30 AL-=HMAL - AaE

January 2029, however, a right of repayable
on demand was given to the holder of the
convertible bond and promissory note. In this

B MA R EHE/EIEA
BiERZ-_ZE-_NF— A

regard, the substantial shareholder provided =8B A ATSREE
an undertaking, in writing, to the Company SRARZERA NG E
that the substantial shareholder would not HERER -FLHME
exercise the right to demand repayment from FERRERARAER
the Company at least one year from the date EHAR RAETERR
of approval of the consolidated financial SR ES A ERE
statements, HEIRAED —FI170H#

MERARNRBER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HILFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

(i) regarding the amounts due to related
companies and ultimate controlling
shareholder, the related companies and
ultimate controlling shareholder provided
undertakings, in writing, to the Company
that they would not exercise the right to
demand repayment from the Company at
least one year from the date of approval of
the consolidated financial statements;

(iii) for borrowings which will be maturing before
31 December 2024, the Group will actively
negotiate with the banks before they fall
due to secure their renewals so as to ensure
that the necessary funds to meet the Group’s
working capital and financial requirements
in the future will continue to be met.
The directors do not expect to experience
significant difficulties in renewing most of
these bank borrowings upon their maturities
and there is no indication that these bank
lenders will not renew the existing bank
borrowings upon the Group’s request. The
directors have evaluated the relevant facts
and circumstances available to them and are
of the opinion that the Group would be able
to renew such borrowings upon maturity.
Historically, the Group successfully renewed
bank borrowings upon maturities amounting
to approximately RMB1,111,960,000 during
the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MURESUBERR2ERE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHTHEER 2

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated 3.1 RAEGBEUMBHRERZEE(E)
financial statements (continued)

Going concern basis (continued) JEEARE B E (4F)

(iv) all the bank and other borrowings, (ivy, FTERITEREMEE L
amounting to approximately AR ¥6,047,819,0007T
RMB6,047,819,000, have been secured EHBEEWMEHNDARE
by investment properties of approximately 9,604,520,0007T * T
RMB9,604,520,000, inventories of properties B4 AR®6,631,866,000
of approximately RMB6,631,866,000 TREHERBREHAR
and trade receivables of approximately #3,589,000 L fEH #
RMB3,589,000;

(v among the other payables, there are (v) REMERNKIEFR  BXK
repayable on demand balances of BE=ZTHWARERE
approximately RMB390,000,000 advances ENBRERODARK
from third parties, with which, subsequent 390,000,0007T * A F 4
to the year end date, the management Hi&  EIEEAIHE &G
successfully liaised to set the maturities to be AR ERSBEAME
at least one year from the date of approval WRALERBRHELD —
of the consolidated financial statements; F

(vi) the Group would sell the investment iy REBBANBERLHER
properties in order to improve the Group's EME  UREAEED
financial position, liquidity and cash flows, if BN mEBES MR
necessary; BME

(vii) the Group will continue to implement plans (viiy REBBEBEEHTEN
and measures to accelerate the pre-sales and B NRFEZERMER
sales of its properties under development and BIELENDRIYWEN
completed properties held for sale, and to TEEREE - WNRKE
speed up the collection of sales proceeds so HEFMBRIE  RELR
as to generate adequate net cash inflows; HRE S MAEEE

(viii) the Group applies cost control measures in (viii) 725 B 5185 & AR R AT
cost of sales and administrative expenses; and i S B ER Ak AN 458 I S e

&

(ix) the Group will also continue to seek for other (ix) AEBTGEESRKEM
alternative financing, such as equity financing BERRE  WRARE -
to finance the settlement of its existing UWRENHEREVBEEE
financial obligations and future operating DARRGEEFTIRBES o

expenditures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’s cash flow projections prepared by
management, which cover a period of twelve
months from the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, in light of the above
and taking into account the anticipated cash flows
to be generated from the Group’s operations as
well as the above plans and measures, the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due in the coming twelve
months from the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company consider that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, material uncertainties
exist as to whether the Group is able to achieve its
plans and measures as described above.

Should the Group failed to achieve abovementioned
plans and measures, it might not be able to
continue to operate as a going concern, and
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

1 1 8 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date of the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Groups equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied. i.e. when
control of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and
service (for a bundle of goods and services) that
is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
goods or services.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

1 20 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

For sales of properties, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains the control of the
completed property when the key was delivered to
the customers and the customer has obtained the
ownership of the property. The deposit received
for sale of properties are presented as contract
liabilities on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For provision of property management and
related services, the Group agrees the fixed rate
for services with the customers upfront. As the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance,
the revenue is recognised over time when the
performance obligations are satisfied. Monthly
payment of the transaction is invoiced to the
customers in advance each month.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract, that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right
to consideration in an amount that corresponds
directly with the value of the Group’s performance
completed to date, the Group recognises revenue
in the amount to which the Group has the right to
invoice.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed
to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.

For advance payments received from customers
before the transfer of the associated goods
or services in which the Group adjusts for the
promised amount of consideration for a significant
financing component, the Group applies a
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. The relevant
interest expenses during the period between the
advance payments were received and the transfer
of the associated goods and services are accounted
for on the same basis as other borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Contract costs

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

The Group recognises sales commissions as an
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset
so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a
contract if these costs would otherwise have been
fully amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Leases
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model. Variable lease payments
for operating leases that depend on an index or
a rate are estimated and included in the total
lease payments to be recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as revenue when they arise.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the re-translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR G MR AR M A

For year ended 31 December 2023 BEZE=—F=—=F+=-A=+—HIFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before tax because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properly over time,
rather than through sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as right-of-use assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position
except for those that are classified as investment
properties or inventories. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets less their residual values over
their useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

1 28 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR G MR AR M A

For year ended 31 December 2023 BEZE=—F=—=F+=-A=+—HIFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation including
properties under construction for such purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as
part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction.

The Group transfers an inventory of property to
investment property when there is a change in
use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and
for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the
ordinary course of business, which is evidenced
by the inception of an operating lease to another
party. Any difference between the fair value of the
property at the date of transfer and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group transfers a property under development
or a leasehold land classified as right-of-use
assets becomes an investment property because
its use has changed as it evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the property, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, and contract costs

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment, and contract costs to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, and contract costs are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

1 30 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For year ended 31 December 2023 # = —

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Inventories of properties

Properties under development for sale which are
intended to be sold under the ordinary course of
business upon completion of development and
properties for sale are classified as current assets.
Except for the leasehold land element which
is measured at cost model in accordance with
the accounting policies of right-of-use assets,
properties under development for sale/properties
for sale are carried at the lower of cost and NRV.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis
including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. NRV represents the
estimated selling price for properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must
incur to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale are
transferred to properties for sale upon completion.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

1 3 2 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HIFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEGRESUBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEEHHREEH »)

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

32 FESTHHRER (&)

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
applies.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial
assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HILFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEGESUBERRZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESITHRE
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

3.2 FESHHEER (&)

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related companies,
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
restricted/pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) and other items (financial
guarantees contracts and trade receivables for
rental income) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers
without significant financing component. The ECL
on these assets are collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instruments as
at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and quantitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 BE=—FT=—=F+-A=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

J an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instruments
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk for a
particular financial instrument, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,

e  existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtors
ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

1 3 6 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HIFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAEGESUBBERZEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FESHTHEER 2
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 FESTHBRER (B

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) EETAE)

Financial assets (continued) HBEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets and other items Hﬁi‘*ﬁ?&%\%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ'l

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 FORBETRET 2 EAM

(continued) BB 2 RE (&)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued) iy EERRBRKELAE)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above A am bl 5T A A5 R A -
assessment, the Group presumes that the ﬁﬁ & #1538 B iR 30
credit risk on a financial asset has increased AR EEERENBE
significantly since initial recognition when éf?f.:.fﬁﬂ B ¥ R
contractual payments are more than ARE K@ EA - BRIER
30 days past due, unless the Group has ’glﬁﬁ/\ﬁET%?ﬁ
reasonable and supportable information that KIr] & FZ - BIERIGR ©
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes FE LAt AEER
that the credit risk on a financial instrument HiemIEETEANR
has not increased significantly since initial EEHAEEEERR -
recognition if the financial instrument AlemTIANGEERRS
is determined to have low credit risk at ) 45 T 3R LA 2R I A i 2 5
the reporting date. A debt instrument is MmefWBIATHER B
determined to have low credit risk if i) Iﬂrﬁi?yﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬂ
the financial instrument has a low risk of R Ne M T AREKEY
default, the borrower has a strong capacity EN )1%?7\/\5"?4 HHW
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations BEHEENRBITHEN
in the near term and iii) adverse changes BeRETNI)RBLHE
in economic and business conditions in the &%ﬁ“ﬂkﬂﬁ’]Tﬂ A &) Al
longer term may, but will not necessarily, BEET—EHRERAR
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its ﬁﬁi\/\?’] RemBEENEE
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group N BHBEERNRNEK
considers a financial asset to have low credit I EEFTRABIEERR
risk when it has an internal or external credit (HBE2HERNER) -
rating of investment grade as per globally E'Jﬂi’ilg?ﬁiiﬂﬁf%ﬁé
understood definitions. EERRRIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date
that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitments is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing impairment.
In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition of financial guarantee
contracts, the Group considers the changes in
the risk that the specified debtor will default
on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RAUGBEUBBRZ2EER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEEHHREEH »)

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 FESHBXER(E)

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) THITAE)
Financial assets (continued) BB E (&)

Impairment of financial assets and other items MBEERBBMBEHRE LR

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 FORBETRET 2 EAM

(continued) BB 2 RE (&)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (il BEIEEREVBKBEE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when E-EHAZHEHUUKEE
one or more events that have a detrimental FBEARKRREREKEE
impact on the estimated future cash flows of FENEHEER - IR
the financial asset have occurred. Evidence of XUBEEEHBEER
credit-impairment includes observable data B -HBEEERENEER
about the following events: BIES AT S H) AT ER

REE
(a) significant financial difficulty of the (a) fEFmAHZEITHB

HEREM RN EE

borrower or issuer;

(b) a breach of contract such as a default or (b) BRAEY WKL
past due event; BEARY BN

(¢) the lender of the borrower, for (0 MEBRAELER
economic or contractual reasons relating ERAEHREE
to the borrowers financial difficulty, FAMBE B @
having granted to the borrower a WEEREHNER
concession that the lender would not KTERAEEM
otherwise consider; or BRTTEELD

EL K

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation.

Impairment of financial assets and other
items subject to impairment assessment
under

RE=ZAZRARALT

d fERATTESSE
B S AN B A B #
B4 -

M5 EERAEETHREN
2 IR B ZRE

2023F

139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(iv) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group
uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix
taking into consideration historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
For a lease receivable, the cash flows used
for determining the ECL is consistent with
the cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.
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For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MAUGRECHBHER2EE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEEHHREEH »)

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 FESTHBRER (B

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) EETAE)

Financial assets (continued) HBEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets and other items MBEERBBMBEHRE LR

subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 FORBETRET 2 EAM

(continued) BB 2 RE (&)

(iv) Measurement and recognition of ECL (iv) stENERBHEEEIE
(continued) (&)
For a financial guarantee contract, as the MM BEREHOME - &
Group is required to make payments only RAEBEENREB AR
in the event of a default by the debtor in ARBBEMERIAZIF
accordance with the terms of the instrument REMFHIE - WEHEE
that is guaranteed, the ECL is the present EiEATEHAFEEEMNE
value of the expected payments to reimburse IR ZEEBBRIELZ
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs WE MZERELRE
less any amounts that the Group expects to AEEEHEFEA &
receive from the holder, the debtor or any A AT E b 5 W 2
other party. ER]EHE -
For ECL on financial guarantee contracts HRELETERN X
for which the effective interest rate cannot MBEREONBEREE
be determined, the Group will apply a BE - AEEKERRBR
discount rate that reflects the current market EAMSHEEREER
assessment of the time value of money and B A RS ERE 2R
the risks that are specific to the cash flows EMNRAROBIRE - B(E
but only if, and to the extent that, the risks EEERE L BAAE
are taken into account by adjusting the cash BRI & R BRARE E R
shortfalls being discounted. o o
Lifetime ECL for trade receivables from et kmEBIE R R AEREE
contracts with customers are considered on EEAH (MATERBKEE
a collective basis taking into consideration ER) BFEHNESEZ
past due information and relevant credit EWEER 2 2 BEEEE
information such as forward looking EENIRERBEETIUE
macroeconomic information. J& o
Impairment of financial assets and other MEEENRBEITRER
items subject to impairment assessment hz BEMIER 2R E
under
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

(iv) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

For collective assessment, the Group
takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping:
. Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

J External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents
of each separate group continues to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

Except for financial guarantee contracts,
the Group recognises an impairment loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount with the
exception of trade and other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amounts due to related companies,
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and
ultimate controlling shareholder bank and other
borrowings, promissory note and debt component
of convertible bond are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Convertible bond

A conversion option that will be settled other than
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Group’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component
and derivative components are recognised at fair
value. In subsequent periods, the debt component
of the convertible bond is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The derivative
component is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bond are allocated to the debt and
derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative component are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of
the debt portion and amortised over the period of
the convertible bond using the effective interest
method.
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For year ended 31 December 2023 BEZE=—F=—=F+=-A=+—HIFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s material accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining the
Group's deferred taxation on investment properties,
the directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result,
the Group has recognised the deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of all investment properties at enterprise
income tax (EIT) rate. The carrying amount of deferred
taxation on change in fair value of investment properties
at 31 December 2023 was RMB1,148,233,000 (2022:
RMB1,246,903,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties of RMB10,233,800,000 (2022:
RMB10,734,280,000) are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by an independent professional
valuer (the "Valuer”). In determining fair value, the
Valuer has adopted market and income valuation
methodologies which involve certain estimates of
market conditions. The management has exercised
their judgment to determine the relevant assumptions
used in the valuation are reflective of the current
market conditions. Changes to these assumptions as
detailed in note 16, would result in changes in the fair
values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Net realisable value of inventories of properties

Inventories of properties are stated at the lower of the
cost and NRV. The directors of the Company make
significant judgments in determining the NRV of these
inventories of properties. The NRV of inventories of
properties is the estimated selling price for properties
less estimated costs to completion and costs necessary
to make the sales, which are determined based on
prevailing real estate market conditions in the PRC.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Net realisable value of inventories of properties
(continued)

Based on the experience of the directors of the
Company and the nature of the inventories of
properties, the directors of the Company determine
the NRV of estimated selling price of these inventories
of properties by reference to the estimated market
prices of properties, which takes into account a
number of factors including recent prices achieved
by similar properties in the same project or similar
projects, and the prevailing and forecasted real estate
market conditions in the PRC. The directors of the
Company estimate the future costs to completion of
the inventories of properties by reference to the actual
development costs of other similar completed projects
of the Group, adjusted by certain current market
data. The directors of the Company estimate the cost
necessary to make the sale by reference to the historical
selling and marketing expenses incurred.

If there is an increase in future costs to completion
or a decrease in estimated selling price, the NRV will
decrease and this may result in write-down of the
inventories of properties. Such write-down requires
the use of judgment and estimates. If the expectation
is different from the original estimate, it would impact
the carrying value of the inventories of properties in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

In addition, given the volatility of the property market
and the unique nature of individual properties, the
actual outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may
be higher or lower than that estimated at the end of
the reporting period. Any difference between actual
outcome and the estimates would affect profit or loss
in future.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
inventories of properties located in the PRC amounted
to RMB11,049,745,000 (2022: RMB12,971,557,000),
net of write-down of RMB306,213,000 (2022:
RMB7,763,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of the tax
varies amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities
of the PRC and certain projects of the Group have not
finalised their LAT calculations and payments with the
local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
estimate is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related income tax provisions. The
Group recognised the LAT based on management’s
best estimates. The final tax outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, and
these differences will impact the income tax expense
and the related income tax provisions in the periods in
which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for the unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses and temporary
differences can be utilised. Significant management
estimation is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax assets of
RMB156,514,000 (2022: RMB74,601,000) have been
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables
and amounts due from related companies and a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables from contracts with customers.
The provision rates are based on ageing of debtors as
groupings of various debtors taking into consideration
the Group’s historical default rates and forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable and
available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

Trade receivables from rental income, other
receivables, amounts due from related companies
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are
assessed for ECL individually and the provision rates are
based on the historical default rates, past due status
and the financial capability of individual debtor taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable, supportable and available without undue
cost or effort.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade and other receivables and amounts due from
related companies and non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries are disclosed in notes 19 and 36(a)
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

REVENUE 5. W&
Disaggregation of revenue W %= 5
For the reporting period
REBRA

Property Property
Segments development investment Total
2 &P MEBRR MERE gt

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AREFT AREFT AREFT

Types of goods or services & = IR T & Bl

Sales of properties MEHE
— Sales of residential units - EEEMHEE 2,686,932 - 2,686,932
— Sales of commercial units — FgE BRI E 67,455 - 67,455
— Sales of office units - WREBAHE 367,865 - 367,865
— Sales of car parking spaces - {2 E {7 §4& 49,377 - 49,377
Property management and ¥ E 2 MHBE R
related fee income PN - 14,913 14,913
Revenue from contracts with KB & F 4 49U A
customers within scope of (BET I HE &R
HKFRS 15 FISHEBEA) 3,171,629 14,913 3,186,542
Rental income e WA - 116,213 116,213
3,171,629 131,126 3,302,755
Geographical market & T %
Mainland China N 3,171,629 131,126 3,302,755
Timing of revenue Wk 228 e 58 B
recognition
At a point in time 7 5 18 B 5] 2 3,171,629 - 3,171,629
Over time N—ER R - 14,913 14,913
3,171,629 14,913 3,186,542
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) W5 (4E)
Set out below is the reconciliation of revenue from TXHEWKBEEAEAA ZWZEESY
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in HBERPIHENSTERLER

the segment information:

For the reporting period

BEHA
Property Property
Segments development investment Total
P NEZRRE MERE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFT ARETT

Revenue disclosed in DEER T EN

segment information W 28
External customer INER R P 3,171,629 131,126 3,302,755
Less: rental income o e A - (116,213) (116,213)

Revenue from contracts with KB EF & 4
Customers WA 3,171,629 14,913 3,186,542
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RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

REVENUE (continued) 5. W@
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) Wi o i (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_ZT__F+_A=+—HILFE

Property Property
Segments Development investment Total
7 8P MERER MERE mEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEHRTIT AEETT ARETT

Types of goods or services & = IR T & Bl

Sales of properties MEHE
— Sales of residential units -EEEMHEE 2,781,159 - 2,781,159
- Sales of commercial units - FEEBEREE 80,813 - 80,813
- Sales of office units -WMARBMHE 416,083 - 416,083
— Sales of car parking spaces — {2 {7 §& 18,563 - 18,563
Property management and ¥ E 2 MHBE R
related fee income W A - 36,524 36,524
Revenue from contracts with REZE P& LW A
customers within scope of (BB % REAR]
HKFRS 15 F155REBENA) 3,296,618 36,524 3,333,142
Rental income e WA - 115,826 115,826
3,296,618 152,350 3,448,968
Geographical market & T %
Mainland China R K B 3,296,618 152,350 3,448,968
Timing of revenue Wk 228 e 58 B
recognition
At a point in time 7 5 18 B 5] 2 3,296,618 - 3,296,618
Over time N — EZ B - 36,524 36,524
3,296,618 36,524 3,333,142
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W)

W 3% 5 R ()
TXHINKEEPAN T WEES
MERPRBENS B YEE

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in
the segment information:

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE T _F+_A=+—HILFE

Property Property
Segments Development investment Total
7 FB MERER MERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ANEHRTIT ARETT ARETT

Revenue disclosed in DEER T EN

segment information W 28
External customer SNER B 3,296,618 152,350 3,448,968
Less: rental income B e WA - (115,826) (115,826)
Revenue from contracts with KEEF & 4

customers '@ 3,296,618 36,524 3,333,142

For sales of properties, the Group normally receives
30%-100% of the contract value from customers when
they sign the sale and purchase agreements, while
construction work in respect of the properties being
purchased under the sale and purchase agreements are
still ongoing. For those customers who use mortgage
loans provided by the banks, the remaining amounts of
the total contract values will be paid to the Group from
the banks once the customers meet the requirements of
the banks. These advance payments of 30%-100% of
the contract value from customers resulted in contract
liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until sales of the properties are
recognised as revenue. The Group receives full payment
from the customers before physical delivery of the
completed property.

Revenue is recognised when the customer obtains the
control of the completed property, which occurs when
the key is delivered to the customer and the customer
has obtained the ownership of the property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

REVENUE (continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group promises, in the contracts for sales of the
properties, to ensure that the foundation and main
body are qualified, and meet, national and industrial
standards. If the test fails, the customer has the right to
terminate the contract.

The Group also provides warranty in relation to the sale
of properties, but such warranty does not include the
following situations:

1) Damage to the property and its auxiliary facilities
caused by force majeure;

2) Damage to the property and its ancillary facilities
caused by improper use by the buyer; and

3) Damage to the property and ancillary facilities not
caused by the Group.

W ()

W35 ()
REBRYEWEE NP ELER
MERTEBEAEBRREAEARE
TEEEMARKYR BEARE
BIEAH o

AEBENRMEHESREHBRE K
BRRELTEREATER

) AR ZMERERE
RIEERNIBE

2) HAERERATEMHZDER
HEERBEKREBE &

3) WHEAEEERODERE
£ 15181 -

REZAZKRARAE 2023FH 1 55



REVENUE (continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group has provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain banks in
connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
customers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, if a customer defaults on the
payment of its mortgage during the term of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group
to repay the outstanding amount of the loan and any
accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the
Group is able to retain the customer’s sales deposit and
sell the property to recover any amounts paid by the
Group to the bank. The guarantee period commences
from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans
and ends after the customer obtained the individual
property ownership certificate. The related financial
guarantee contracts issued to banks in favour of
customers in respect of the mortgage loans are not
recognised separately as the fair value of the guarantees
is immaterial at the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and at the end of the reporting periods.

For property management and related services to
the tenants of the Group’s investment properties
and occupants of properties managed by the Group,
the Group agrees the fixed rate for services with
the customers upfront. As the tenants or occupants
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance, the revenue
is recognised over time on a straight line basis when
the performance obligations are satisfied. Monthly
payment of the transaction is invoiced to the customers
in advance each month. The performance obligation in
the contracts with customers are provision of property
management services, security services and janitorial
services.
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

Y & ()

W2 D R ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

REVENUE (continued) 5. W@

Disaggregation of revenue (continued) Wz & (&)

The transaction price allocated to the remaining RZE—_=ZFR_FE_—_F+=A1
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially St+—HoBREEHRTERHNRME(CRE
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 and the D REK) R FERERE
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows: WAz AR ST T

Sales of properties

MEHE

2023 2022
—E-= —E - 4F
RMB'000 RMB’'000

AREFT AEETT

— Within one year - —%FR 3,550,746 3,349,820
— More than one year but not ——FNU L BTHEBAME

more than two years 1,744,944 3,649,887
— More than two years but not -MENALE - BAEBOF

more than five years 958,029 1,977,431

6,253,719 8,977,138

Relating to property management and related services, HYESEBELHABREmMS @ A&
all of the Group’s unsatisfied performance obligations BEFERBIHNERAYBHNE T
for contracts with customers are for periods of one year BWEIR A —F KA T o EH
or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction B R SREER SIS B W
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not WEONEZEZERETELONK S
disclosed. B o

Operating leases REIAE

Rental income

HEWA
2023 2022
—E-= —EF-=
RMB'000 RMB’'000

AREFT AEETTT

Lease payments that are fixed E ks =N 116,028 115,547

Variable lease payments that do not PAEURA 18 Bk A = 2 7]
depend on an index or a rate SHERNK 185 279
116,213 115,826

REZAZKRARAE 2023FH 1 57
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 —

— =

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information regularly reported to the chief

officer of the Company (the chief operating decision

—F+_A=1—HIFE

executive

7EHEH
ARARERRTIESBEEME R
AARTHAR (A EBEBLER

maker (“CODM") of the Group) for the purposes TE([FZTBLZERETE])) THHRE
of resource allocation and assessment of segment MERBE IR NSiRE cmm&
performance focuses on the type of goods and services R EAE - K& ERIEES KR
delivered or provided. The Group's reportable and LR ESIR AL E D I A TR K&
operating segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments EoEBaN
are as follows:
Property development — development and sale of MERRER — WEZRIHEE
properties
Property investment — lease of investment properties MEREEY — HBEKREMERIE
and provision of property management service T EEE IR
Segment revenues and results DB EREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UTAZITREREEDIHE D 2
results by reportable and operating segments: REBWRNESED T
For the reporting period WMEHA
Property Property
Segments development  investment Total
pa: MERR MERE #Et
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ANREFTT
Segment revenue 2 EB U =
External revenue HHANK S 3,171,629 131,126 3,302,755
Segment loss T EEE (31,338) (374,641) (405,979)
Unallocated other income AR o Be H A 7
Unallocated other losses, net 7 2 Bt H th &5 18 /% 58 (1,800)
Unallocated change in RAOBMABIRES 2
fair value of derivative ?)T_&._Iﬂﬁﬁﬁj\z
component of convertible N EE
Bond 6,320
Unallocated corporate AOBEARRX
expenses (4,751)
Unallocated finance costs &5 Bt @b & AR AN (89,376)
Loss before income tax % FriSF Bl B 18 (495,579)
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A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. DEERE (&)

For the reporting period (continued) WEBHRAN(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ZE-_—_f+=-A=t—HL
FE
Property Property
Segments development investment Total
ol MEZRE MERE MEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AR T T ARE T T
Segment revenue Pl
External revenue MR = 3,296,618 152,350 3,448,968
Segment profit 7 B % F 175,959 19,921 195,880
Unallocated other income FoBEAMU A 63
Unallocated other losses, net k% Bt H fib jE5 185 48 (38,393)
Unallocated change in KB MRES 2
fair value of derivative PTETE#LD 2
component of convertible NEEEE
Bond 101,429
Unallocated corporate AN /N3
Expenses (6,511)
Unallocated finance costs R LR & A A (80,055)
Profit before income tax % BT 13 %4 Al v ) 172,413

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment results represent the profit earned
by each segment without allocation of part of other
income, part of other gains and losses, change in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL, change in fair value of
derivative component of convertible bond, unallocated
corporate expenses and part of finance costs. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.

BEnE gt R B 32
AEEZ S BRMER - 2 EFA
BEDSBERRZEM W RHEIMLD
HlgA 2B H et Mg 1R -
BAVEFABRZMBEEZR
FEZ ABREFZITETA
WAZAFEES ROBERFH
X REDBERANEL R -tk T
ERTEIBEERREERERD
FLARBRFEZFE -

RE=ZAZRARALT

2023F 1 59



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HILFEF

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
For the reporting period (continued) HEHR (&)
Segment assets and liabilities DEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and THRARKEFBRT2 $|§)§2,2§§£’ o
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: g2 EBEENRBEST
Segment assets TEEE
2023 2022
—EZ=F —E_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETF T
Property development MR 12,966,428 15,110,857
Property investment MERE 10,317,025 10,861,777
Total segment assets NMEELETE 23,283,453 25,972,634
Unallocated assets: ROBLEE :
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERE 712 1,904
Unallocated corporate assets ROMABEE 122,862 146,799
Consolidated total assets e BEMET 23,407,027 26,121,337
Segment liabilities S EEE
2023 2022
—E-= —ZEF=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T
Property development MEEE 15,475,704 17,573,013
Property investment YEKRE 2,257,650 2,478,270
Total segment liabilities SEBEATE 17,733,354 20,051,283
Unallocated liabilities: Ao AE:
Debt component of convertible bond AIMRESEZEES D 451,435 404,491
Derivative component of convertible ABMRES 2ITETR
bond BB - 6,179
Promissory note A HEE 546,062 519,026
Amount due to a related company FEf —fEEEE A R RUIA 2,656 -
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ao AFAE 64,148 66,017
Consolidated total liabilities GEBERER 18,797,655 21,046,996
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RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
For the reporting period (continued)
Segment liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than certain bank balances and cash and
unallocated corporate assets not attributable to
respective segment.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than debt component of convertible
bond, derivative component of convertible
bond, promissory note, amount due to a related
company and unallocated corporate liabilities not
attributable to respective segment.

6.

EHER (#)
|MEBR (F)
PEEEE)

RERDBEERED S

RS

B D BL &

s BRITEBREDIMNETRITE

BRI AR KRS R
v B EES DR

#B e

NAEE

T4 AL A
BERED

e HMABAREHVNRELRZEDE
HETBRE DN RERES
ZEBE D  ATBRRES 21T
ETAED  AERE - ER
—HBERRFEANKRD R

AIBERIN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. DEERE (&)

For the reporting period (continued) HEEAR (&)
Other segment information B 5254
For the reporting period
HEHH
Total
Property Property  reportable
development  investment segment  Unallocated Total
B
NERR NERE AaE AR E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  AREFL  ARETn  AREFL  ARETZ
Amounts included in the measure of seqment  EAFEX o 7 TEERBE
profit or loss or segment assets: Vi b
Addition of non-current assets REEARYEE 29 86,716 86,945 - 86,945
Bank interest income RAMSRA 2,157 45 2,20 4 2.206
Finance costs HERK (41,218) (1) (41,219) (89.376)  (130,595)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9% - BEREEITE (9,253) - (9,253) (16) (9,269)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LENZ BERREZ U
equipment 4 - 4 - 4
Change in fair value of investment properties &% 7 A TE% - (394,681)  (394,681) - (394,681)
Loss on disposal of an investment property ~ HERENEZEE - (38,161) (38,161) - (38,161)
Write-down of inventories of properties NEFEMR (298,450) - (298,450) - (298,450)
Fxchange loss, net ERER 5B - - - (1,800) (1,800)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-Z--E+-A=+-ALER
Total
Property Property reportable
development ~ investment segment  Unallocated Total
DEL:
NEER NERE HHEE Al 5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFL AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETIL
Amounts included in the measure of seqment i E 7 ER A A EERFEFE
profit or foss or segment assets: JEE:
Addition of non-current assets REFRBEE 1,073 215,628 216,701 - 216,701
Bank interest income FOHBUA 3,024 30 3,054 2 3,056
Finance costs RERA (24,269) (13,454) (37,723 (80,055) (117,778)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %« BiE RZENE (5,885) - (5,885) (23) (5,908)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BERXEL R
equipment 304 - 304 - 304
Change in fair value of investment properties &% 7 ATELE - (7,111) (7,111) - (7.111)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR ER (401,989) - (401,989) : (401,989)
Exchange loss, net EREE T8 - - - (38,366) (38,366)
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RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HIFZF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

The following tables set out information about the
Group's revenue from external customers by cities in the
PRC, based on the location at which the properties are
sold, properties are invested and services are provided.
Information about its non-current assets is analysed by

EHER (#)

ith & & R

TEHIREENE BEPER
2444 AR 75 7 75 0 B 390 T 81 ) 5 B
EEKRENDEE WO ER - I

MBEEENREEMAEIENLE
i e

95

geographical location of assets.

Revenue from external customers: KREIIBEFHWZE :
2023 2022
—E-= —_g-_=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRETF T A BR¥For
Nanping M 504,861 9,015
Xian i 17,584 1,455,478
Baoji BEX 498,893 1,054,215
Jilin HR 6,133 6,980
Shanghai & 399,543 455,579
Yongtai KR - 65,584
Weinan B 169,938 179,631
Fuzhou @M 924,630 222,486
Hangzhou Al 738,903 -
Hanzhong E 42,270 -
3,302,755 3,448,968
Non-current assets: FERENEE
2023 2022
—E-= g
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETF T
Fuzhou & M 4,519,902 4,656,013
Shanghai & 3,726,778 3,896,654
Baoji =% 1,508,185 1,569,365
Xiamen IEls - 184,900
Hangzhou 70N 282,000 237,100
Yongtai K IR 217,578 217,610
Xian k=g 27,563 28,647
Nanping - 111 205
Jilin E 16 50
Hong Kong H5B 65 79
Others Hih 54 1,351
10,282,252 10,791,974
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. Bt ERHBENBIEELERIBEAE °
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EER @
Information about major customers EBRXEEFZ2ER
There is no individual customer who contributed over BHE T _=FRKR-_TE__F+=
10% of the total revenue of the Group during the years A=+—BLFE YEENEF
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. HASEEB W= 2 ERIER10% o
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HfzlgA
2023 2022
—E-= —=E-_—
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETTT

Bank interest income RITH B WA 2,206 3,057
Government grants AT 18 B 435 1,224
Others Hib 1,104 3,133
3,745 7,414

8. OTHER LOSSES, NET 8. HihEE FH
2023 2022
—E-= —E - F
RMB'000 RMB’'000

AREFT AEETTT

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant HEYE - MEMKREZ

and equipment Wz, (E518) a1 (304)
Loss on disposal of an investment HEREMEZ
property 18 (38,161) -
Loss on disposal of an inventory of HEYMEFEZEIE
property (458) -
Exchange loss, net MR EE - 38 (1,800) (38,366)
(40,378) (38,670)
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A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF
FINANCE COSTS 9. WMEMK
2023 2022
—B-=5F ==
RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
Interests on bank and other borrowings 277 & H b {& & 2~ 7 & 381,594 376,229
Effective interests on convertible bond AR EEZ ERT A
(note 26) (Mf&E26) 39,519 34,681
Effective interests on promissory note EABEZERFE 49,938 45,373
Interests on amount due to a related e —ME B E R R FIR
company <2 & 21,910 58,294
Interests on contract liabilities BHBEEZHNE 33,774 34,906
Total borrowing costs BEE KA 526,735 549,483
Less: amounts capitalised to B RNMEFERERE
inventories of properties kL (383,888) (374,955)
amounts capitalised to investment RERTREMES
properties under construction BNtz & #E (12,252) (56,750)
130,595 117,778

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
capitalisation rate of 7.98% (2022: 8.02%) per annum

to expenditure on qualifying assets.

{LEFE7.98% (

o A
=T B o
al 7+

RE=ZAZRARALT

FREARCZEERARE —RKRE
B TIKAEREEZHIKENR
—E - F:802%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ - ZF—

10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

SEF= A= —HILFE

10. BRFTBHLAT (B]) & F

2023 2022
—E-=H g
RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
Profit before income tax has been arrived &SR ATER NG,
at after charging/(crediting): (FFA) =
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 85 Bl 7 B 1,780 1,750
Directors’ emoluments i 2,248 3,526
Staff salaries and allowances(excluding BT % & KEB (TBHES
directors’ emoluments) Y
— Bonus —{E4T 1,964 5,493
— Salaries B 47,154 77,262
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR K8 F &t 2|t 5% 4,748 10,493
Total other staff costs HMBE TRRAREE 53,866 93,248
Less: amounts capitalised to inventories of & : M ¥FER E AL
properties k| (8,350) (17,159)
amounts capitalised to investment RERFPIREMEF
properties under construction Btz a# (1,166) (1,592)
44,350 74,497
Cost of inventories recognised as an WRAEMY 2 FEKRAK
expense 2,790,895 2,484,938
— Construction costs —BE KA 1,713,610 1,520,782
- Land use rights costs — b {F P RE Ak A 669,815 546,686
— Capitalised interest —& KA AN 383,888 374,955
— Others —E At 23,582 42,515
Depreciation of property, plant and M REMRETE
equipment 9,269 5,908
Gross rental income from investment REMEELEZHS KA
properties Mz (116,213) (115,826)
Less: direct operating expenses from B FARBELEES
investment properties that WAZIRENE
generated rental income during ZEERKE
the year B 1,989 7,033
(114,224) (108,793)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BRETSBIAT (B1E]) B8R (@)
(continued)
2023 2022
=== —_EFE -
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTFT ARETT

Selling and marketing expenses, mainly 4 KL HEXFE 0

comprise of:
- Real estate agency fees —EREEH 25,596 106,794
— Business taxes and surcharges —E2EMeRWINER 26,647 30,201
— Salary and welfares — N K A8 F 19,881 26,615
— Promotion and advertisement —EERESEHAX

expenses 3,658 12,669
— Electricity and utilities, property —-BENRRARAEE.

management fee MESIEE 6,327 10,445
— Office supplies /N 802 2,180

Administrative expenses, mainly ERRAYTFEAE:

comprise of:
- Salary and welfares — B K AE A 35,640 58,189
- Legal and professional fees —EEREFEEHR 6,383 17,089
— Electricity and utilities, property —BENRDAEE

management fees MEEES 1,078 6,752
- IT and human resources management —&: AR EAHER

expenses 975 3,164
— Office supplies /N 2,868 1,838
- Depreciation of property, plant and —E - WE K

equipment RIEFE 7,078 1,351
— Donation — g R 137 180
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

M. R (ER) BX

2023 2022
—E-=H g
RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
Current tax: REAFLIR -
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") REPEMFH
in the PRC ([EMEH]) 2,573 83,740
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") T IR ET
(T IBER]) 80,185 62,801
82,758 146,541
Under-provision in prior years: BAEFERETR
EIT in the PRC PEPEMSH 512 93
LAT in the PRC A B+ 1B B 7,407 22,812
7,919 22,905
Deferred tax EIER T8 (163,842) (11,309)
(73,165) 158,137

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulation. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rate of the appreciation value, with certain
allowable exemptions and deductions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the (loss)/profit before income tax per consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

—F oS+ Af—AILEE

— =

M". BB (ER) BX @)
CABNREMEERXENER
FERiB S B TS RAT (B51B)
HRZ HEMT :

2023 2022
—E-=F g

RMB'000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETF T

(Loss)/profit before income tax BEr e AT (EiE) % F (495,579) 172,413
Tax charge at the applicable tax rate of XA K25%=tE 2

25% (2022: 25%) B(ZEZZ%F :25%) (123,895) 42,684
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for FLE# B &9 5 1 7] #1108

tax purpose Fx 2 MBT e 24,930 23,008
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax FTMEBE RIS HBRT

Purpose WAZBBZE (20,689) (17,273)

Under-provision in prior years wEFEREETE 7,919 22,905

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised WMERAFRIEREEZ

MG 8 63,515 53,900
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BALAIAERHIBEE

recognised (92,895) (15,288)

LAT T IEER 80,185 62,801

Tax effect of LAT THIEER 2 MG E (20,046) (15,700)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries FH fit &) 5K 1 [& 48 &4 27
operating in other jurisdictions d 0) = NGRS N bR S

R 7,811 1,100

Income tax expense for the year FAMEHEAX (73,165) 158,137
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

12. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND 12. EE - FETHAEBRES
EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION BN &
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the FHNENIENEARESHNEINE
directors of the Company during the year are as follows: HBWT
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
RAKRER
e  HeREE HE L o

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETn  ARETn  ARETx

For the reporting period REHA

Chairman £S5

Guo Jiadi 2z 644 136 - 780
Executive directors: HITES

Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E Guo - 676 15 691
Wang Chao T - 567 - 567

Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTEES !

Chan Yee Ping, Michael FBa 72 - - 72
Ma Shujuan (Retired on 15 June 2023)  BRIE(K-F-=%#

NAFEAEF) 39 - - 39

Lam Wai Fung MR 72 - - 72
Wong Wai Man (Appointed on EER (R _E-_=#

15 June 2023) NATHAEZE) 27 - - 27

854 1,379 15 2,248
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

12. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND 1.5 - FETHRABREES
EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION (continued) & )
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
RIFEH
we  BFekER FTEIMER @
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFT AREFT  AREFT ARETT
For the year ended E-E-CE
31 December 2022 +ZR=+-HLEFE
Chairman IE
Guo Jiadi g 1,547 129 - 1,676
Executive directors: HTEE:
Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E Guo - 894 15 909
Wang Chao T - 743 - 743
Independent non-executive BUFHTEES.
directors:
Chan Yee Ping, Michael FRAa T 69 - - 69
Ma Shujuan 5MA 69 - - 69
Lam Wai Fung MR 60 - - 60
1,745 1,766 15 3,526

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Guo Jiadi is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his remuneration disclosed above
includes those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

No director waived any emolument during the current
year or the prior year and no emoluments were paid by
the Company to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Company or as compensation for
loss of office.

NERMTRHTETEZMEREER
ARARAEEBEREESH 2R
B o

NERMRBIFRTEEZHE S
BEERARBEZTZIREMNE -

AT ETRARBITHAR K
EXHBEZHMEBRBREIESITHRAE
BRFEZREMNE -

RAFERBEFEREEETNE
ERME  BARRAILEAEE
A B (F R IAKR 2R A
RRRER RE K IERREREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

12. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND 12.

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION (continued)
Employees remuneration

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the year included no director (2022: three directors),
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 12
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining five (2022: two) high paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

BEE FETHAERES
& )
BEEME
FR AEBREReHFEETE
BRELE(ZE-__F :=Z8EF) -
HM S 58N E X MisE12 - He
RE(ZEZZF WA)FEAXRT
BEERTHEAR e HRENHS
EJ-RUNNE

2023 2022

—E-= —E -
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥F T AR F T
Salaries and allowances e KoERL 3,912 1,495
Retirement benefits scheme contributions E K& F| 5+ 2 4 5% 719 266
4,631 1,761

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

WHARREEHFHMN FLATEH
Bz&zm#HEEABWT

2023 2022
—E-= —E_C
No. of No. of
employees employees
ESEE 1ES 25
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0008 7T 4 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L&
1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
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13.

14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

DIVIDEND 13. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary A R & B A 3 4 R 5 302 53R K 5 IR
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) BYARANBEBRARE ([IRE]) -
during the reporting period, nor has any dividend been NENREREERRESZRNE
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2022: MRE(ZE-_—_F: &) o
Nil).
(LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 8RR (BEB) EF
The calculation of the basic and diluted losses or RKATEBAEEBIRERNE#EE
earnings per share attributable to owners of the EEsBMIEE A TEEE
Company is based on the following data:
Losses or earnings figures are calculated as follows: EEs B EIE TR IE A Nt E
2023 2022
—E=-= e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T AR For
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to  ZARQ & E A EILFER
owners of the Company (B8) & H (464,567) 42,103
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary ERABMRKRESEE
shares-convertible bond TRk BB E - (32,078)
(Losses)/earnings for the purpose of AR ESREERETF 2
diluted earnings per share (EB#8) /&BF (464,567) 10,025
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HILFEF

14. (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 14. 3R (E8) BF @)

Number of shares [ &vig S 4E|
2023 2022
—E=-= ==
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FRFFE &R E AR
shares for the purpose of basic (B#B|) &Bfz
(losses)/earnings per share Tm AR N 8 5,088,208 5,088,208
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BHEEETLT RN 2 #E
shares: TE
Convertible bond gk ES - 1,213,592
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ AR:TE SR EHE
shares for the purpose of diluted (B8] 8Bz
(losses)/earnings per share T I AE ST 8L 5,088,208 6,301,800
Diluted losses or earnings per share is calculated by SR EEERSR AN S B
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary ITHEINE B INFE L OB KRR E
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive BTABTEHETRARTE - HZE
potential ordinary shares. For the years ended 31 TE =R EBE-__F+=A
December 2023 and 2022, the potential ordinary shares =+ —HIEFE ARREBELR
of the Company included outstanding share options and R B IE R TP BEIRFE L AR PR(E S o
convertible bond. The calculation of the dilutive effects ERENSEEZEDNBERITHERE
for share options is determined by the number of shares A% REFTHI RS RE ) S (B (E - ¥R ]
that could have been acquired at fair value (determined BAEEGERNATRONESEE
as the average annual market share price of the TEEET)WENKRMNEBTE - 1%
Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the it AR ENEHE B HEREE
subscription rights attached to the outstanding share R EmMES TG E B
options. The number of shares calculated as above is HESTELER o
compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.
For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the BHE =g EBE-_—F+—
assumed exercise of potential ordinary shares in relation B=1+—HBItFE BRTFHEK
to the outstanding share options has anti-dilutive effect TEEREAEENECLTERYEE
to the basic losses or earnings per share as the exercise fREAEESABNESRE ST
price of the options exceeds the average market price FERABRENTEEBRFALT
of ordinary shares during the year. BRAFHTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ —-F — =

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 1% - BERZHE

Furnitures,

—F+_A=+—HIFFE

office
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold and motor
buildings  improvements vehicles Total
HETHE HENE &R BOE
BT £ RERAE Eoh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT NREFT ANREFT ANREFT
CosT KA
At 1 January 2022 WZE-__F-f-H 53,288 20,006 41,158 114,452
Exchange adjustments Rk - 141 360 501
Additions RE 3,006 946 126 4,078
Disposals HE - - (5,531) (5,531)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAA - (8,897) (1,723) (10,620)
At 31 December 2022 W-E-—#+-R=1-H 56,294 12,196 34,390 102,880
Exchange adjustments 5 A% - 52 123 175
Additions NE 115 - 114 229
Disposals HE - - (1,010) (1,010)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF - (75) (65) (140)
At 31 December 2023 WZE-=F+-A=+—H 56,409 12,173 33,552 102,134
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Z3t#7E
At 1 January 2022 WZE-__F-A-H 5,489 14,544 32,313 52,346
Exchange adjustments Rk - 140 352 492
Provided for the year AEERE 318 3,200 2,390 5,908
Eliminated on disposal HEBTE - - (5,127) (5,127)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAA - (7,106) (1,327) (8,433)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-Z#+-A=1-H 5,807 10,778 28,601 45,186
Exchange adjustments R A% - 52 121 173
Provided for the year AEERE 6,480 1,311 1,478 9,269
Eliminated on disposal HERH 8 - - (861) (861)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF - - (85) (85)
At 31 December 2023 WZE-=F+-A=+—H 12,287 12,141 29,254 53,682
CARRYING VALUES EHE
At 31 December 2023 WZE-=F+-A=+—H 44,122 32 4,298 48,452
At 31 December 2022 RZE-—f+-f=1—H 50,487 1,418 5,789 57,694

RE=ZAZRARALT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment after
taking into account the residual values, are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Over shorter of

lease term or 40 years
Over shorter of

lease term or 5 years
19% - 32%

Leasehold land and
buildings
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, office equipment
and motor vehicles

The Group holds land use right in respect of its
leasehold land and buildings situated in the PRC
which are used for its business, where its offices are
primarily located. The land use right has expiry date
on 14 February 2054. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these land interests, and there are
no ongoing payments to be made under the terms of
the land use right.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out shopping malls, hotels, office
units, commercial units, residential units, kindergartens
and car parking under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly or quarterly. The leases typically run
for a fixed period of one to twenty-five years (2022:
one to twenty-five years). Certain leases of properties
contain variable lease payment that are based on 7%
to 14% (2022: 7% to 14%) sales and minimum annual
lease payment that are fixed over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REWZE (@)
The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as AN E B[R & 22 5F i m R N R B
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are FERAMEHAEHYUEBEER 28
denominated in the respective functional currencies B EEE HOWEREF
of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain RBEERE AR ARHEEE
residual value guarantee and/or lessees’ option to REEEZWEEE -

purchase the property at the end of lease term.

Investment

Completed properties

investment under
properties construction Total

[ BRT
RENR RENR st

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANRETIE  ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F—A—H 8,785,940 1,778,800 10,564,740
Additions NE - 176,651 176,651
Transfer b 115,219 (115,219) -
Decrease in fair value recognised in REZBARFERD

profit or loss (10,479) 3,368 (7,111)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_ZF+-A=1+—H 8,890,680 1,843,600 10,734,280
Additions NE 7,882 78,834 86,716
Decrease in fair value recognised in REBZEEZDNFERD

profit or loss (388,962) (5,719) (394,681)
Disposal HeE - (192,515) (192,515)
At 31 December 2023 RZZE_=%+-A=1—H 8,509,600 1,724,200 10,233,800
All of the Group’s property interests held to earn NEFIEKSHEZELBIES
rentals are classified and accounted for as investment BT E Y EiEZ 9B ENIEE
properties and are measured using the fair value model. MEARE WA A FEEERES
The Group's investment properties are situated on land REBMEEYEMNPEA LI
in the PRC for which the land use rights in the PRC are M ES LW ERESNERB BN
subject to the expiry dates ranging from 40 years to 50 ¥ B HA#R 5H404E B=50F - B 18
years from the grant dates. Lump sum payments were BIVEH — S FRA UG B b A =S -
made upfront to acquire the land interests, and there BERELHERENERB RS
are no ongoing payments to be made under the terms INE

of the land use rights.
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REWE &)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 have been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out on the
respective dates by Graval Consulting Limited (“Graval
Consulting”), an independent professional valuer not
connected to the Group.

The Group engages third party valuer to perform the
valuation. The Group’s management has discussions
with the external valuer on the valuation assumptions,
techniques, inputs and results when the valuation is
performed for annual financial reporting.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

The fair values of the completed investment properties
were determined by adopting the income capitalisation
approach and direct comparison approach which are
dependent on certain key inputs, including term yield,
unit rent, adjustment made to account for differences
in location and level and analysis of recent market
sales evidence of similar properties. The fair values
of investment properties under construction were
determined by adopting the residual method approach
which are dependent on gross development value based
on market approach using comparable sales evidence
and adjusted for estimated construction costs to
completion. Details of the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in the valuations are disclosed below.
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16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HIFZF

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16.

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these investment properties as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are determined. The
valuation technique used and the key unobservable
inputs to valuation of the investment properties
categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are
as follows:

At 31 December 2023

BREWME &)
TRFIWR—_E_=FR_T_—
¢+ A=+ —BZERENEY
ATBEBEEFR HEERATLEE
BE=RIBEYEBERBGE
&m&zgﬁkgﬁmT-

R-Z-_=%+-A=+—H

Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs ~ Range inputs to fair value
AYE TIREBAHER
AEEREZRENR AYE ER fhERE EXTUBERARE €E AVENEE
RMB'000
NEETT
Investment properties, Shanghai:  Level 3 Direct comparison Adjusted market unit ~ Shanghai: An increase in the adjusted
including residential 35,300 method* based on rate (Adjustment market unit rate used
units market observable taking into account 1. Residential units, would result in an
transactions of the differences in RMB150,000 per sqm increase in fair value,

similar properties and ~ location and level)
adjusted to reflect

the conditions of the

subject property.

REN% BREZEML L& B=R BRMEE - BBRE SEEGSEUMR
35,300 M%%ZW%TEW (@3t RUB R 2
FREFE UR  BRER)
@MW%%Z#R

and vice versa.

L&: e LG
MRS TE
1. REEM-BYHRA RHH-
RE150,0007C
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #Z - F — =

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

—F+_A="+—HIFFE

16. REWE #)

At 31 December 2023 (continued) MR-—EB-_=F+=-A=+-—-R8#&)
Relationship of

Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable

held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs  Range inputs to fair value

19E FUBRBAREE

ARERECRENF AVE ER fhERE EXTUBEEARE €E ATENBE

RMB'000
NERFE

Investment properties, Fujian: ~ Level 3 Income capitalisation ~ Discount rate Fujian: The higher the discount
including shopping 4,531,150 approach based on 1. Shopping malls and rate, the lower the fair
malls, commercial income capitalisation ~ Rental value " commercial units value.
units, residential units, Shanghai: of the net income. mn@fmmRM%45w
office units, hotels, 2,409,210 RVIB215 per sqm pér The higher the rental
kindergartens, and car h month and discount rate value, the higher the fair
parking Shaanxi: . value.

1533.940 mnyf@mAﬁ%toS%,

2. Residential units, at
RMB28 per sqm per
month and discount rate
from 1% to 5%;

3. Kindergartens, RMB26
per sqm per month and
discount range from
5.5% to 6%;

4. Hotel units, range from
RMB 77 to RMBI1 per
sqm per month and
discount rate range from
4.5% to 5%;

5. Carparking, at
RMB15,000 per unit,
discount rate range from
4.5% t0 5%.

&%Q%« f %%qﬂf 453%5111%510 =1 Wﬁ}géﬂ% %A%Z % R TREds  ATEEE
RRECEEEL - 453, NFE | BEEeRELEE n
R | A2 EE TITIBRRL mepeus 076
ARGEL i susTEARENS G

2,409,210 T FBENTFASHE
, 5% :
R
1,533,940 2. [EZE[ §REY)
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RE VBRI

E_=F+_A=1—HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

At 31 December 2023 (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
AREREZRENR AVE
RMB'000
NEETT

Fair value

Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques

AT
BA HESH

For year ended 31 December 2023 # % —

16. REWE &)
R-ZB-=F+=ZHA=+—H8#)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTUERBARE 4E

Range

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TIREBAHER
AVENBE

Shanghai:

1.

Shopping malls and
commercial units, range
from RMB56 to RMB189
per sqm; discount rate
range from 3.5% to 4%;

Office units, range from
RMBI95 to RMB104 per
sqm; discount rate range
from 3.5% to 4%;

Hotels, RMB76 per sqm;
discount rate range from
3.5% t0 4%.

L

BNEGREZEN
NEETL 7K AR S
TEANEEI89T : 178
ENF35%F4% ;

BABN N TETH
KARBOSTEARE
047 A F3.5%

24%

EE - §TIRARE
767 IRENF3.5%

4%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. BEWYZ &)
At 31 December 2023 (continued) R-EBE-=%F+=—B=+—H(#)
Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs  Range inputs to fair value
AYE TIREBAHER
ARERECRENF AVE ER fhERE EXTUBEEARE €E ATENBE
RMB'000
NEETT
Others:

1. Shopping malls and
commercial units, range
from RMB24 to RMB59
per square metre (sqm);
discount rate range from
4.5% t0 5%

2. Hotel units, range from
RMB37 to RMB4T per
sqm; discount rate range
from 5.5% to 6%

3. Office, range from
RMB36 to RMB59 per
sqm; discount rate range
from 6.5% to 7%

4. Kindergarten, range
from RMB16 to RMB40
per sqm; discount rate
5.5% t0 6%

| BUEERELEL
ML
X)) \BRURE
RESOT  ARENT
45%%5%

2. BREEWL NT&Y]
KARBIITEARE
417 TR ENT5.5%

£6%

3 BAE NTEEAK
ARE6TE ARSI
T fiRENF65%%
7%

4 HRE NFEYAK
ARE16TENRBA)
T RENT55%F
6%
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A M BRKE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
At 31 December 2023 (continued)

16. REWE #)

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

R-ZB-_=%+ZA=+—H#)

Relationship of

Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable

held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs  Range inputs to fair value

AYE TIREBAHER

AREREZRENR AYE B fhERE EXTUBERARE €E AVENBE

RMB'000
NRETT

Investment properties Fuiian:  Level 3 Residual approach, 1. Adjusted Fujian: An increase in the adjusted
under construction, 205,100 using comparison market unit rate market unit rate used
including office units, method* based on (Adjustment taking 1. Hotel units, RMB 21,000 would result in an
hotel, residential units Shanghai: market observable into account the per sqm Per year. increase in fair value,
and car parking under 1,237,100 transactions of differences in and vice versa
construction similar properties and location and level);

Others: adjusted to reflect Shanghai:

282,000 the conditions of the 2. Estimated total
subject property. construction cost 1. Office units and hotels,

(Estimation taking at the land price of
into account the RMB12,500 per sqm per
cost of construction year.
and installation,
decoration cost
and adjusted by
consideration of
development risks).

ERRENE  AEHR BR: 2R SEE RRRWE - 1 BREWLELN BR: ilEHEEDE R bR
B BE REEL 205,100 REENINZ 15 R (M RUER EmBERATEEN
RERFEN ABER S REEE - KPEREER): 1. BEEL 8THKE  RZAA

LE: ARIBEEE 2 it EARE1,0007 °
1,237,100 Ao 2. fEHBRERE((
ST REERR L
Hf RAA - RERA
282,000 REZREREL 1 BAEMREE 14

a2)-

EASFIAREAR
#12,5007 »

RE=ZAZRARALT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REWE #)
At 31 December 2023 (continued) R-EBE-=%F+=—B=+—H(#)
Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs  Range inputs to fair value
ATE FTRRBABAR
ARERECRENF AVE ER fhERE EXTUBEEARE €E ATENBE
RMB'000
NRETT
Others: An increase in the
estimated construction
1. Residential units, at cost would result in an
RMB14,600 per sqm per  decrease in fair value,
year and vice versa
2. Carparking, at
RMB90,000 per unit per
year.
3. commercial units,
RMB16,000 per square
metre (sqm) per year
Estimated total construction
cost to complete amount to
RIMB339,849,000.
Hif: Rt RERALNEEY

. \ LFERD  R2HR
. HEEBf §YFKE
£ NEH14,6007

2. BE BAFEAR
90,0007 °

3. BEEf BTAR
(MFAR))BFARR
16,0007

B BRERA TRERA
AR 339,849,0007 °

Total 10,233,800

5t
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A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. BEWYZ &)
At 31 December 2022 R=-EBE-=—%+=-HA=+—H
Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs  Range inputs to fair value
AV TIEERAHER
AEEREZRENR AYE BR fHERH EXTURZGARE €B ATENER
RIMB'000
NEETT
Investment properties, Shanghai: ~ Level 3 Direct comparison Adjusted market unit ~ Shanghai: An'increase in the adjusted
including residential 35,300 method* based on rate (Adjustment market unit rate used
units market observable taking into account 1. Residential units, would result in an
transactions of the differences in RMB150,000 per sqm; increase in fair value,
similar properties and  location and level) and vice versa.
adjusted to reflect
the conditions of the
subject property.
REN%  BEETER BB FZR BRuBE - REE SHETREGME L it G AT
35,300 PaxensagE  (BHREERKTE EMRES A TES
RHRBEE-UR  BEER) I EEEf BTHRA  RZA%-
BRENNTZMR - R #150,0007 :
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REWE #©)
At 31 December 2022 (continued) R-EBE-—&F+=—B=+—H(#)

Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs  Range inputs to fair value
ATE FTRRBABAR
ARERECRENF AVE ER fhERE EXTUBEEARE €E ATENBE
RMB'000
NEETT

Investment properties, Fujian:  Level 3 Income caﬁitalisation Discount rate Fujian: The higher the discount
including shopping 4,654,540 approach based on rate, the lower the fair
malls, commercial income capitalisation ~ Rental value 1. Shopping malls and value.
units, residential units, Shanghai: of the net income. commercial units,
office units, hotels, 2,611,610 range from RMB64.5to  The higher the rental
kindergartens, and car RMB215 per sqm per value, the higher the fair
parking Shaanxi: month and discount rate  value.

1,589,230 range from 4.5% to 5%;

2. Residential units, at
RIMB28 per sqm per
month and discount rate
from 1% to 1.5%;

3. Kindergartens, RMB26
per sqm per month and
discount range from
5.5% to 6%;

4. Hotel units, range from
RMB 84 to RMBI6 per
sqm per month an
discount rate range from
4.5% t0 5%

5. Car parking, at
RMB15,000 per unit,
discount rate range from
4.5% t0 5%.

EnEn. BB BIR WABALE - ERK ARE i RS ATEE
\ i+ 4654540 NEBHMAERL - o N \
1 BE 4 ‘ . BUEGREZEL  EEEEER AVEY
[FEf L NI8A% B
2,611,610 %6457

TR

PR
1,589,230

S5

(0] SEEE T Iy

4.5%Z5% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

E_=F+_A=1—HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

At 31 December 2022 (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
AREREZRENR AVE
RMB'000
NEETT

Fair value

Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques

AT
BA HESH

For year ended 31 December 2023 # % —

16. REWE #)
R-ZB-_Z_F+=ZA=+—H#)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTUERBARE 4E

Range

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
TIREBAHER
AVENBE

Shanghai:

1.

Shopping malls and
commercial units, range
from RMB58 to RMB190
per sqm; discount rate
range from 3.5% to 4%;

Office units, range from
RMBI95 to RMB105 per
sqm; discount rate range
from 3.5% to 4%;

Hotels, RMBT7 per sqm;
discount rate range from
3.5% t0 4%.

L

BNEGREZEN
NEELKARESS
TEAEEI0T: 78
ENF35%F4% ;

WAEN M FEE)
KARBBTEARE
105 : B ENF3.5%

24%

EE SFIRARE
T+ rRENF3.5%

4%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. BEWYZ &)
At 31 December 2022 (continued) R-EBE-—&F+=—B=+—H(#)
Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs  Range inputs to fair value
AYE TIREBAHER
ARERECRENF AVE ER fhERE EXTUBEEARE €E ATENBE
RMB'000
NEETT
Others:

1. Shopping malls and
commercial units, range
from RMB25 to RMB62
per square metre (sqm);
discount rate range from
4.5% t0 5%

2. Hotel units, range from
RMB35 to RMB49 per
square metre; discount
rate range from 5.5% to
6%

3. Office, range from
RMB39 to RMB62 per
sqm; discount rate range
from 6.5% to 7%

4. Kindergarten, range
from RMB17 to RMB40
per sqm; discount rate
5.5% t0 6%

| BNEERELEL.
NESTRR(TS
A ) ANRBLTEA
RBOLT: fRENT
45%Z5%

2 EREEfi NTEY)
KAREBTEARE
197 FRENF55%

£6%

3 BAE NTRTERK
AR#39Z ARE62
T ARENT65%E
7%

4 HEE NFEEHK
ARBITTEARBA
T FRENF55%E
6%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
At 31 December 2022 (continued)

A M BRKE

—F oS+ Af—AILEE

— =

16. REWE &)
R-ZB-ZF+Z=ZHA=+—H#)

Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs  Range inputs to fair value
AYE TIREBAHER
AREREZRENR AYE B fhERE EXTUBERARE €E AVENBE
RMB'000
NRETT
Investment properties Fuiian:  Level 3 Residual approach, 1. Adjusted Fujian: An increase in the adjusted
under construction, 402,400 using comparison market unit rate market unit rate used
including office units, method* based on (Adjustment taking 1. Hotel units, RMB21,000  would result in an
hotel, residential units Shanghai: market observable into account the Per Sqm per year. increase in fair value,
and car parking under 1,204,100 transactions of differences in and vice versa
construction similar properties and location and level): 2. Commercial units,
Others: adjusted to reflect RMB4, 700 per sqm per
237,100 the conditions of the 2. Estimated total year.
ey gt
info account the  onanghat
cost of construction
decoration cost 1. Office units and hotels,
?Qgsfddégﬁ)dn %yf at the land price of
development risks). RMB12,500 per sqm per
year
ERRENE AEER BE: IR BEL BReRE - 1 SRETRELM BR: BiEHEEDE E e
g BE EEEL 402400 BEEUDZ 25 R (BHRMER EMBERATEEN
RERFEN TBERARERE KPEREER): 1. BEER 8YHKE  RZAA
L& KRB NE 21t EARE1,0007 °
1,204,100 Re 2. fEEHERERA((
TG RBERR 2 BEEf §TARE
Hp - RIK - RERLA EARH4,7007 -
237,100 REERERfEL
HE) - Lg:

1.

WRERREE +i#
ERBIAABEAR
#12,5007

REZAZKRARAE 2023FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REWE #)
At 31 December 2022 (continued) MR-EB-_—_F+=-A=+—-R8#&)
Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable
held by the Group Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs  Range inputs to fair value
ATE FTRRBABAR
ARERECRENF AVE ER fhERE EXTUBEEARE €E ATENBE
RMB'000
NRETT
Others: An increase in the
estimated construction
1. Residential units, at cost would result in a
RMB14,600 per sqm per  decrease in fair value,
year and vice versa
2. Carparking, at
RMB90,000 per unit per
year.
3. Commercial units,
RMB16,000 per square
metre (sgm) per year
Estimated total construction
cost to complete amount to
RIMB339,849,000.
Hif - RERENAEMEEY

NEERD R
1. EXE[ FTRKE
£ NEH14,6007

2 FBEfi §ESFAR
#90,0007¢ °

3. BXEM §¥AK
(AR BFARR
16,0007

[ ERENANTRRRA
AR#339,849,0007 -

Total 10,734,280
it
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16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ —-F — =

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
At 31 December 2022 (continued)

* The fair values of certain investment properties at 31
December 2023 and 2022 were determined by reference
to the analysis of recent market sales evidence of similar
properties compared with the premises under valuation
(the Subject). Each comparable is analysed on the basis
of its market unit rate; each attribute of the comparable
is then compared with the Subject and where there is a
difference, the unit rate is adjusted in order to arrive at
the appropriate market unit rate for the Subjest.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during
both years.

As at 31 December 2023, certain investment properties
were pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to
the Group (Note 32).

DEFERRED TAX

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

A M BRKE

—F+_A=+—HIFFE

16. REWE #)

17.

R-ZB-_Z_F+=ZA=+—H#)
* m:z:-@&_f——¢+_
A=+—H EFREYEZA

EBE%%@M%%Zﬁ%m%
eEmEAEDE ((EZY]) g
THERIMAET - SATELETD
BREMBEMLEDN : A& &
TEERMHEEZN®THE
WEEZR  BIFBBMLENS

EOEBEE TS B K o

RAEFERN HESEAXEASR

WR-_E-_=F+-"A=+—8 %
FREMENERNAEERH 2R
TIEEREET (M:E32) »

i SE B IE

BREAEVBRRARZY & TE
L%RIE,%F&ET B - gL

EHREAMELEHIBGEHRZMTWAT

2023 2022

—_E-= —E-=
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ANR¥TFT AR T T
Deferred tax assets FEEFIEE E (156,514) (74,601)
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIEEE 1,317,253 1,394,941
1,160,739 1,320,340

RE=ZAZRARALT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #Z - F — =

17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised by the
Group and movements thereon during the current and

—F+_A="+—HIFFE

17. EERE (2)

REEMNBEFEASERER
FETRIE ( ﬁ@)/ﬁﬁ&ﬁ*‘”éﬂﬂu—l—

prior years:
Temporary
difference
Change in Temporary ~ Temporary on interest
fair value of Accumulated ~ differences  differences  expense Write-
investment tax of provision oncontract  oncontract  down of
properties  Taxlosses ~ depreciation of LAT costs  liabilities  inventories Total
H ahekz
RENZ ZithR  RERER efAAz  HERX
JhTERE  HERE g CEREE  ERER  ERER  HMWRE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
NRETT  \REFT AREFT ARETr  AEETT AEETr ARETT  ARETR
At 1 January 2022 N-E--f-f-f 1,248 681 (32,301) 134,187 (16,520 2155 (25,804) (2,550 1333248
Chargel(credit) to profit or loss for -~ 1B & / (3 ) EMER
the year (note 11) (i) (1,778) (24179 2,506 - (8457) - - (12,908)
At 31 December 2022 i St
TZAZT-H 1,246,903 (56,480) 155,693 (16,520 19,09 (25,804) (2,550 1320340
Chargeflcredit) o profit or loss for -~ 1%/ (3t \) BE B
the year (note 11) (i) (98,670) (10,506) 20,833 - (121) (765) (14613)  (163842)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHELA - 6,468 - - 020) - - 4,41
At 31 December 2023 i 2
+ZR=+-A 1,148,233 (60,518) 176,526 (16,520) 16,750 (26,569) (77,163 1,160,739

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had unused tax

R—ZE—_=Z=F+=-_A=+—H"

losses of RMB647,213,000 (2022: RMB377,003,000)
available to offset against future profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of
RMB242,072,000 (2022: RMB225,920,000) of such tax
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of RMB405,141,000
(2022: RMB151,083,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profits streams. The unrecognised tax losses
will expire gradually within 5 years to year 2028 (2022:
within 5 years to year 2027).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for the year
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB2,433,612,000
(2022: RMB2,054,201,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

17. EERIE (#)
BEGECEMSHE B X
NEFE—A—BR FENBEARA
FEBRI 2% F TSk 2 % B 84N
TEHM - B MR LA H A E
B ARRBEFSI B EREERE
AR #2,433,612,00070 (Z & = =
F . AR ®2,054,201,0007T) 518
FRAEEHBRE RARALE
R RO SR =E 2B M
TR EREA TSN A TER R E
@ °

18. INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES 18. WEEFE

2023 2022
—EC-=E —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT AR F T
Completed properties for sale (note a) D& ZEEWE (K ita) 4,898,758 4,037,326
Properties under development for sale FERETYE 6,150,987 8,934,231
11,049,745 12,971,557
Note: iz -
(@) Adging of completed properties from completion date () BxEIHHCO%RKME RS
2023 2022
—E-=F —Eq-=
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARMFor
Less than 1 year DIRE 1,496,241 3,454,344
1 to 2 years 1224 2,920,412 30,261
2 to 3 years 2E34F 26,896 115,351
More than 3 years 3F LA B 500,224 445,133
Write-down of completed W Bk ZFEDME
properties for sale (45,015) (7,763)
4,898,758 4,037,326
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18. INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

18. MEFE (&)

RMB’000
AR TF T
Analysis of leasehold lands: ME LD -
As at 31 December 2023 R-—EBE-_=%+=-H=+—H
Carrying amount FREE 3,922,301
As at 31 December 2022 R-—EBE-_—_F#+=-H=+—H
Carrying amount REAE 6,374,607

All the inventories of properties are situated in the PRC.

Included in the amount are properties under
development for sale of RMB2,116,056,000 (2022:
RMB2,815,831,000) in relation to property development
projects that are expected to be completed in more
than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has not entered
into new commitment for acquisition of land use rights
that have not yet been acquired, hence, there is no
future undiscounted cash flows for such acquisition
(2022: RMB83,000,000).

At 31 December 2023, certain inventories of properties
have been pledged as security for certain banking
facilities (note 32).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, write-down
of completed properties held for sale to net realisable
value of approximately RMB37,252,000 (2022: nil) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, write-down of
properties under development for sale to net realisable
value of approximately RMB261,198,000 (2022: nil) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. The estimates of
net realisable values were based on the fair values of
comparable property projects in neighboring areas less
estimated costs to complete the projects and relevant
costs of disposal.
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EHPLREFEERTYWEARE
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K #2,815,831,0007T) © 2278 81 5
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RZEZ=F+ZH=+—H" 'K
EEp UM R EE 2 L R
WER S FEE Bt @ WKE
WEARKGREAESRE(ZTE ==
& AR¥83,000,0007T) °

RZTE_=F+=-_A=+—H"'%&
THMEFEEERERE TRTE
EmER (EE32) ©

He—_Z-_=ZF#+-A=+—81t
FE CBIEHENERIMENR
ZEA 8 FEHARK37,252,000
T(ZEZZF :EB)ERGREER
MEMEEmBZRPER -

He—_Z-_=ZF#+=-A=+—8H1t
FE - HFEBRERDEMRZETE
BFEHARKE261,198,0000T (=
T oF EERGEABakEM
FEWERPER - A SR FEDN
EEr D ERII MR A LB EE
BERRAFERE R TIHERBMHETK
AR EKA -
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For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

A M BRKE

—E-CHf A=+ AIER

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 19. BEUWER X & H b JE W ;IE ML
PREPAYMENTS RS IE
2023 2022
—E-= T F
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥F T AREF T
Trade receivables JiE Uk B 20
— contracts with customers —RERFEY 71,317 17,768
— rental income (note a) —Me WA (Fita) 24,114 28,747
95,431 46,515
Other receivables (note b) Eh pE U R TE (ffaEb) 174,510 157,195
Less: Allowance for credit losses o EEEIBBE (73) (73)
174,437 157,122
Prepayments (note c) YE S FRIE (K7 atc) 460,529 359,947
Other refundable deposits HEMaREZRS 30,098 34,724
Other tax prepayments (note d) H b BB TE 5K I8 (M itd) 198,911 287,877
959,406 886,185

Notes:

(@) The Group had pledged trade receivables from rental
income as at 31 December 2023 to secure bank and

other borrowings of the Group (note 32).

(b)  The amount comprised mainly advances made by
the Group to various parties, including suppliers and

employees.

() The amount mainly represents prepaid construction cost
of RMB459,144,000 (2022: RMB346,888,000) for the
Group's properties under development for sale.

(d The amount mainly represents prepaid VAT of
RMB167,309,000 (2022: RMB252,364,000).

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days
(2022: 30 days) to its trade customers from date of
issuance of the invoices. Trade receivables arise from
rental income which is invoiced in advance monthly or
quarterly in accordance with the terms of the related

rental agreements.

Bz -

(a)

(@)

R-ZZTE-_=F+-_A=+—0 XK
SEHEERAESWANERIRR -
EEBAEERTREMESNE
= (B15E32) -

ZHRAETERREAEERAAE
T (BREHEERRER) (FHHR

Eo
A °

ZARELTBERAEEFTELR
FYENBENEIRARAARE
459,144,000 (ZE = =F : AR
#346,888,0007T) ©

ZRELTBEBNEERARE
167,309,000 (ZZT - —F : AR
#252,364,0007T) ©

AEBAFEEFEFPZ2THEE
HIE B EHH AR AH308 (=
T —4F:30H) c BRERKEE

FRERBEHE B

g A%

BEERAMAZENHES WA -

REZAZKRARAE 2023FH
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

19.

20.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s
trade receivables presented based on the date of the

19.

& U BR 3k % E th FE Uk T 18 A
RFEARE 2

AT AREBRIMYERBHIUR
BAMS K ABZIEAB2INHAE

properties delivered and date of demand note for rental W BR SR B0 BR e D AT
income were recognised:
2023 2022
—E—-= —E-—
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ANREFrT ARETTT
0 - 30 days 0-30H 66,248 22,418
31 -91 days 31 -91H 1,025 3,683
Over 91 days H#BiE91H 28,158 20,414
95,431 46,515

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB29,183,000 (2022: RMB24,097,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out
of the past due balances, RMB28,158,000 (2022:
RMB20,414,000) has been past due 91 days or more
and is not considered as in default based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience from these
corresponding debtors and taking into consideration
forward-looking information.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 30(b).

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Restricted bank deposits

Bank balances which, in accordance with the applicable
government regulations prevailing in 2023, are
placed in restricted bank accounts, amounting to
RMB250,704,000 (2022: RMB487,926,000), which can
only be applied in the designated property development
projects. The balances carrying interest at variable
interest rates ranging from 0.20% to 2.60% (2022:
0.25% to 2.60%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2023, there was no (2022:
RMB28,000,000) cash pledged for bank and other
borrowings, as detailed in note 32.
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20.

RZEZ=F+ZRAR=+—H"
AEBZREKEREHFPRER
WEDHERPREEAEARE
29,183,000 (ZE = =F : AR™
24,097,0007T) W JEURBR 3k - W% 5&
mE R - AR28,158,0007T
(Z==——%F : AR®20,414,0007T)
BEHIASIA L BREARERAF
ZENBEREAZBAGEBERL
BUWARATEEER  TARRE
I

& YR R % A B M SR TRDRU(E T A
B 7 15 B 51 B FE30(b) ©

SREER HBITEHEE
ZREBITER

BIE - - =ZFRITERRAESR
FEASZRBRERITEE ZEITEHA
R #250,704,0007TC (=& = — 4 :
A R #487,926,0007T) £ 7] B A 5
FEYEERIER o £ N F0.20%
F260% (ZE - % :025%%
2.60%) 2 BRI KB o

R—_EBE_=ZF+-_A=+—H"
TERS(ZE__F: AR
28,000,0007T) E BLRIT R HEMEER
{EIRIR - FFIFHRKIFE32 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

20. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK

21.

BALANCES AND CASH (continued)
Bank balances and cash

The bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.20% to 1.78% (2022: 0.25% to 1.78%)
per annum.

Details of impairment assessment of restricted bank
deposits and bank balances are set out in note 30(b).

20. SRBIBTERBITES

&N AC )

RITEBREAS
RITHEBIENTEF020%E1.78%
(ZE - —F :025%%1.78%) Z
MISF R B -

XRHEBITERRRITERZBE
AR IR E M EE30(b)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 21. FEAT R A & H fth FE 4 FIE
ACCRUALS REGTER
2023 2022
—_E-= g
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARMTFT AR T
Trade payables (note a) B BRR (A ita) 855,082 761,790
Other payables (note b) H fth B FE (BT iEb) 1,858,903 707,796
Deposits received from tenants B U AR A& 28,525 27,817
Other tax payables HipETIE 142,423 110,681
Accrued construction costs (note ¢) FESTIREER AR (B itc) 585,710 600,597
3,470,643 2,208,681

Notes:

(a) The following is an aging analysis of trade payables

Wiz -

(@ ATARERZRBEHZIZEN

presented based on the invoice date: BRRBRER D 4T ¢

2023 2022

—E-=F =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AR T T
Unbilled o GES 491,215 229,473
0 - 30 days 0-30H 14,708 15,098
31 - 90 days 31 -90H 37,606 52,360
91 - 365 days 91 -365H 69,119 96,034
Over 1 year HBiE1F 242,434 368,825
855,082 761,790
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(©)

(continued)

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding
for payments to contractors and suppliers of property
development projects and purchases of construction
materials. The average credit period granted to the
Group is from 6 months to 1 year. The management
closely monitors the payments of the payable to ensure
that all payables are paid within the credit time frame.
Details of the financial risk management polices by the
Group are set out in note 30(b).

Included in the amounts are balances amounting to
RMB494,159,000 (2022: RMB151,094,000) which were
advanced from independent third parties for short-term
borrowing purposes, which are non-trade related,
interest bearing of 7.5% per annum and repayable on
demand. Balances amounting to RMB1,011,734,000
(2022: RMB469,032,000) were advanced from
independent third parties for short-term borrowing
purposes, which are non-trade related and interest-free.

The accrued construction costs relate to construction of
properties under development for sale and investment
properties which will be transferred to trade or other
payables on achieving payment milestones as stipulated
in the agreements with the subcontractors.

21. ENERURHE M ESFHE
FESTER &)
WisE - (4B)

@@ (&)

BNEARTI2ZEERMERRE
BERBEERMAEAERHEERS
XNZHRBAZRBEETE - AAE
BEREZFHEEMREAZ—
FoEREBRYEREMNREAZN
BIEI  ARELR P A JE 1 SR RE
ERBRAXN - AREZEH R
B R Z R B EN M E30(D) °

(b) ZHREREEILE=HEHER
Z B AR #494,159,0007T
(ZZ2==%F : AR%¥151,094,000
TT)  RIEEBESHEE - RT5%FF
KRB RABREKREE - BHAR
#£1,011,734,00070 (=& = — & ¢
AR ¥469,032,00070) AB Y F =
TRNIERHAEERSE  BRIEES
HELES -

(0 RBABERAFIRFEERTY
ENERREREDBREMAL
BT RENNREREEEE
HBRERTEIAEMENFTENR

22. CONTRACT COSTS AND CONTRACT 22. BHRAEARENERE
LIABILITIES
2023 2022
—Eg-= =
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARMTFT AR EF T
Contract costs: BHKA
Incremental cost to obtain contracts BEE 42188 KA
(note a) (Hiita) 64,228 76,682
Contract liabilities: aHEaE:
Sales of properties (note b) Y SEE (A7 iEb) 6,253,719 8,977,138
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iR G MR AR M A

For year ended 31 December 2023 BEZE=—F=—=F+=-A=+—HIFZ

22. CONTRACT COSTS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

22. EHRARENERE &)

At

(a)

Contract costs capitalised relate to the incremental
sales commissions paid to property agents whose
selling activities resulted in customers entering into sale
and purchase agreements for the Group’s properties
which are still under construction at the reporting date.
Contract costs are recognised as part of selling and
marketing expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the
period in which revenue from the related property sales
is recognised. The amount of capitalised costs recognised
in profit or loss during the year was RMB24,016,000
(2022: RMB65,236,000). There was no impairment in
relation to the opening balance of capitalised costs or
the costs capitalised during both years.

The Group receive payments from customers based
on billing schedule as established in property sales
contracts. Payments are usually received in advance from
sales of properties.

The contract liabilities of RMB6,253,719,000 (2022:
RMB8,977,138,000) as at 31 December 2023 represent
the deposits received from pre-sale of properties.

Included in revenue recognised for the reporting period,
RMB3,136,991,000 (2022: RMB3,104,280,000) was
included in the contract liabilities at 31 December 2022.

In addition, the Group considers the advance payment
schemes contain significant financing component and
accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted
for the effects of the time value of money taking into
consideration the credit characteristics of the relevant
group entities. For the current year, the effective interest
rate used for this adjustment is 4.75% (2022:4.75%).
As this accrual increases the amount of the contract
liability during the period of construction, it increases
the amount of revenue recognised when control of
the completed property is transferred to the customer.
For this purpose, only the advance payments that are
expected to be recognised as revenue after 12 months
from the date of advance payment would be considered
to contain significant financing component. As at 31
December 2023, approximately RMB33,774,000 (2022:
RMB34,906,000) of the carrying amount of contract
liabilities subject to these schemes contain significant
financing component.

(a)

BARECAEHRAEMMENRESL
NHEEHERSEE  FEYE
RE/MES /E@Jﬁ&\)fﬁ'fﬁﬁ’\#ﬁm
HETEEFNASEBMETLE
EWam oA ’mmmﬁma%%%%
HEWRZHERGEEEREM
TEBERBERABEENDHERA
28D ﬁé‘?&ﬁ$ﬁ%$2£%ﬁ
AE#24,016,0007T (ZZE ==

A R #65,236,0007T) 27 ZKEJ*
RIBEER - BN 2 BBY &
MY MERNE BRI TR E -

AEERBVEHEEANTEYL
M EEE AR P UEUT SR o 5K
BEREEWERYEEERA -

RZZE-_=F+=-A=+—8"
%@%1%AE%6,253,719,0007EL
T —F: AR¥S,977,138,000
TIEETEEMERRZIZS -

HREHABRZBAARE
3,136,991,0007T (— & =~ — 4 : /\
R #3,104,280,0007T) * 5t AR
T-_—_F+-_A=+—8BZA 7
=R

on  AEBRAE - BN HRIEE
BEEARMER  ARESRE
REENKREEFEZENFAE -
WEEEEEEEEZEEREL-
RAFE  ARZAZRNERF X
BATS% (ZEZZF :4.75%) °
AR EHAZIEMERHED
AHEESE HUENMERIYWE
%%M&*%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ@%%%)\@
BHopttms @ EEHRIEN KT
Elﬁﬁt‘ﬂzflﬁ?éﬁﬁm%uk/\a’]
ERRESEHEEAESEARE
oy R_B-_ZF+—-_A=+—
H ZEHEBETAEHOEENE
ME# A R¥33,774,0000 (=&
— 4 : AR #34,906,0007T) B
SEANBERS -

RE=ZAZRARALT
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For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

23. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

23. BT REMEE

2023 2022

—EC-=HF —_E_—
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARKTFT
Secured bank borrowings BEMRITEE 5,178,952 5,689,490
Secured other borrowings EEREMEER 868,867 1,030,530
6,047,819 6,720,020

Note:

The other borrowings were raised from independent third
parties, which are financial institutions, financial asset
management companies and a property developer.

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are
repayable based on scheduled repayment dates set out

e -

HMERDREBLE=T N @E
B eREEEBERARNYEMER -

RIBEE R NPT #BEE & B
EEEMN LAEENKREENT

in the loan agreements as follows:
Bank borrowings Other borrowings
RITEE HitfE &
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EC-= —E-— —E-= .
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFRx ANREFT AREFn AREFT
Within one year —FR 2,660,927 1,580,198 141,983 353,532
More than one year, but not ~ —F A F - BRHEE
exceeding two years i 1,170,025 2,315,092 726,884 60,732
More than two years, but not  ®WFIA L - EFBB
exceeding five years al:d 559,000 807,200 - 616,266
More than five years AELE 789,000 987,000 - -
5,178,952 5,689,490 868,867 1,030,530
Less: Amounts due within one i : B &BEET
year shown under PIRZ—FR
current liabilities E| R (2,660,927) (1,580,198)  (141,983)  (353,532)
Amounts shown under IRBEBETAT
non-current liabilities eor ) 2,518,025 4,109,292 726,884 676,998
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For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

23. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

The exposure of the Group's borrowings are as follows:

23. BRITREMEE &)

AEEZEERRNT

2023 2022

—_E-= —E-=
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ANR¥TFT AR T T
Fixed-rate borrowings EEMEREE 2,402,307 2,602,720
Variable-rate borrowings FEAREE 3,645,512 4,117,300
6,047,819 6,720,020

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group's
borrowings are as follows:

AEBEEENERNEHEENT :

2023 2022
—s=-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETF T
Fixed-rate borrowings, per annum BEFEFFERES LM
(on a weighted average basis) RS ECE) 7.47% 8.02%
Variable-rate borrowings, per annum ¥ EEF|EEE 4.55% - 7.00% 4.75% - 7.27%

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB.

The variable rates are calculated based on the Loan
Prime Rates published by the People’s Bank of China.

At 31 December 2023, the bank and other borrowings
were guaranteed and secured by followings:

(@) Mr. Guo lJiadi and Ms. Shen Bizhen, the spouse
of Mr. Guo Jiadi, have provided guarantees to
banks for the bank and other borrowings with
principal amount of RMB3,448,672,000 (2022:
RMB3,766,450,000),

rEBZABREOAARKEE -

FEMEDRETBEARRITAM
MERTSRENXFEH -

RZEBE_=F+-ZA=+—H &
TREMEEHAT ST ERLE
e

(a) EFPhna st & K& 200l ot &£ 2 e
BLBEYRZLTEMBITNEM
BERBRTEHOEASEAR
AR #3,448,672,0007T (=&
— 4 : ANR#¥3,766,450,000
JC) Z R

REZAZKRARAE 2023FH 201
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ - ZF—

ZFLTA=1—HIFFE

23. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

(b)

Bank and other borrowings were

pledged by

Group's investment properties, inventories of
properties, trade receivables from rental income,

restricted bank deposits and equity i

nterests in a

subsidiary. Details of the pledged assets are set

out in note 32.

In respect of bank and other borrowings with carrying
amount of RMB241,800,000 (2022: RMB427,000,000)

as at 31 December 2023, the Group is

required to

comply with the financial covenants throughout the
continuance of the relevant bank and other borrowings
and as long as the relevant bank and other borrowings

is outstanding.

The Group has complied with these covenants

23. RITREMEE &)

(b) R

TTREAM

.
EE

NAREERE

ME -MEFE -KREHEEHK

A Y FE U AR SR

XRH|ITE

S NGIR: Fo S (o
BHEEF BN 32

MR ZZE=
IREE A AR 241,800,000 (=

EE

=

T_=F+A=1+—8B®

F£: AR®427,000,0007T)

MIRTTREMEBEMS - EHEBR
TEREMEENHERRALRE
HEARTREMEERHARERE K
SEBRMBBEETHBERA -

AEBEEEFERENRNGETZR

throughout the reporting period. #)ZIRIE °
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, R
Number of shares Share capital
%58 B8 g 7
2023 2022 2023 2022
—=E-= e — —EB-= —_EFE-—
‘000 ‘000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FKR TR AREFT AREFT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of B HEE0.01
HK$0.01 each Bz @M 200,000,000 200,000,000 1,979,280 1,979,280
Convertible preference 7] # % (& 5 %
shares 602,000 602,000 4,902 4,902
Issued and fully paid E&TREZ2
At the beginning of REW
the year 5,088,208 5,088,208 42,890 42,890
At the end of the year R K 5,088,208 5,088,208 42,890 42,890
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For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
16 September 2011, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible and effective means of
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants. The Share
Option Scheme covers any employee (full time and part
time) holding salaries, agents, contractors, consumers,
suppliers and others providing similar services as the
board of directors in its sole discretion considers
eligible.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable period
and the number of shares subject to each option will
be determined by the board of directors at the time of
grant.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 30% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the
Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time and with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

25. LR B/BEEZNARRS

RZE——FALATRBETZAE
RABRRBFEFRE L ARFAKRRK
O PR — TR R AR AT 8 ([RE AR
atEll) e

BREASEERARASERE)
B RREAMER S HEERM
RAr BB B WER LS
M-BEREASIREEZTSE2ED
BRAAEBZENEZBEFBZ
¥EE NKIEB A HEE.
HEm M EMREHEREERE ST -

EEeRRNBREERESEES N
BREZITEE BBH  1TEH
NP BB EA -

B A& /E R BB A AT 81K W R 1T
EEEEZHE LR HERZF
R IR M 1T {6 R K 2 ) M 1] By T
BEBETRM 230% « REM+ =&
H HA TR AR 12 8 P A (7] B A A T
ERAERSEERITZRELR -
WAZR A B P Aa] B ] 2 B AT IR 19

1% BB - E—TRHZBRER
BURAE  AEBRRAE EREBK
RHLE ©

AARARIZEZTREERERBEFA
BB ATREERERN B2%
BEBARRB)BILIENITEEIE -
SN - A ER 4 — @A R R E
ARAREERRABIIFEATES
RWEETMBPBATRE ZEME
RERE BT 38 R AR 19 8 HH AN 2 &) AR AR
BB TG Z201%Mm&E (&
AARBRORRHBHZBERTE
8 145,000,000/8 7T - ZBEE L ERE
RN FESAREHILAE -
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For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within the date specified in the offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercisable period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on
a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of
the grant of the share options.

On 22 February 2016, a total of 46,000,000 shares
options (Batch 1 Options) were granted to the directors,
employees and others providing similar services of the
Group at a cash consideration of HK$1 per grantee
which entitle the grantees to subscribe for new ordinary
shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.285
per share. It shall be exercisable during the period from
the date of grant, first, second and third anniversary of
the date of grant respectively in the following manner:

(@) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the date of grant;

(b) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the first anniversary of the date of
grant;

() 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the second anniversary of the date of
grant;

(d) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the third anniversary of the date of
grant.
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25. LR BEEZNRRZ &)

REBREZEZENERTB2H
MARTHER  ARAREWNRA
XHEHIBTZRBANE - R
HEREZTERRARRESRE
T YRETHEBHMERRMASG
MERBA TS ERBERERL A
HIRERT+4F o

RZE—-—RFEF-_A=-+-H &%
46,000,00017 iE i (5 —HEBERR4E)
ERTFAESECZEE EEMREMH
BERENEMAL B2EKA
BAYNBREREIBT - ABRAAR
B EE S I0.285B T 2 ITIFER
BARARFHLEBER HuohlnE
TEE BRHEBH—BAF WMBF
k= AFRBERNEZUATERITE :

(a) ML BERIABREITE
25% BB AR 4

(b) ML B H—BEFEREAK
AITE25% 0B AR

(0 MEHBHAMBFEIEAE
AITT1E25 %5 B HE

(d RELEBH=AFLEHMAE
AI1T{H25% B AR o
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For year ended 31 December 2023 BEZE=—F=—=F+=-A=+—HIFZ

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

On 24 April 2018, a total of 59,700,000 shares options
(Batch 2 Options) were granted to the directors,
employees and others providing similar services of the
Group at a cash consideration of HK$1 per grantee
which entitle the grantees to subscribe for new ordinary
shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.420
per share. It shall be exercisable during the period from
the date of grant, first and second anniversary of the
date of grant respectively in the following manner:

25. LR BEEZNRRZ (@)

R_E—N\FENMA-_+WH &%
59,700,000 B A% & (58 —#tHEAR#E)
ERTAEECZEES EERREMH
HERBHNEMBAL BR2EARA
BALXNBERENET - AR AR
E%HX*E TTZEHXO 420/%712'(7 1% {E At
BAQNRHLTEK -HAo R RIT
HTHH REBH—RBFREMBEF
HRER AR AT A RITE

(@) 40% of the option will be exercisable during the (a) ML BHRHABAETITE
period from the date of grant; 40% 5 AR 1

(b) 30% of the option will be exercisable during the (b) REHBH—BFRBHAE
period from the first anniversary of the date of AITE30% M A
grant;

(€) 30% of the option will be exercisable during the (0 ML BHMBEFERARNNG
period from the second anniversary of the date of AJ1T1E30% & 4 -
grant.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: g g =Rk B | o= v R N

Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period  Exercise Price

R B BEHME TR THEE

22 February 2016 to HK$0.285
21 February 2022

Options granted to directors, 22 February 2016 Immediately to
employees and others 3 years from the
providing similar services date of grant

ETEE EERREHREMU :s\ NE Bl 2% A e T—-RF_-A 0.285% 7T
MRS 2 H b A 2 BB AR #E “A=+= P34 :+fEli

—E--#F—-R

—+—H

Options granted to directors, 24 April 2018
employees and others
providing similar services

RYEF EREREHBU —T-N\#F

Immediately to 24 April 2018 to 23 HK$0.420
2 years from the April 2024
date of grant

MRERLBAHE —T-N\FMA 0.420% 7T

RIS 2 A A+ 2 BB RS IMA—+mA ST24E —t+mHEZE
“ENFINA
~+=H
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 25. RGO AEESNERS (&)

(continued)

The following table discloses movements of the TRFEREHANES - EE RH#
Company’s share options held by directors, employees BURB 2 EMALHEBEZARRR]
and others providing similar services during the BB 2 EE) o

reporting period.

2023 —EB=-=
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding of
of 1 January during the during the during the 31 December
Option type 2023 year year year 2023
ZBCZE B
i +=A=+-A
BRESE K17 FREH ERfTE EREN W K17
Batch 2 Options: B HEBRE:
Ex-Directors IS 23,000,000 - - - 23,000,000
Directors S 10,800,000 - - (4,400,000 6,400,000
Employees and others EERREBEURE
providing similar services ~ Ef AL 18,200,000 - - - 18,200,000
Total @z 52,000,000 - - (4,400,000 47,600,000

Exercisable at the end of ~ F R {T{#
the year 47,600,000

Weighted average exercise  JIET 1T (B
price HK$0.4203% 7t HK$0.4203% 7t

2 06 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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For year ended 31 December 2023 # % —ZF—

=h 25

ﬁAtﬁﬁimﬁ

SEF_ASF—AILFE

(continued)

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 25,

The following table discloses movements of the
Company’s share options held by directors, employees
and others providing similar services during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

DR AREEZMN

TA X

2 (#)

TEREEHE T -_—_F+=A
=+t-BLEEERNEE EE MM
HURB s EMALTEREZ ARG
BRI 2 ) o

2022 —E-=
QOutstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding of
of 1 January during the during the during the 31 December
Option type 2022 year year year 2022
—A-H TZA=1—H
BRESY HAITE ERNEHT ENTIR FEREN HAITE
Batch 1 Options: E-HERE:
Directors EX 5,400,000 - - (5,400,000) -
Employees and others EERREBURE
providing similar services  Ef AL 17,600,000 - - (17,600,000) -
Batch 2 Options: E-HERE:
Ex-Directors BER 23,000,000 - - - 23,000,000
Directors B 10,800,000 - - - 10,800,000
Employees and others EERRHEUREZ
providing similar services  Et AT 18,200,000 - - - 18,200,000
Total s 75,000,000 - - (23,000,000) 52,000,000
Exercisable at the end of ~ ERA{7fE
the year 52,000,000
Weighted average exercise I 517 (E
price HK$0.3797 & HK$0.37978 . HK$0.420% 1T

No options were granted during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

RE=ZAZRARALT
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26. CONVERTIBLE BOND 26. AT ARES

The movement of the debt and derivative components

RERN A BRREFZESRITE

of the convertible bond for the year is set out below: TEHAKS D 2 E3EFOT -
Debt Derivative
component  component
BERHEK fTET A
i) HE 2
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABREFr AR For
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZTE-_—_F—HF—H 344,973 102,071
Interest expense (note 9) MERX (K7i#9) 34,681 -
Interest paid EH?T'J (4,296) -
Change in fair value recognised in profit EME Em
or loss N EE - (101,430)
Exchange adjustments PE 3, 5 & 29,133 5,538
As at 31 December 2022 RZTE-—F
+=—A=+—8H 404,491 6,179
Interest expense (note 9) MER (B :29) 39,519 -
Interest paid Eﬁﬂ = (4,141) -
Change in fair value recognised in profit B/\TE SHERZ
or loss NEEEE - (6,320)
Exchange adjustments PE WA 11,566 141
As at 31 December 2023 R-EBE—=4
+=—A=4+— 451,435 —
Binomial valuation model is used for valuation of the TTETELD 2HEBEER B G

derivative component. The key inputs used in the
model disclosed in note 30(c). The share price as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 were HK$0.09 and HK$0.22
respectively.

On 30 January 2019, the Company issued 1 %
Convertible bond (the “Convertible Bond” due in 2024)
in the principal amount of HK$500,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB428,319,000) to Primary Partner International
Limited (“Primary Partner”) as part of the consideration
for acquisition of All Excel Industries Limited (“All
Excel”). The convertible bond is denominated in HK$.
The Convertible Bond due in 2024 entitles the holder
to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time starting from 30 January 2019 to 30 January
2024 at a conversion price of HK$0.412 per share.

2 08 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

BEEMN ZEAMAZEEZEGAE
BRHE0ORE R _=F
FZE__F+_A=+—HHK
B 7 5l /&0.09%8 7T }%0.228 7T °

RZZE-—HhLF—-—A=+H KA
Bl MPrimary Partner International
Limited ([ Primary Partner ]) 217 /&K
% %8 /500,000,000 7T (#E & »
AR %428,319,0007T) 1% A #
REH (R _WFRH 2T
MR E 25 1) 1E R B 5 WA Excel
Industries Limited ([ All Excell) Z X
E-AMREBFUEBITIFE R
TMERMz A BMRESE TR
EARZE—NF—HA=+HEH
—ENE-A=1THIEZEMAR
M EERAARNAAEBR BB
B ABER0.412/ T -
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26. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)

The conversion price is subject to adjustment arising
from alteration of the nominal amount of the shares
caused by share consolidation, share subdivision, rights
issue or any other reasons as provided in the terms and
conditions of the convertible bond. The Company may
voluntarily redeem all or any part of the convertible
bond at any time following the issue of the convertible
bond and prior to the maturity date by repaying the
holder of the convertible bond all outstanding principal
amount together with unpaid interest accrued thereon
up to the date of voluntary redemption. Holder of the
convertible bond has no right to require the Company
to early redeem the convertible bond.

The Convertible Bond due in 2024 contains two
components, debt component and derivative
component (including conversion option and early
redemption option). Upon initial recognition, the
fair value of debt component is HK$336,051,000
(equivalent to RMB287,874,000) and the fair value of
derivative component is HK$317,907,000 (equivalent
to RMB272,331,000). The effective interest rate of the
debt component is 9.55% per annum and subsequently
carried at amortised cost. The derivative component
is measured at fair value at initial recognition and at
the end of the reporting period with fair value gain of
RMB4,103,000 (2022: RMB101,429,000) recognised in
profit or loss during the year.

The fair value of derivative component of Convertible
Bond due in 2024 as at 31 December 2023 and
2022 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, an
independent professional valuer not connected to the
Group.

26. TR ES @)

BRERAEERND A ROK
AR~ R A Bk AT R BRE I R AR M R A
P AR TE 2 1A E At 32 /R T 38 AR {0
HEZFMELFHE - AR AR
BLOAHMEABRESTEARE
EfEARBERASBREEB RN
MEREFETAIMRESRR LB A
Al A7) B 6] B BB BB (=) = 7B sk AL f) 7
DABERES I BRERESFFKAEA
BREERARAREFELOARKE
%o

\
N

=

an

T_OFRBABRKES
BEMEAKID  BHEAKI D
EOTETREBEKES D (BEEIRE
MERE R IRATHE O B IR #E) - 1) P 7E
RE - BHEAXBINAFES
336,051,000 ¢ (HHE R AR
287,874,0007T) * MATAE T EMAK
=85 A F1{E A&317,907,000 7T
(8N AR®272,331,0007T) °
BEREKBOINERNEEESF
9.55% ' HIZ LB H A AT BR 17
AT EHDRVILERT RAME
HAREAFEFZ2 AFEKRITA
R ¥4,103,0000 (ZFE = —F : A
R #101,429,0007T) A N 18 %% 5

.
o

RZE_=ZFR_F__F+_A1
=+—B Z—Z_MEIH A’
EFITETAERLD 2 AFEIR
HASEVEBE B LEEME
AN EANFEARABRARMET
ZIHEBTE -
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26.

27.

CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)

On 30 January 2024, the Company and Primary Partner
entered into a deed of amendment in relation to the
proposed convertible bond amendments (the “CB
Amendment Deed”) pursuant to which the Company
and Primary Partner have conditionally agreed to amend
the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bond to the
effect that: (i) the principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds shall be changed from HK$500,000,000 to
HK$300,000,000; (i) the maturity date shall be changed
from 30 January 2024 to 30 January 2029; (iii) the
interest rate shall be changed from 1% per annum to
2% per annum; (iv) a right shall be granted to Primary
Partner to require the Company to redeem all of the
outstanding Convertible Bonds; and (v) the conversion
price of the Convertible Bonds shall be changed from
HK$0.412 to HK$0.090 per Conversion Share. The
CB Amendment Deed will take effect retrospectively
from 30 January 2024, contingent upon the fulfilment
of certain conditions precedent and the shareholders’
approval is obtained. Save for the Proposed CB
Amendments, all other terms and conditions of the
Convertible Bonds shall remain unchanged.

PROMISSORY NOTE

On 30 January 2019, the Group issued promissory note
with principal amount of HK$600,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB513,983,000) to Primary Partner as part of the
consideration for acquisition of All Excel. The principal
amount of the promissory note shall be settled either
in full or in part by no later than 30 January 2024.
The interest payable under the promissory note shall
accrue at the rate of 3% per annum for the first and
second years, 4.5% per annum for the third and fourth
years and 6% per annum for the fifth year after the
date of issuance on the outstanding principal amount,
respectively. The Company has the discretion to repay
all or part of the principal balance at any time prior
to the maturity date by giving 10 business days prior
written notice to holders of the promissory note. As
at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair value effect
of the early redemption options are assessed to be
insignificant. Holder of the promissory note has no right
to require the Company to early redeem the promissory
note. The promissory note is initially measured at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate of the promissory note is 9.55% per
annum.

2 1 0 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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26. TEERES @)

27.

RZZE_WNF—A=+H &R
EAPrimary Partnergti® % T%Hxﬁ%
L.:T.:Tif AIRE (AR ESE
FIEE]) - B - AR F EPrimary
PartnerE B IR R B BT I RKRE
FEME R R AGHE B - (DRI ;R &
% 7 K4 %8 % $500,000,0007 T F
2 A300,000,0007% 7T : (iDE|HA B #%
H-E-_WFEF—HA=THEHRARZ=
TNF—A=+H:(IiVFFXfH
1% E 20 A2% : (iv)Primary Partnerg
HEERKARRNRERERERE R
RES: RVABRKRES 2 BRKRE
B E IR (D0.412B T E N A
0.090/8 7T - AT MR EHIE ] LB
E-ZET-_NF—-—HA=Z+HBEHE
B MEREFE TG ER K
SRR ERFAIEET - BRiEZRET
BMREHIEFTIN ATRRESF AT
BEHMGERRIEGGEFTE -

ARERE

RZE—hL&FE—A=+H &X&
& A Primary Partner® 17 AN & %8
600,000,000 T (FHE N AR
513,983,00070) 2 & H Z - {E A
U EEAI Excel” (£(8 - AN EiE
MASHEEN_ZS_NFEF—H=
AZRI 2o BHEE - AHER
B & A B Bl B I % FREZ
FEFINMMEGFE EF=FKE
WMFEFGFAS%  UAREREELRS
HETHENSEATEE6% - AR
A8 M5 T 2 H B AT A (E 1A 65 A
MALZEBRFBAZLTDRI0E

EEHMNEBELAEEBA UNEER
MEBAOAEHB - R _=F
FZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H" &
AERBERENSFIHATFTESE

iTEKo%E?%%ﬁA%%ﬁ
KA NBIIRAIE R AR EE o &R
mﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁi'ﬁﬁuﬁ
BRA R AR EK AT E R LE
BREBRNEREF9.55% °
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27. PROMISSORY NOTE (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
the promissory note is RMB546,062,000 (2022:
RMB519,026,000), and the directors consider that the
carrying amount of the promissory note recognised in
the consolidated financial statements approximate to its
fair value.

On 30 January 2024, the Company and Primary Partner
entered into the deed of amendment in relation to the
promissory note amendments (the “"PN Amendment
Deed”) pursuant to which the Company and Primary
Partner have conditionally agreed to amend the
terms of the Promissory Note to the effect that: (i)
the principal amount of the Promissory Note shall be
changed from HK$600,000,000 to HK$800,000,000;
(ii) the maturity date shall be changed from 30 January
2024 to 30 January 2029; (iii) the interest rate shall
remain at 6% per annum for the sixth to tenth year
after 30 January 2019; and (iv) a right shall be granted
to Primary Partner to require the Company to redeem
all or part of the Promissory Note. The PN Amendment
Deed takes effect from the date of the PN Amendment
Deed. Save for the aforesaid PN Amendments, all other
terms of the Promissory Note shall remain unchanged.

27.

AAERE®)
RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—8H %
HEEE5 A ARS546,062,0007T
(ZFE=—=—%F: AR ¥519,026,000
T REERE AU BRRE
RHOAREZEENEAERERATE
A -

W-Z-mE-A=+A (X5H
&) - AN |l EdPrimary Partner
VAL EBREITRZE ([AELE
BEITRE] Bt AARH
Primary Partnerf (& {F R Z & 3] 7%
HEBEBIER  AFE (DR EE
¢ 78 4 %8 }1600,000,0005% 7T & & A
800,000,000 ¢ : (iVF|EHRH B =
“HFE—-A=t+REEA=-ZT=

F-—A=TH:(HI=ZFE—NnF—A
T+HBREARAFEETFNFANE
13 B6% : K(iv)Primary Partnerf #
ERAQNFELEH XL R LE
B-EHBBRETREERLER
BETREABRAEY R L& R
RBREFN  AHBEROMME HAM

RS T

RE=ZAZRARALT
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28. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

(a) Disposal of 51% equity interests in

28. HE—RKELQF
() HEXTEEHEARA A

Hanzhong Xu Real Estate Co., Ltd
(“Hanzhong Xu")

The Group realised that the ongoing development
of Hanzhong Xu required much more expenditures
than expected and the local property market
became less profitable to cover the opportunity
cost of further investment on the Hanzhong
Xu project. After thorough internal discussions,
the Group decided not to proceed with the
development of the project. As a result, the
Group disposed of Hanzhong Xu. The disposal of
Hanzhong Xu was completed on 31 October 2023
to an independent third party at an aggregate
consideration of RMB5,950,000.

Details of net assets disposed of in respect of
the Hanzhong Xu at the date of disposal are

([ZEF M) 51%#E

AEEEHINZFBONEER
BFEHEHREZNSTH B
EMEHETSEMNEFE DT
EABMERMBEIER E—#1
BEMHE AR o LR AR A
B AEBERETNEITZ
HEMMAZE - Al AEEH
EERB-M—BBILE=FH
HEZRBR_E-_=%1A
=+t HBEK BREABAR
#5,950,0007T °

REEBH AREEFTBEZE
HEBEEFEFBHRADT

summarised below:

RMB’000
AR For
Property, plant and equipment M BB REE 55
Inventories of properties under development FEZREF Y ELFE
for sale 319,141
Trade and other receivables and JFEE AT B R e B th R LA TE A J2
prepayments iGN/ S 165,195
Bank balance and cash IRITEHRERS 41,173
Trade and other payables and accruals JIE A BR TR LA K2 L b B 5F ZR0E |2
et E (13,102)
Contract liabilities EHBE (494,375)
Bank borrowings RITEE (10,840)
Net assets disposed of EREEETE 7,247
Less: non-controlling interests B FEIERR R (3,551)
Gain on disposal of Hanzhong Xu HEZEFRME K= 2,254
Total consideration BwRE 5,950
Net cash inflows arising from disposal: HEEANBSMAFE
consideration received Bl E 5,950
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of  Jil : EHERITEBR LIRS (41,173)
(35,223)
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28. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(b) Disposal of 100% equity interests in Link
Equity International Limited (together with
its subsidiaries, namely, Best Way Industries
Incorporated and Bestway Success
Development Limited) (“Link Equity Group”)

The disposal of Link Equity Group was completed
on 1 March 2022 to an independent third party at
an aggregate consideration of US$10.

Details of net liabilities disposed of in respect of
the Link Equity Group at the date of disposal are
summarised below:

28. HE—RMNEB QA @)

(b) HELink Equity International
Limited 100% /& # (E [
HHE AR - BBest Way
Industries Incorporated
K Bestway Success
Development Limited)
(lLink Equity&£ M |)

B ELink EqutyEB 2 R ZZ
TZF=A—B®EK BRE
R103ETT ©

Link EquityE B RN ERBH 2
EHEBEFHEFBEHRMALNT

RMB’000

AR For

Other payables H A & - ;0IE (28)

Net liabilities disposed of EHEBEFE (28)

Gain on disposal of the Link Equity Group i #Link Equitys B ~ U 25 28

Total consideration BRE -
Net cash inflows arising from disposal: HEEEMNBESRAFRE

consideration received 2R IE -

* Less than RMB1,000

DR ARRI0007T

2023F 2 1 3

RE=ZAZRARALT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

28. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(c) Disposal of 100% equity interests in Xi’'an (c)
Sanxie Real Estate Co., Ltd (“Xi‘an Sanxie")

The Group realised that the purchased land
of Xi'an Sanxie, which was obtained via a
government land auction, was relatively smaller
than expected and was surrounded by other
properties developers’ lands. After thorough
internal discussion, the Group decided not to
proceed with the development of the project.
As a result, the Group disposed of Xi‘an Sanxie.
The disposal of Xi‘an Sanxie was completed on
1 June 2022 to an independent third party at an
aggregate consideration of RMB67,850,000.

Details of net assets disposed of in respect of
the Xi'an Sanxie at the date of disposal are

summarised below:

28. HE—RKWEBQE (&)
HERZ=ZHEZXER LT
(TEZ=1H1) 100% A% #E
AEEBE#HINALT=HHE
B (FREBRNTIAE R
B) AYRAEEL B EM
MERERNLTHAAMIRE - &
BREDBANB M NEER
TETNHETZEENRAE - H
- AEBHERLT =
EALZ=ZHER_ZT=__F-
A—HEK BREAARE
67,850,0007T °

BERAZ=HBRHEAMNG
HEBEFEFABHMNT

RMB’000
ARE T T
Inventories of properties under FTEERDPMEFE
development for sale 267,014
Other receivables HAh & R IE 33
Bank balance and cash RITEHRERS 1
Trade and other payables and accruals JFE A< BR FRA R A B AN FRE K
FE=H & (167,715)
Net assets disposed of EREEETE 99,343
Loss on disposal of the Xi‘an Sanxie HEAZ = EE (31,493)
Total consideration wRE 67,850
Net cash inflows arising from disposal: HEELAMNIRERA TR
consideration received 2R E 67,850
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of &l : R HERITHEH LIRS (11)
67,839
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28. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
(d) Disposal of 100% equity interests in Xian

Diyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd
(“X'ian Diyue")

In prior year, Xi'an Diyue borrowed from a PRC
property developer (the “Lender”), who is an
independent third party, (the “Loan”) while 30%
of the shares of Xi'an Diyue have been pledged
to the Lender as a security. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Loan was due to mature.
After internal discussions, the Group decided
not to proceed with this project in view of the
significant requirement of resources to fulfil the
significant capital commitment to complete this
project and the foreseeable return. The Group
decided to dispose of the whole project as a
package at nil consideration to the Lender. The
project was sold in this manner such that the
Group could eliminate the indebtedness to the
Lender of RMB600,000,000. The disposal of Xi'an
Diyue was completed on 25 August 2022.

Details of net assets disposed of in respect of the
Xi'an Diyue at the date of disposal are summarised

(d)

—E = A=+ —HIFE

28. HE—RKWB AR #)

HEAZBBEMERSER
PR 2 R #9100 % A% % ([ 7 &2 3
@ZJ)

4
i R
95

L

ol dm—
7B R R
[B NDEAEZXRUTE
M PR 2 30% A% 15
HPFERAERERY -
—E-F+ZRAR=+—
HIEFE BEREINH LR
e miE %FE&&EEW
EREXEREFTEREELR

PEINESACE R KEEREK
BHEITZIER - AKBERTEI
TREBEFEEBIERS — @
WWﬁE%EﬁAO%EEE
L/(Jitﬁ_tﬁ% AR E B A&
BEREE AW@%AE%
600,000,000 ° & 78 27 3
PR E-_—_FNA-+HH
FERK ©

> |1

by

/

7

L
~—

’

i RIS e

)

b

hu]

ERAZABNEERRZE
HEBEFEFBHRADT

below:
RMB’000
ARETF T
Property, plant and equipment Y- BE &K E 17
Inventories of property under FEEERYEFE
development for sale 1,100,160
Trade and other receivables and & LAt AR 3 K L th JE LSRR IE K
prepayments AT RIE 35,940
Bank balance and cash RITEHB RS 44
Trade and other payables and accruals JE 1<t BR 2R A K2 L th JE A 2R TE K2
FEsH & (209,245)
Other borrowing H b 8K (600,000)
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 326,916
Loss on disposal of the Xi'an Diyue HEAZMB . EE (326,916)
Total consideration mRE -
Net cash outflows arising from disposal: HEELAZRE R F5
consideration received 2R E -
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of i : B HERITEBR RIS (44)
(44)
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28. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
(e) Disposal of its 60% equity interests

28. HE—RKWEBQE (&)
(e) HEENRBF=ZHEERb

in Nanping Sandi Xiangsong Real

Estate Development Co., Ltd (“Nanping
Xiangsong”)

At the beginning stage, the location of project of
Nanping Xiangsong was originally set out as an
area of tourism and ecological resort. However,
at a later stage, the local government decided to
have an airport to be built nearby. This unexpected
change caused the Group to decide for disposal
of the whole project as a package in order to
minimise the cost to be incurred to sell the
properties individually by each unit. Therefore, the
Group decided to dispose of all of its 60% equity
interests in Nanping Xiangsong. The disposal
of Nanping Xiangsong was completed on 29
September 2022 to an independent third party at
a consideration of RMB30,000,000.

Details of net assets disposed of in respect of the
Nanping Xiangsong at the date of disposal are

ERZXERAR ([AEEME]
260% % #E

RYBARE mYEYEEEERN
B RN % AR 28 & A R
ERE-Am ERERE
5 XA SR TE TE BT 4T B A
5o ZBEIINEEBHARER R
EHEMEMEBEES BTN
E UNBBEETERBLEY
¥EENKABRERE - R
I AREBEREHEHERE T
FMEH 2 E60%MKHE - HERM
TEHEEER-_ZE-__FHA
ZtTthBEEK REAEAREK
30,000,000 °

EREYEERLERRZE
HEBEFEFBHRADT

summarised below:

RMB’000
ARET T
Property, plant and equipment M BB REE 2,170
Inventories of properties under FERRPYEFS
development for sale 638,668
Inventories of properties held for sale BIEHEMERFE 80,428
Trade and other receivables and JFE LAt AR 3 R L th JE LSOk TE K
prepayments T RIA 203,270
Bank balance and cash RITHB LIRS 31,192
Trade and other payables and accruals JE 1~ BR SR DA B2 L A 8 A< 3R IE 2
=] (603,119)
Bank borrowings RITEE (228,330)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE (1,600)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 122,679
Less: non-controlling interests B FEIERR M (49,071)
Loss on disposal of the Nanping Xiangsong HEMFEME 2 EE (43,608)
Total consideration BMRE 30,000
Net cash outflows arising from disposal: HEEEZReREFE
consideration received 2R E 30,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of i : E HERITEB RIS (31,192)
(1,192)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the composition of debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the bank and other borrowings
of RMB6,047,819,000, convertible bond of
RMB451,435,000, promissory note of RMB546,062,000,
amounts from related companies and the ultimate
controlling shareholder of RMB124,168,000,
disclosed in notes 23, 26, 27, and 36 respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents of RMB148,063,000
and equity attributable to owners of the Group of
RMB4,392,297,000, comprising share capital and
reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure periodically. As a part of this review, the
management reviews the planned construction projects
proposed by engineering department and prepares the
annual budget taking into account of the provision
of funding. The management of the Group assesses
the annual budget and considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
management of the Group also balances its overall
capital structure through the repayment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

29. EXEARER

AEBEREEAUBRAEEZ
EREAFELE YEBEBLE
1 MBS R R R A R K B
AEBNEBRESREFERE

REBZEAELERFER (BED
RIS 5E23 ~ 26 ~ 27 36% & 2 iR
TREMEE ARE,047,819,000
- A AR E 5 A R #451,435,000
ECH Z B AR 546,062,000
CERBEERARRRIER
B2 HEARK124,168,000
) ReEMBEEEFEARE
148,063,000t R N E B A A FEAG
B% #E A R #4,392,297,0007T (6%
BEAS K &) BAK ©

gl di gl

AEBEEEEETHEMNERARE -
EREHZ W EEEZERT
REEEMt S REEE I h
EZRINECLHRBHFERE -
AEBEEERRAGFEREN
REREETKRANREHRESWAMH
Rk o AEBIEETEBEERS
A0 1T SR D [ B A 2 BT R
EHNBORAERFEHEEESE
ARIRHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

(a)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30 T A
Categories of financial instruments (a) 2RI E 2R
2023 2022
—_E-= g2
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR FT AREF T
Financial assets B EE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEN AR EZ
MBEE 1,013,456 1,361,106
Financial liabilities MEas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR At E 2
WBarE 9,911,994 9,475,189
Derivative financial instruments AR I A - 6,179
9,911,994 9,481,368
Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEBREEEEREE

(b)

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, other refundable
deposits, amounts due from related companies
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, deposits received from
tenants, amounts due to related companies, and
the ultimate controlling shareholder, bank and
other borrowings, convertible bond and promissory
note. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

2 1 8 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a
monetary item will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

The Company and certain of the Hong Kong
subsidiaries of the Company have bank balances,
other receivables, other payables, amounts due to
related companies, convertible bond, promissory
note and intra-group balances denominated in
Hong Kong Dollar ("HK$"). The Group manages
its exposures to foreign currency transactions by
monitoring the level of foreign currency receipts
and payments. The Group ensures that the net
exposure to foreign exchange risk is kept to an
acceptable level from time to time.

The Group considers its foreign currency exposure
is mainly arising from the exposure of HK$ against
RMB. The Group regularly reviews the balances
of assets and liabilities and the currencies in
which the transactions are denominated so as to
minimise the Group’s exposure to foreign currency
risk.

—E-CHf A=+ AIER

30 €@ T B (&)

(b)

BEEREEERRBE(E)

S EAREE
SMERRIEEHE R BEEE
FE o 2 80 77 4 B9 2 LR o

ARRREETEEHRBRA
BIRITHEER - H b B WRIRE
HibENRIE ENEELR
BIRIA - ATRRES AR E
B REBARRMBGEHAE
(BT AHE AEBEER
SN WK B2 S SRR FEIAE
BIME R Z ) E B o AN & E E
R BT A 1 S L g 0% B8 T B
MERF IR AT SKF ©

AEERR HEIERREE
KEBEETAARBZRER - K
SEEHRIHEEENAGRS
BUARZH 2 ERFEEM
BEROAKBE RS ZINE
[\ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. @ T R (»®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIBEREEEERKE (&)

policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk management (continued) ISR e B EE ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign AN £ B DA SNBSS B I T AN
currency denominated monetary assets and R EEEENEE ARG
monetary liabilities and intra-group balances, REBARGIBGEHR (BEREE
with exposure to foreign currency risk which are REBEBRE)RBREARZE
considered as significant by management, at the HEHT :

end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-= —E--F —E-=HE —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTFRT AEETT ARETfT AEFTT

HK$ - intra-group BIL—EBRAAE

balances ] 45 349,275 270,566 49,399 53,375
HK$ - total bank and Ex—B1TRES

cash balances Heriass 647 1,602 - -
HK$ - trade and other &7t —fEUBE Z )2

receivables H i U 5B 47,553 46,250 - -
HK$ — amount due BT WA E D

from related GlE /e

companies 1,790 1,951 - -
HK$ - trade and other & —EMNBRZ R

payables H fth fE £ 5K - - 26,072 7,167
HK$ — amount due to &t —ER @A

related companies AlFE - - 14 70
HK$ - debt BT RRES

component of BB

convertible bonds - - 453,664 404,491
HK$ — derivative BB ES

component of PTET AR

convertible bonds - - - 7,856
HK$ — promissory note & 7T — & X%, R &% - - 546,062 519,026
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HIFZF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. @ T B (#®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIBEREEEERKE (£)
policies (continued)
Sensitivity analysis BREDHT
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity TEREINNAEBRRAARE N &
to a 5% (2022: 5%) increase and decrease in TLE XM AP5% (ZF
RMB against HK$5% (2022: 5%) is the sensitivity T FE 5% ) B ERE o
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk MAEEZEIE A BERINE
internally to key management personnel. The Bk A% (ZE =
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding 5%) RERERELL X - GURE
foreign currency denominated monetary items DITEBERTBREIL UINE
and adjusts their translation at the end of the FFE2E%IEE BRWMES
reporting period end for a 5% (2022: 5%) change RILER 25% (ZF = —F
in foreign currency rates. A positive number below 5%)BEETHRERE - TX
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where RMB JIEEBERARBE BT EH
strengthen 5% (2022: 5%) against HK$. For a 5% (ZE__F:5%)F K
5% (2022: 5%) weakening of RMB against HKS, BB mF e AR HE
there would be an equal and opposite impact on ETE%S% (ZE=-—%F :5%)
the post-tax loss and the amounts below would be BRI EEBEER R
negative. ﬁE’MH:?&ﬁ“ T X& a5
BRa-
2023 2022
—EZ=HF —ZE_—
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARMFIT ARETTT

Increase in post-tax loss for the year F N BR 1% B 181 hn 33,797 33,581
In managements opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EEERA BRESTIAA
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange XEEIERR  REAFR
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the BT AR E 2 EbE o

exposure during the relevant years.
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. @ T R (»®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIBEREEEERKE (&)
policies (continued)
Interest rate risk FI 7 B
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate AEBREERITREME
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank and other B o ES 2 &R 4EKE
borrowings, debt component of convertible bond, nDoEHEE- BN —EEE
promissory note and amount due to a related ARARERHAEEE (DR
company as disclosed in notes 23, 26, 27 and Bf5E23 -~ 26 ~ 27 &% 36(a)A #
36(a) respectively. These financial instruments BEOEEAFEMNERRMRE - %
issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair Eem I AKETERNERETT
value interest rate risk. The Group cash flow BYAREERATAFEEMNEKR
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the i o N EE B IR & B =X | i
fluctuation of interest rates on restricted bank EEPNTRGIRITFER LR
deposits bank balances and variable rate bank and THBEAIENERFETRE
other borrowings. The Group is not exposed to B e AR F R FIRE T E
significant cash flow interest rate risk on restricted Ko BN B E G R 6 R
bank deposits and bank balances as the fluctuation TERLBETESEREAR
in interest rate is insignificant. The Group has not EMEMNXER - NEBEI K
used any financial instruments to hedge potential KRAEWHESp T AESHI R
fluctuation in interest rates. B E o
The following table illustrates the potential impact THREARBAEER -F
of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100 =R -_FTE-_-_F+-H
basis points in all financial instruments’ yield rate —+—BR&ERENAESER
on the Group's retained profits, based on the EXTEZFEaERR 1A
Group's positions of variable interest-generating ST ARFIRFETEFASLT
assets and variable interest-bearing liabilities at the PE100E A H AEERE &
end of 31 December 2023 and 2022. MEYBETE -
2023 2022
—E=-= —F=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETTT

Retained profits R 8 5 A
+ 100 basis points + T001E E 25 27,341 35,990
- 100 basis points - 1001E 2 (27,341) (35,990)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’'s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, other
receivables, restricted bank deposits, bank balances
and amounts due from related companies and
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts, except that the credit risks associated
with financial guarantee contracts is mitigated
because they are secured over-by properties.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from default of the customers is limited as the
customers have continuous repayment. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances
based on provision matrix.

The concentration of credit risk in respect of trade
receivables is minimal, of which there is only
one customer represents more than 5% of the
total trade receivables as at 31 December 2023
(2022:n0 customer)

—E-CHf A=+ AIER

30 €@ T B (&)

(b)

BEEREEERRBE(E)

15 B /7 B K 5 {8 77 15
EERREAEENT HH T
EREBHNETMERAKEER
BEENER AEENEE
[ B £ 2 B AR AR EL
WKIE - RRHIRTHER R
1T 4 858 e R AR R & 1 =) K Y B
NEFEEBRBERRIBEFE - K
SEVESETAAFRIE
i 15 B 38 58 8 5 LA AR % 22 H BF
BEERMBERGORBELZ
EERR MEEETMEER
BRHEBZEERRDRIE
Rz EFHEERE DAY EE
(]

EPERELZ BN

HREFEREENR A5HE
AEFEOT @R EERR
ER -AEBEEFIEEMEE
2R ARERIREUVRETTEIN
Ol @ HE R - I AEER
EREERZBEHNEEERE
AL B B RETTRER A

RZEZ=F+=-H=+—
H BRFENEFREERR
BIE EPEE—BEF (=
T _F UWERP)MER
BRBEERS% A ko
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HILFEF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. @ T A #®)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIBEREEEERKE (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEE R B E ()
(continued)
Trade receivables arising from rental income K5 A 5 W R 5
Trade receivables from rental income are assessed REHSWANE S ERERR
for ECL individually and the provision rates are HEHEEHREBETERF
based on the historical default rates, past due o BEREBRENELEN
status and the financial capability of individual R @R E R EBRABEA
debtor taking into consideration forward-looking e BEFRAE A X
information that is reasonable, supportable and BEEBABASKASAZ T
available without undue cost or effort. For the FEAEEEMATEEER -
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the BE _E-_=FfhN T - —F
Group assessed the ECL for trade receivables from TZA=+T—HBLFE K&
rental income are insignificant and thus no loss BatkaHeWANE S EW
allowance is recognised. R HERHEEBEEY TS

Ko EHE » WERERBEEE -

Other receivables (mainly made up of funds A EKZIE(FEBITEN
advanced to contractors) and refundable EEBEEL) A RERS
deposits

For other receivables and refundable deposits, the TLE M E W R TE KAl R g R
management makes periodic individual assessment emMs EEERBATLEE
on the recoverability of other receivables and ik BELBRERAERIE
refundable deposits based on historical settlement M EE MEEREEER
records, past experience, and also quantitative TFTHEHIS E b EWFIE N AR
and qualitative information that is reasonable B e m A W e E L E R
and supportive forward-looking information. The EWE EIEEMRE 8 fﬁ]ﬁ’*ﬁ&
management believes that there is no significant RUK  ZE2TNEER
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial Iﬂﬂiz@%i‘ me mAEER TF
recognition and the Group provided impairment 12 BB E BB IELR
based on 12m ECL. For the years ended 31 E%ﬂ% HEz-ZT-_=FK=
December 2023 and 2022, the Group assessed the -+ -_HA=+—H Jj:i
ECL for other receivables are insignificant and thus [ AR EFEE MWK

no loss allowance is recognised. WEBHMEEBBEL TEX -

I SR S R A o
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A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Amounts due from related companies/
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

The credit risk of amounts due from related
companies and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries are managed through an internal
process. The Group actively monitors the
outstanding amount owed by each related party
and identifies any credit risks in a timely manner
in order to reduce the risk of a credit related loss.
Further, the Group closely monitors the financial
performance of the related companies which
mainly engage in properties development in the
PRC and financial capacity of non-controlling
shareholder and considering the future prospects
of the industry in which those debtors operate
in. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on the outstanding
balances individually. For the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, the Group assessed
the ECL for amounts due from related companies
and a non-controlling shareholder of subsidiary
are insignificant and thus no loss allowance in
recognised.

The Group exposes to concentration of credit
risk in respect of amounts due from a related
company and a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiary at the amounts of RMB62,613,000 and
RMB168,346,000 (2022: RMB87,268,000 and
RMB168,346,000), respectively, representing 80%
and 65% (2022: 39% and 80%) of total amounts
due from related companies and non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries. The directors of
the Company continue to monitor and assess
the financial status of the counterparties, and
they believe the exposure to credit risk on these
balances is not significant as the counterparties
are of good financial position.

—E-CHf A=+ AIER

30 €@ T B (&)

(b)

BEEREEERRBE(E)
1= B /7 B K dl B 715 (4F)

JEY BEi#E L 7] N E A Al FE
AR I8 A

FE U B & B & MY BB A R) FEE
R R RIERN EERRE BN
HEFER AEEBHREET
EHESERINAREENRE
I K EFBEREERR - LA
AR ERBEEERNRER © 1t
Oh REBZYER T E NS
BINEMEER 2CBERTLZ
MEERBFRIIETERBR R 2%
BEN WEEZZEBBEALSE
FIET¥ZARRAI R - BE -
AEBEREBEEREEBBER
HREREHRERRNITRE
FH-BEZZE-_=FEK=F
T ZF®+ZRAR=+—8BLt#HF
B -AEEFGHEKBERFA
N — 2 M B A R FEHE PR AR R AR
BEMEHREEBELTEKR
BRI 3P 4 T R ES 1B B 4 o

AEEER —HEBEEIRKR
—ZH BN A IEERRAE R R
HAXZEESETRR €84
AR #62,613,0007T & A R #
168,346,000 (— & = —
AR #87,268,0007T & A R #
168,346,0007T) * 7 B4 FE UL
RNV NI E S 2 )
R IE R T 280% &65% (=
T 4 :39%K%80% ) o A
NABESHRBERLTHRS
HAZHMBERL ARR Y
FHBHKRARLT  HEERA
REEBITAZZEERRI
REK-
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. @ T R (»®)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIBEREEEERKE (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEE R B E ()
(continued)
Bank balances/restricted deposits RITAERR IR BT
The credit risks on bank balances and restricted RITEREEZREFHNEE
deposits are limited because the counterparties RAER  AAEHEFFH K
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by ERFREEREETNERTER
international credit rating agencies. The Group HERIRTIT - REEZRZEINES
assessed 12m ECL for bank balances and restricted FEETREREAMNERED
deposits by reference to information relating AREMEREEBRANER 5T
to probability of default and loss given default H12E A TEHEEFEE 2R
of the respective credit rating grades published HEHREZBHFER - BEFH
by external credit rating agencies. Based on the BEXFE  RBPITEHKET
average loss rates, the 12m ECL on bank balances REIFRMI2ELBHEZEER
and restricted deposits are considered to be BEREGARMTRE AU
insignificant and therefore no loss allowance was REEEE -
recognised.
Financial guarantee contracts HBERE#
For the financial guarantee contracts provided BAEBREFEABFER
by the Group to banks in connection with the NEEBEMEmMMIEITIRME
customers borrowing of mortgage loans to finance RNEBBERELMS A& H
their purchase of properties, the Group measured RBRREYEEERD KETE
the loss allowance on financial guarantee contracts Wike  BEZENEBEFTEY
by reference to the loss on default based on the BERENEEEE SHAE
current property value and the pre-sale deposits EAEL R RE=FRITE
already received. For the financial guarantee EmMRAETIRENTEERSE
contracts provided by the Group to banks in HMs ANABESCEITR
connection with the related parties and third EBEfFE TRAEVBEREGY
parties bank borrowings, the directors of the ZIEERR B VMR ERARL
Company has performed impairment assessment, ARIRIE I o At AN EE
and concluded that there has been no significant H 7B BIEREN ZEBEE
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the BBEEM2E B FAHREEEIE
financial guarantee contracts. Accordingly, the loss R E o WMERNIBEZE AR
allowance for financial guarantee contracts issued REEREE RESCERE
by the Group is measured at an amount equal to EZATESRERSHE -

12m ECL. No loss allowance was recognised in
the profit or loss because the fair value of assets
pledged is higher than the guarantee amounts.
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RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

BE—F =

30 €@ T B (&)
BEEREEEERBKE (&)

(b)

—F+_A=+—HIFFE

1= B /7 B K dl B 715 (4F)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment REBE KL= E R FTFRTE
comprises the following categories: BIELA TR -
Other financial
Internal Trade assets/other
credit rating Description receivables items
Hitbi i &E
RERE A RTAR R FE Uk BR K HtEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL-not 12m ECL
default and does not have any credit-impaired
past-due amounts
15 2 B REHEFNEARRBREEBTEEMR 2HBEHEEEERE 128 AEH
pal ot ok —EERRE EEEE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL-not 12m ECL
dates but usually settle in full credit-impaired
BRBEE BERAREERRER R RELSS >HEBMEEREE 12EARHEE
BBUE —EERRE
&8
Doubtful There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL-not Lifetime ECL not
in credit risk since initial recognition credit-impaired credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
175 BIBABESNERIINEEIR 2HEHEEEE 2HEBEEEBE
BHRBULHRANEEERR —EERREME —EEREME
ABEE Hn
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
&8 BERBBRTNEECHREERE 2HEHEEEE 2HEBEEEE
—EERE —EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the  Amount is written ~ Amount is written
debtor is in severe financial difficulty — off off
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
i 8 ERBRETEBAERREREMBEE SEDME T M
BEXREBEWEYERENATER
Al =

RE=ZAZRARALT
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 BE=—FT=—=F+-A=+—HIFEF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. @ T A #®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BHEMREEEEZEREE(Z)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEE R B E ()
(continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of T X ¢E B EEERE
the Group’s financial assets and other items, which MIEE (BESHEYEZSER
are subject to ECL assessment: ) ﬁﬁé\ﬁ E,\Mé’\gﬂ:' -
External Internal ~ 12-month or Gross carrying
2023 Notes credit rating  credit rating lifetime ECL amount
T OMBER APER 12ERH
—E-ZH Hizt Tk RE 2HEERRE FHAE
RMB'000
AREFT
Financial assets at amortised cost
BEERAGECHEEE
Trade receivables 19 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL - 71,317
- contracts with customers N . (not credit-impaired)
BYRER-RERPEH 19 il (Hist1) zﬁﬁi‘ﬁﬁﬂi “Eﬂﬁ—
(LEESRE)
Trade receivables - rental income 19 N/A Low risk  Lifetime ECL - 24,114
- (Note 2) (not credit- |mpa|red)
YR - EBA 19 TER KRR EE‘HJ"EE}W @fﬂﬁ—
(Hrit2) (TEESRE)
Other refundable deposits 19 N/A Low risk  12m ECL 30,098
\ - (Note 3)
EtRWZERTREEZS 19 Sili ERk  REARBEEER
(Hi23)
Other receivables 19 N/A Low risk  Lifetime ECL 73,000
- (Note 3) (credit- |mpa|red)
H R 19 TER EER  2EENCERA
(Hi#3) (E&RE)
Lowrisk  12m ECL 174,437
(Note 3)
EER  NEREBEEES
(H73)
Amounts due from related 36(a) N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 78,262
companies N (Note 3) .
NGB 36(a) TEA {55 B NEAEHEERSR
(Hr#3)
Amount due from non- 36(a) N/A Low risk  12m ECL 236,461
controlling shareholders of (Note 3)
subsidiaries N o
U GINSE ) S0 36(a) ESili ERR  NREARHEEBR
(Hii3)
Restrlcted bank dep05|ts 20 A2 N/A 12m ECL . 250,704
SRERITEN 20 A2 TEA  NEAESREEER
Other items 20 A3 to Aa3 N/A 12m ECL ) 148,063
HiIER 20 A3ZAa3 TEA  NEAEHEEER
Financial guarantee contracts 35 N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 4,316,624
N (Note 4 & 5) .
HBERED 35 ~ER ERE 12EAESREEER
(W24 R5)
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A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. @ T R (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BHEMREEBEEREE(Z)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE 7R B E R (E)
(continued)
External Internal  12-month or Gross carrying
2022 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount
CONBEA ABER @RS
—EC-CF 23 B i 2HEEFR REAE
RMB'000
ANRETFT
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBENATECHBEE
Trade receivables 19 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL - 17,768
- contracts with customers N . (not credit-impaired)
BUWER-REBFAL 19 TER (W#1)  2EEHEABE-
(TEEERE)
Trade receivables 19 N/A Low risk  Lifetime ECL - 28,747
- rental income N (Note 2) (not creo\lit-‘impaired)
YR -HE WA 19 TME A yENS ’i\,ﬁﬁﬁﬁi,ﬁﬂﬁﬁ{éﬂé—
(Briz2) (TEEERE)
Other refundable deposits 19 N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 34,724
\ (Note 3) )
HtERFRERTRELZ S 19 T ERE  2EARBEEER
(H1323)
Other receivables 19 N/A Low risk  Lifetime ECL 73,000
N (Note 3) (credit—impairgd)
4 E R 19 TER ERR 2BENCEER
(F23) (FERE)
Low risk ~ 12m ECL 157,122
(Note 3) o
ﬁﬁt\lﬁl’? REABHEEBE
(H1#23)
Amounts due from related 36(a) N/A Low risk  12m ECL 66,322
companies N (Note 3) .
JEUBIE N R FIE 36(a) A EEk NEARBEEER
(h1#23)
Amount due from non- 36(a) N/A Low risk ~ 12m ECL 257,550
controlling shareholders of (Note 3)
subsidiaries N o
[EU—ZH B AR IR RFIE  36(a) TEH ﬁﬁft‘ﬁﬁ REAEHEERE
(f7:#3)
Restricted/pledged bank deposits 20 A2 N/A 12m ECL o 487,926
SRE/BEBBITIER 20 A2 TEH NREABHEERERE
Bank balances 20 A3 to Aa3 N/A 12m ECL ) 310,947
RITH B 20 A3ZAa3 TER NEAEBREEEE
Other items
HihER
Financial guarantee contracts 35 N/A Low risk  12m ECL 5,798,650
N (Note 4 & 5) o
BBERELD 35 NiE ERRE NEARBEEER
(Bi4%5)
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. @R T A %)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIBEREEEERKE (&)
policies (continued)
=B B e R E 1 (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes: BT

For trade receivables from contracts with
customers, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The trade receivables
from contracts with customers are assessed for
ECL based on provision matrix. The ECL on trade
receivables from contracts with customers at 31
December 2023 and 2022 according to provision
matrix based on historical are insignificant credit
loss experience adjusted by forward-looking
estimates without undue cost or effort. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate.

The Group assessed lifetime ECL for trade
receivables from rental income. The ECL on trade
receivables from rental income at 31 December
2023 and 2022 are insignificant according to the
individual assessments based on historical credit
loss experience adjusted by forward-looking
estimates without undue cost or effort.

For the purposes of credit risk management,
the Group uses past due information adjusted
by forward-looking estimates of the other
receivables, related companies and non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries to assess whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. Except for the credit-impaired balance
of RMB73,000, which has been fully impaired,
the balances of other receivables are not past
due at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The related
companies and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries are considered by the management
to have sound financial position. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the risk of default
by these counterparties is not significant according
to the individual assessments and the ECL on these
balances are insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —-F —=

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

4.

For the financial guarantee contracts provided
by the Group to banks in connection with the
customers borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of properties, loan facilities
granted to related companies and third parties,
the Group measured the loss allowance on
financial guarantee contracts by reference to the
historical default rate of the customers, related
companies and third parties the loss on default
based on the current property value and the
pre-sale deposits already received and the forward
looking information. The directors of the Company
considered that the loss allowances on financial
guarantee contracts at 31 December 2023 and
2022 were insignificant to the Group.

Below are the credit rating regarding the financial
guarantee contracts:

e

B H RN

Fr_A=1+—HIFE

30 €@ T B (&)

(b)

BEEREEERRBE(E)

1= B /7 B K dl B 715 (4F)

Wi - (&)

4.

RAKBEBELEBAERE
FUBEBEYEmMMIRT
RENMBERENH BT
MEARRERFE=Z T 2EZRE
BmME ARBKEL2ERRS -
BEQAIRE=ZANBEE
HE - ZENWEEENHE
MENBERERES RS
AR AEEE & 25
EREANEBERE A2
RIEERAE R_ZTE_=F
M—ZE_—F+_A=+—
BV BERANEBBEE
HAREEMELRERK °

UTRERMBEREON
EEFR:

Internal credit rating

A BB S B R AR

Mortgage facilities granted to customers R FALEBEMERFHNIZBRE Low risk
of the Group's properties KR
Guarantees given to banks in connection FLi% F B A BN E K@ & W R N/A (note)

with loan facilities granted to related
companies

Guarantees given to banks in connection
with loan facilities granted to third
parties

Note: no internal credit rating have been assessed
as the assessment of loss on default was
determined based on the pledged property
value instead of the credit rating/historical
default rate of the related companies and
the third parties.

TTIEH B FER

IRTE=ZTNEARBEMIRTT
fE B FE R

iz -

RE=ZAZRARALT

TEm ()

N/A (note)
EA (M)

HRENEBERIEDRED
HRYEBEMIEBEDRF
RE=ZTHEENR BE
BHOREF WAEFHA
EBIEEFFR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ —-F — =

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the directors of the
Company, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term

—F+_A="+—HIFFE

30 €@ T B (&)

MBERREEBERBE &)
REELEE
ZK@T%%iTUILEﬂé AHF

funding and liquidity management requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by:

o continuously monitoring forecast and actual

cash flows;

o maintaining adequate level of liquid assets

REEFE A

BRRKEME IE@iDL
ZRBETRAREEER

ERASEEZESR HHER
HESIRBESE

BHEK o

AT 77 4 &1 &)

& Rk

mainly comprise of cash and cash equivalents
and held for trading equities securities;

o receiving pre-sale deposits for sale of

properties from customers; and

° applying long-term finance including

convertible bond, promissory note and bank

borrowings
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. @ T R (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIBEREEEERKE (£)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) B E %R (E)
The following table details the Group’s contractual TERFIWAEBHTBEERIT
maturity for its financial liabilities and derivative ETAZERNIBBER KK
instruments. The table has been drawn up based DRBASEAER 2T H
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial HtEEBaE s R RBEER
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the emEEL - TREEMNER
Group can be required to pay. The table includes AREEEMRE

both interest and principal cash flows.

Liquidity tables TE B K I
Weighted ~ Ondemand 3 months Total
average  orless than to 102 2105 Over undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate 3 months 1 year years years Syear  cash flows amount
REXY *EE
mETEAE  JMER  fEAEIE 15§ 1558 RESF RefiEgE ]
% RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000

% ABRTn  ARBTn  ARRFn  ARBFn  ARRFL  ARRFGT  ARRFR

pLIYE] TEIZE
Trade and other payables EREARLR
EfiE 274747 - - - - LT QTITA

Amounts due to related EREELARE

companies 21,58 - - - - 1,58 24,50
Amount due to the ulimate ~~ ERBRERRE

controlling shareholder El 99,626 - - - - 99,626 99,626
Bank and other borrowings -~ §TREMES

fixed rate -EEf® 6.04% 1353624 2142229 1,611,707 152,963 866432 6,726955 6,047,819
Debt component of convertible T E% 2 B

bond i 9.55% 450,414 - - - - 450,414 451,435
Promissory note 9.55% 655,639 - - - - 655,639 546,062
Financial guarantee contracts

(note 39) 4,316,624 - - - - 431662 -

9675216 2,142,229 1,611,707 752,963 866,432 15048547 9,944,231
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HILFEF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. €T B (@)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BHEMREEEEZEREE(Z)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) T BB %R (E)
Liquidity tables (continued) B ELKIE (&)
Weighted ~~ Ondemand 3 months Total
alerage or less than fo 1102 205 Over  undiscounted Carmying
interestrate 3 months 1 year ears Jears Syear  cash flows amount
REX AR
NETENE  OER RATIE  mE 1ESF BOF ReNBsE RAEE
% RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

% NEBTL  NEBTT  NEETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARRTR

2022 a2
Trade and other payables EREFRLR
[ 1497403 - - - - 1497403 1497403

Amounts due to related ERE2LTRE

companies 10,873 - - - - 10,873 10,873
Amount due to 3 related Eff-A@ELa

company b 10.00% 5,663 16,988 228735 - - 251,386 223,750
Amount due to a ultimate Eff-4582hk

controlling shareholder hEsE 99,626 - - - - 99,626 99,626
Bank and other borrowings - E{TREMEE-

fixed rate ErilE 6.98% 456572 1726893 2500765 1878226 1111083 7673539 6,720,019
Debt component of convertible T E% 2 B

bond g4 9.55% 4416 - 445,998 - - 450414 404491
Promissory note EHEE 9.55% 23,845 - 631,794 - - 655,639 519,025
Financial quarantee contracts — SEERAY

(note 35) (hi#35) 5,798,650 - - - - 5,798,650 -

1897048 1743881 3807200 187826 111083 16437530 9475187
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A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts
the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to
the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end
of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the
probability of the counterparty claiming under the
guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's
current liabilities amounted to approximately
RMB14,235,000,000 whilst its restricted bank
deposits and bank balances and cash amounted to
only approximately RMB399,000,000. As at that
date, the Group’s outstanding bank and other
borrowings of approximately RMB2,802,910,000
are due for repayment within one year.

These conditions indicate an uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore,
the Group may not be able to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course
of business. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on the assumption that the
Group will continue to operate as a going concern
notwithstanding the conditions prevailing as at 31
December 2023 and subsequently up to the date
of authorisation for issuance of these consolidated
financial statements.

—E-CHf A=+ AIER

30 €@ T B (&)

(b)

BEEREEERRBE(E)

REEZEE ()

AL BREREO 2
BRRERUFIREGARS
B NRE A AT BIE
REBRELHEEZES S
BoERBERRZ2MEF K
SERB/RELZ A MEM
IR AT BE M BE - AT 0 #%
EET Al BE A R 5 # 05 IRIBHE AR
REBERZAEEMNRE
BRI REIERER 5 H 5
BEERZMBEERERE
EEBRZAEMEER -

RZEBEZ=F+=RAR=+—
H AEENRBEELN A
AN K #14,235,000,0007T -
i B S BR B R 1T 17 KA IR
THEHERBESEYAEARE
399,000,0007T ° M#Z B » &N &
ErREERITREMERKL
AR #2,802,910,0007T A — F
AR HEE -

>D\l\bl1rl‘
4

BERBREFEIEEA
AR A EEFELCER
HEKEARM - At - K
SEAEEEIRBEERKB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HILFEF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
In order to improve the Group’s financial position,
immediate liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise
to sustain the Group as a going concern, the
directors have adopted several measures together
with other measures in progress at the date of
authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, which include but not limited to, the
followings:

(i) for borrowings which will be maturing
before 31 December 2024, the Group will
actively negotiate with the banks before
they fall due to secure their renewals so as
to ensure that the necessary funds to meet
the Group’s working capital and financial
requirements in the future will continue
to be met. The directors do not expect to
experience significant difficulties in renewing
most of these bank borrowings upon their
maturities and there is no indication that
these bank lenders will not renew the
existing bank borrowings upon the Group’s
request. The directors have evaluated the
relevant facts and circumstances available to
them and are of the opinion that the Group
would be able to renew such borrowings
upon maturity. Subsequent to the end of
reporting period, Subsequent to the end of
reporting period, (a) bank borrowings of
approximately RMB26,671,000 have been
fully repaid whereas new bank borrowings
of approximately RMB15,900,000, with a
term of one year, have been raised; and
(b) new other borrowings of approximately
RMB2,861,000, with a term of two vyears,
have been raised;

(i) the Group would sell the investment
properties in order to improve the Group’s
financial position, liquidity and cash flows, if
necessary; and

(iii) the Group applies cost control measures in
cost of sales and administrative expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 # %

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c¢) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of the Group's financial liabilities
are determined (in particular the valuation
technique and inputs used).

—F oS+ Af—AILEE

— =

30 €@ T B (&)

(c)

EBMTAAVENE

FEERBEEZMEERR
FEFEZHBEEERE
EEZRFHE

TRAHEHNHALEE S
BEzAFEEESA (K5
MR ETERBEASBE)

Fair value Valuation technique and
Financial assets Fair value at hierarchy inputs used
MBEE DN¥E DNFESHR FMAGERNREARE
2023 2022
—EB=-= —E-—
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
Derivative - 6,179 Level 3 Binomial model Fair value
component E=# s estimated based on
of convertible time-to-maturity, stock price,
bond conversion price, risk-free
AR ES 207 rate, discount rate, expected

AT HEED

There were no transfers among different levels
during the year.

volatility and expected
dividend.

“HEAREBE-QNFERIEAR
IRME - FIRE  BERRNEX .
IR E - TEHRIE & TE B
BAERET -

FA - BRAZELEERE -
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

30 €@ T B (&)

() EMTARNFENE R

F=RAFHETAEBZHE

measurements
Derivative
component
PTET RIS
RMB’000
AR For
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZEBE-_—_F—H—H 102,071
Unrealised change in fair value RERBRAZARERRTEES
recognised in profit or loss (101,430)
Exchange adjustments FE o, =& 5,538
As at 31 December 2022 R-E-_—F+-_F=+—H 6,179
Unrealised change in fair value RIERER 2 ARER AN FEES
recognised in profit or loss (6,320)
Exchange adjustments DE 34, 58 & 141

As at 31 December 2023

The fair values of other financial liabilities of the

Group are determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial liabilities carried at o
amortised costs is determined in accordance

TEHAEE ¢

12 SRR

with generally accepted pricing models based BiEARTE

s
EE

AEBEMTHEBE IR FERNA

ZHBREZ

RNFEDRBRECRENN
ERAEE A

on discounted cash flow analysis, which the
carrying amount is approximate to its fair
value; and

the fair value of financial guarantee
contracts at initial recognition is determined
to be insignificant, using option pricing
models where the main assumptions are
the probability of default by the specified
counterparty extrapolated from market-based
credit information and the amount of loss
given default.
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A M BRKE

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 31. RiEZEFiELENABYHE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRIFIWAEFERETHESEN
arising from financing activities, including both cash BE BERESNIERSES - gl
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing BIEIHEALANBEBEENANER 4
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future ERERERPTBERS REE R
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated HARNBAKRRESTERBAME
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing SEER S REZAE -
activities.
Amounts Debt
Amounts  duetothe  component
due to ultimate of Bank and
Other Interest related  controlling  convertible  Promissory other
payable payable  companies shareholder bond note  borrowings Total
Bf
it ErBE  RRER &R RTR
EfsE  EANE  ARRE RRFE E5B2 AREE  HfGE @it
RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARETR ARETT AREFT AREFT  AREFT  AREFL  ARETZ
(note 40(3) (note 27) (note 23)
(2406) W) (WiEn)
At 1 January 2022 i
-f-H 694,399 116,122 989,933 99,626 344,973 455,357 7,366,061 1,006,647
Financing cash flows BERSI 128,840 (376,229) (801,663) - (4,29) (19,754) (656,882)  (1,729,984)
Exchange adjustments EiE - - - - 29,133 38,050 - 67,183
Interest capitalised L@l - 364,636 3),164 - - - - 396,300
Finance costs RERL - 11,594 26,130 - 34,681 45373 - 17,718
At 31 December 2022 RoFZZ
T2A=1-4 823,239 116,123 246,564 99,626 404,491 519,026 6,709,179 8918248
Financing cash flows BERSR 885,767 (381594)  (243,932) - (414 (29135 (661360)  (434395)
Exchange adjustments e - - - - 11,566 6,133 - 17,799
Interest capitalised ERfrE ST VE 21,910 - - - - 39,140
Finance costs HENE - 41,138 - - 39,519 49,938 - 130,595
At 31 December 2023 RZFZZF
TZA=1-4 1,709,006 149,897 24,542 99,626 451,435 546,062 6,047819 9,028,387
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REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32. EEHEHA
The Group's borrowings had been secured by the AEBEENRBAEEEEEE
pledges of the Group's assets and the carrying amounts R BEEEMEREEBENT :

of the respective assets are as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= T 4F
RMB'000 RMB’'000

AREFT AEETT

Investment properties (note 16) WEME(Kit16) 9,604,520 9,110,482
Inventories of properties (note 18) MEGFE (KFiE18) 6,631,866 8,609,502
Trade receivables (note 19) FEUBRFK (K7 5E19) 3,589 8,772
Restricted bank deposits (note 20) Z R EIRITIE R

(Kt7#20) - 28,000

16,239,975 17,756,756

Net assets of a subsidiary (note) —FNB AR FEE
(Bt7) 2,323,256 2,298,724
Note: As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the entire equity Wi R B =—FER T - —F+—
interests of Fujian Sinco Industrial Co., Ltd (“Fujian A=1+—H BELREEXER
Sinco”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the rAal(TREER] ARFZEE
Company, were pledged to secure the bank and other 2EMWBAR) MEIRERS FIE
borrowings granted to the Group. o EARTAEERIT REAME

HREVFELR ©
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RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

33. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 33. EXR R HMAE
At the end of the respective reporting period, the MEREBRR  NEBE 2 &8 RNFEYE
Group has capital commitments as follows: N
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AREFT AEETTT

Capital expenditure contracted for but not ~ BRI T&IEZ 23]

provided in consolidated financial MBI RN EEE B
statements in respect of: BHmERBEEZENR
X :
— Construction commitments for —REYERE
investment properties R 985,229 987,136
Other commitments contracted for BENTREZEE]
but not provided in consolidated MBI KRR ERE B
financial statements in respect of: Mz BEEHE 2 EM
O
- Construction commitments for properties — —fF&E Y EE
for sales A YE 3,219,022 3,565,276
- Consideration commitments for land use —THEREZ
rights RE&E - 83,000

4,204,251 4,635,412
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For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

34. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

All of the properties held by the Group for rental
purposes have committed lessees for the next one
to twenty-five years (2022: one to twenty-five years)
respectively. None of the Group's property held for
rental purposes has been disposed of during the period
of 2023 (2022: Nil).

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are

34, REFELH
AEBEAHBEA
AEBMEBEHEMENRK—
Eo+RE(E-_—F:—F—+
F)AHBEEAEARME - BEARE
BEAHSENZSE (22 -_—F &)
MMERN_—_ZT - FHFREHE o

MEZARBBAREKEAENKNOT :

as follows:

2023 2022

—_E-= —E-=
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥F T AR For
Within one year —F R 157,808 116,058
In the second year E_F 150,259 149,537
In the third year FE=4F 149,256 140,287
In the fourth year Eayuigas 139,186 123,844
In the fifth year FERF 134,707 122,838
After five years HF1% 1,521,366 1,531,580
2,252,582 2,184,144
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For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

35. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 35. BIBIERERN
At the end of the respective reporting period, the MRERERR AEBEDIREAE
Group has provided financial guarantee as follows: BERIOT -
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ABRETF T
Guarantees given in favour of banks for: AT B M B ITIE
HE R
Mortgage facilities granted to customers BRYAEEMERF
of the Group’s properties (note a) WIZE/RE (fita) 3,532,922 4,692,238
Guarantees given to banks in connection RETHREARIZE
with loan facilities granted to related AR ERBEERT
companies (note b) R1T (#fiFb) 561,000 872,800
Guarantees given to banks in connection METE=ZFAZER
with loan facilities granted to third parties RERMEERT
(note ¢) 17 (H7atc) 222,702 233,612
4,316,624 5,798,650
Notes: Htat -

(a)

The Group had provided guarantees in respect
of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks in
connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
customers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, if a customer defaults on the
payment of its mortgage during the term of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group
to repay the outstanding amount of the loan and any
accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the
Group is able to retain the customer’s sales deposit and
sell the property to recover any amounts paid by the
Group to the bank. The guarantee period commences
from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans
and ends after the customer obtained the individual
property ownership certificate. The fair value of the
financial guarantee contracts is insignificant at the initial
recognition. In the opinion of the directors, no provision
for the guarantee contracts is recognised as the loss
given default is low due to the value of pledged assets.

(a)

AEBEBETRITRE ZRIBR
BRHER  ZFREVE S A
AEBMEEFPMAILZEBE
oo RBERZGR  MEZEREP
RERBAREBRIZIBRE  FEHR
BZROIABRAEEEERER
ZAREEFREREAFEEFE -
EZEBRAT  AEERRERP
HERSMEEYWE  NKREARE
B AR 1T SN Z AR AR  PE R ]
IR AR IR IB B IR A B A
YREFPEGENEEREKHER
MBERAEDZ R FERI G E
RELTEX -EEZRA ARK
REENBERE  BHEKWIE
ABRE - AT ERIAERAON
i

RE=ZAZRARALT
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For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

35. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(o]

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
initial fair value of the financial guarantees given to
banks in connection with loan facilities granted to the
related companies which are controlled by Mr. Guo Jiadi
or Ms. Shum Xi Xia, the sister-in-law of Mr. Guo Jiadi,
was insignificant as the fair value of properties pledged
is higher than the financial guarantees at the date of
inception and the end of each reporting period. Also, no
provision for the guarantees contracts at the end of the
reporting period is recognised as the loss given default is
low.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
initial fair value of the financial guarantees given to
banks in connection with loan facilities granted to third
parties was insignificant as the fair value of properties
pledged is higher than the financial guarantees at the
date of inception and the end of each reporting period.
Also, no provision for the guarantees contracts at the
end of the reporting period is recognised as the loss
given default is low.
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35. MIBER®)

Kt (%)

RRAREERR AR THERR
(ABIAELERIL B EERSB
ZWRIROL AN ER ) BB SRR
EmMARITRENMBERZD
ARFEETEXR  ARCERY
EZ2RAFESRALKA SRS R
EHIRZWBRER - Mo AR
AERHBARABE - RBREHRT
SHEBEREOONEE -

RAREZRA BEFE=HE
HEVE A RITIR 2 B A R AR
ZMAFELTBEKR  BRE
HRMEZATFESXHAKRA S
R&HmERRZFBHHER - 1Ls

BREAERHBRBRIE  RiRE
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RE VBRI

For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

(@) The Group had the following balances with related (a)
parties at the end of each reporting period:

36. BELRZ REER

REBREHR  AEEBEAF N
TRE &R

Maximum amount
during the year ended

BEXAFEEZRARE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=f —T-—-4F ZB=Z= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT
Amount due from JE W B8 3 2 Bl 5K IR
related companies (B a0) % (i)
(notes (i) and (ii)) 78,262 66,322 342,209 590,509
Amount due from JE U Bt B A 7]
non-controlling FEERR IR R KB
shareholders of (B a20) R i)
subsidiaries
(notes (i) and (iii)) 236,461 257,550 236,461 362,146
314,723 323,872 578,670 952,655
Amounts due to JE 1< 38 2 B 5K OR
related companies (BT a#30) % (i)
(notes (i) and (ii)) 24,542 234,623 N/AREBR NATER
Amount due to the JEA S A AR AR R
ultimate controlling FIE (H150))
shareholder (note (i)) 99,626 99,626 N/ATEA NATEHR
Debt component of MR ESE 2
convertible bond BB 451,435 404,491 N/AREE NATEH
Derivative component of AR &5 2
convertible bond TTTAHED - 6,179 N/ATER NATEM
Promissory note EHEE 546,062 519,026 N/AREBA NATEHMA
1,121,665 1,263,945 N/AFREH N/A 18
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For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2023, all amounts are
non-trade related, interest free and repayable
on demand. As at 31 December 2022, except
for the amount due to a related company of
RMB192,000,000 and RMB31,750,000 which
was non-trade related, unsecured, charged at 9%
and 12% per annum respectively and repayable
after one year, all amounts are non-trade related,
interest free and repayable on demand. Details of
impairment assessment are set out in note 30(b).

Mr. Guo lJiadi is the controlling shareholder of the
Group and is also the director and shareholder of
these related companies.

These entities have significant influence over
several non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Group. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the balance represent prepaid proceeds that
the non-controlling shareholders deserve for
co-developing certain property projects which have
been presold but not yet fully delivered.

The Group entered into the following transactions

36. BEARRZREERE)

(a)

(b)

(%)
i3

(i)

(iii)

R-_ZE-_=F+-A=+—
A FBEREHLRIEESIE
R EREBERER R
—E-—F+-H=+—8"
BrE —MEERFIKIEA
R #192,000,0007T & AR
#£31,750,0007C & 3E & 5 18
B A 9 Rk F R R
9% K 12%5T B RBR—F1&
BEIN MBEREHARIE
ZHBE REREBEREFRE
B o R ENEFBERNNE
30(b) o

ML/ ARER 2K
BRENBZEHEERFLZ
EERBRR-

ZEERYAKEEETHES
EWBARIEEERN - R
E_=FN_E__F+=
A=+—80 &%EFER

BERBEAAREE TERE
B REHXNOMERR
A K FES P 1S 30IR ©

RERN AEERERETA]

with its related parties during the year: VIATR S :
Name of related parties Nature of transaction 2023 2022
LS A8 XEME —=E-= —T-—
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
Fujian Sandi Real Estate Development Interest expense
Co. Limited (note) 21,910 58,294
BE-ERFRMERZEBRAR (M) MEXZH
Primary Partner (note) Interest expense 89,457 80,054

Primary Partner (f47:£)

B X

Note: Mr. Guo lJiadi is the controlling shareholder of the

Group and is also the director and shareholder of
these related companies.
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For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 36. BERFR G RE&R @)
BALANCES (continued)
(c) The remuneration of directors and other members (00 MEAR EEKHEMTEEHE
of key management during the year was as BB z2BEmT
follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F —_E-—
RMB'000 RMB’000

AREFT ARKTIT

Short-term employee benefits % H R B 18 A 3,978 5,004
Post-employment benefits BERE 12 12 303 281
4,281 5,285
(d) Mr. Guo Jiadi and Ms. Shen Bizhen, the spouse of (d) ZB N 5 A K 26 0 Sk A AL B
Mr. Guo Jiadi, have provided guarantees to banks TEBEZLTEHBETEERIE
for the bank borrowings. Details of guarantees are ITIRMLIER - ERA B HNW
set out in note 23. E23 0
(e) As disclosed in note 35, the Group provided (e) WMIsE3SFIHE - M_ET ==
guarantees to the related companies amounting FE+-_HA=+—BAREE®RE
to RMB561,000,000 (2022: RMB872,800,000) in AT MEEL A IR EIER
connection with loan facilities at 31 December 4% A R #561,000,0007T (=
2023, T _F : AR¥872,800,000
JT) e
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For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

General information of subsidiaries

37. ARFAEEMB AT 2F1E

MELR-—REHR

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RIFERREARDEELEEREAE

the Company at the end of the reporting period are set

ZHBRRZFHBHINWT -

out below.
Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operations and
type of Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest held Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiary legal entity registered capital by the Company by the Company Principal activities
ihaL/
i/ Eghy frBEs/ rhAfREERRR KARFRAZE o
il kS RE#RREE FAUELS b1 2t IERR
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
Bk B B [
plivE} 022 03 00 03 A plivk} 02
C§CZE CECCF CECSE C5--F CBIzE CECCf CZECDE S5k
Fujian Sinco The PRC RB290,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property investment
BELH nE AR %290,000,0007 VESE
Fujian Jingdu Land Co, Ltd The PRC’ RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development and
. i property investment
BRRAZZERAT E AR 100,000,007 NEERRIERE
Xian Sandi The ERC’ RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
iy k] e ARH100,000,0007 NEER
Strike Again Group Ltd BV US$t 100% 100% 60% 60% 100% 100% - - Securities trading
Strike Again Group Ltd ABRYUHE £33 E5%5
Grand Intemational Development Limited  Hong Kong HK§100 - - 100% 100% - - - - Investment holding
ERERERARLA B 100%7 RERR
Guoshi Investment Group Company Limited  The ERC' RMB200,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Investment holding
IRRESEARAT i NE%200,000,0007 RERR
Fuzhou Gaojia The PRC RMB1,500,900,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development and
property investment
] e AR 1,500900,0007 NEERRIERE
Shanghai Gaojia The PRC’ RMB55,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
LagE ol NE#55,000,0007% EE
Shanghai Sandi Real Co. Estate The PRC RB196,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development and
Development Ltd ) property investment
LA ERHEREERAT e AR 196,000,007 NEEERNERE
Baoji Sandi The PRC RMB150,000,000 - - 100% 100% 100% 100% Property development and
; ) property investment
] e ARR150,000,0007 NEERRNERE
Jilin First Real Estate Development Co. The PRC’ RMB100,000,000 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Property development
Limited ("Jlin Firt") )
BMEARHERSERDALT e AR100,0000007 NEiE
(lzmas))
Yongtai Sandi Real Fstate Development ~~ The PRC” RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
(o. Ltd
KRZERHERLRRAA e NEE100,000,0007 VEL
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For year ended 31 December 2023 # % —ZF—

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

General information of subsidiaries (continued)

iR G MR AR M A

SEF_ASF—AILFE

7. A RREEMB AR ZFE

(&)
MWEAR—RER (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operations and
type of Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership interest held Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiary legal entity registered capital by the Company by the Company Principal activities
ihAL/
i/ ggns #r235/ rhAfEERRER KAAFRARE
WELT4E REaRREE e 2t 2Lef IERR
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
Bk 3 E% A%
2023 022 3 0 03 A0 2023 A2
C§IZE “ECCF CEISE C5-CF CECSE CECCF ZEIZE O CEo-
Nanping Sandi Real Fstate Development ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Property development
Co. Ltd "Nanping Sandi") )
T EENEREERYEALT iF NE50,000,00072 NEiE
i)
Wayishan Gaojia Real Fstate Development ~ The PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
(o. Ltd
RRLEERHERSERAA R AR #20,000,0007; NEER
Yongtai Gaojia Real Fstate Development ~ The PRC’ RMB82,500,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
(o. Ltd
KERERNERSERAA R AR 82,500,007 NEER
Fuzhou Sandi Banbei Property Co. Ltd The I?RC’ RB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
Bl ERtERRRAT E 100,000,007 L
Fuzhou Sandi Bannan Property Co. Ltd The ERC' RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
EN-ERRERERAT | 100,000,007 VL
Baoj Ruijacheng Real Fstate Development ~ The PRC” RMB50,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Property development
(o, L1d.
EERRIRHERRLA e ARES00000007 NEER
Nanping Sandi Yungu Real Estate The PRC” RMB50,000,000 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51% Property development
Development Co. Ltd ’
BT HEARNEREERAT e ARHE50,000,0007 VEL
Hanzhong Xu The IfRCﬂ RMB25,500,000 - - - 51% - - - 51% Property development
£ e’ NEE25,500,0007 ES

* Wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

A

Limited liability company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, results in
particulars of excessive length.

* HNEBELE-
5 ARAR

ERFINARREETRRIBRE
AREBXEHREEZARANER
Al-BEFERR RHEMHE QA
ZHBREHRFRBNITEK
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For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
General information of subsidiaries (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries operate in the PRC. The
principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised

as follows:

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

at the end of the year.

37. A RAREEMBE LR 2 FHE
(%)
M AR — RE R (@)
R|ERR  ADAREAHAEE
& 3R E K2 H A D R - &
SHBRRABH NP ELE - %
SHBARZEEEBHHMANT

PR B A R AT ERMET

B -

Principal place of

Principal activities business Number of subsidiaries
FTEEK TEXEKHE MEXREE
2023 2022
—EZ=Hf =
Property development The PRC 14 15
E a3
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For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material

non-controlling interests:

37. ARAETEMBLARAZHFE

(%)

BRERFEREZZFZENW

BARZFHE

TRANANEEEREAFIERE
BmZIFEEME RS

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and voting
Name of and principal rights held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
subsidiary place of business non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
A B L ] FERELFNECHER SEEFEREZCEN 2t FER
MEAREE EBTERY RERREE LA (B8) ER
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
“E-zf %o “EZ=f —%-- “E-zE —Z2--
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBFL ANRETT ABEFr ARETT
Nanping Sandi The PRC 49% 49% 27,408 (14,139) 122,824 95,416
mT= i
Jilin First The PRC 49% 49% (1,073) 434 71,073 72,147
ELEE i
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests 15,818 (14,122) 23,178 25,148
BIEARER 2 BRI FEANB LA
42,153 (27,827) 217,075 192,711

Summarised financial information in respect of
each of the Group’'s subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

& B A A E IR IR 5 e B B
RAMMBERBEEZHINGT - T
X B 75 E BB 2 45 5 18 A 4K 8K AT A

T
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For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 37. A RBEEMRB AR 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (%)
Nanping Sandi Bm¥r=d
2023 2022
—_E_-= —_EF_-—
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AR EF T
Current assets mENEE 1,353,332 1,874,470
Non-current assets ERBEE 10,027 10,102
Current liabilities mEAaE (1,086,803) (1,655,976)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (25,895) (33,870)
Net assets BEFE 250,661 194,726
Equity attributable to owners ZN/NEIE PPN
of the Company oy 127,837 99,310
Non-controlling interests JEERES 122,824 95,416
2023 2022
—E-=5F —_E-—
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T AR F T
Revenue Wz 504,862 9,016
Cost of properties sales ) 3 85 & R (442,876) (7,476)
Other income HablUg A 27 104
Expenses i3 (6,079) (30,499)
Profit/(loss) for the year RERERA (FHIE) 55,934 (28,855)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the KARIVER ANEL
Company wm A, (E18) 28,526 (14,716)
Profit/(loss) attributable to non-controlling FEIE IR (L
interests mA (ER) 27,408 (14,139)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEEHRF, (EE8) 55,934 (28,855)
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For year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE-—F-=F+=-H=+—HIFZF

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 37. KRR EEMB AR ZFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (%)
Nanping Sandi (continued) MAY=#(%&)
2023 2022
—_E_-= —E=-=
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥F T AR F T
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating g EE s Re
activities CrH) /mAFEE (2,502) 143,538
Net cash outflow from financing BEEE 2T
Activities HEE (7,000) (172,150)
Net cash outflow Wemd F5E (9,502) (28,612)
Jilin First EMHEA
2023 2022
—E-= —E -
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR FiT AR EF T
Current assets MEEE 221,675 234,060
Non-current assets IERBEE 16 50
Current liabilities mEaE (76,631) (86,871)
Non-current liabilities Bl A=K (12) -
Net assets BEFE 145,048 147,239
Equity attributable to owners ZN/NEIE DN
of the Company vy 73,975 75,092
Non-controlling interests FF 128 AR HE A 71,073 72,147

2023F 2 5 3
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For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 37. AATTEWE A T 215

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Jilin First (continued) EMEA(E)
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR T T
Revenue Wz 6,133 6,980
Cost of properties sales ) 3B R (4,999) (3,382)
Other income Hab A 11 18
Expenses = (3,335) (2,732)
(Loss)/profit for the year NFEE (EB) & F (2,190) 884
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of KATIEE AES
the Company (E#8) &l (1,117) 450
(Loss)/profit attributable to non-controlling R RE R R (B518)
Interests el (1,073) 434
(Loss)/profit for the year REFE (BB 5T (2,190) 884
2023 2022
—E-=5F g
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARE T
Net cash outflow from operating activities SEEEB 2B R
ik (526) (8,613)
Net cash outflow WRe M F5E (526) (8,613)
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For year ended 31 December 2023 B Z-—F-=F1+_-H=+—HIFZF

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

38. AR A ZHMBERARREMER

2023 2022
—g=-= —E2-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR F T
Non-current assets RBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries B AR Z3EE™M
’E 2,939,562 2,945,653
Property, plant and equipment e 55 69
2,939,617 2,945,722
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments H fth Uk 508 R TR AT
I8 244 237
Amount due from a related company U —HEEEARZ
A 1,789 1,740
Bank balances and cash RITEBERS 48 52
2,081 2,029
Current liabilities REEE
Debt component of convertible bond AR ESFNER
i) 451,435 -
Promissory note A B 546,062 -
Other payables and accruals H{th J& < K18 & FE 5T
EH 219,283 181,031
1,216,780 181,031
Net current liabilities REEEFE (1,214,699) (179,002)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBASE 1,724,918 2,766,720
Capital and reserves BEXR#EE
Share capital (note 24) R A (B a2 24) 42,890 42,890
Reserves & 1,682,028 1,792,457
Total equity R 1,724,918 1,835,347
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Debt component of convertible bond AR ESZE®
05 - 404,491
Derivative component of convertible bond AR ESZ
PTETAH D - 7,856
Promissory note 7R CH ZE - 519,026
- 931,373
1,724,918 2,766,720

RE=ZAZRARALT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REUBHERRME

For year ended 31 December 2023 #BZ-F-=#1+_-H=+—HIFEF

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. AR FIZHMBMRRRFEER

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves AATmE2ES
Share-based
Share compensation  Translation Other  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
HRHAEE
REE  <REES BEfE Rttt R HE @it

AMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARRTE  AGRTT  AEETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ

(note j) (note i)
(Wit (W)
At 1 January 2022 RZE-F-F-8 833,698 12,036 (35,382) 1,224,806 (182,210) 1,852,948
Loss and other comprehensive  FEEBER
income for the year EzAka - - - - (57,691) (57,691)
Lapse of share options BREXN - (2,800) - - - (2,800)
At 31 December 2022 R-E--E+-R
=t+-H 833,698 9,236 (35,382) 1,224,806 (239,901) 1,792,457
Loss and other comprehensive  FEEBER
income for the year Ef2ENE - - (26,068) - (84,361) (110,429)
At 31 December 2023 R-EZZE
TZF=1t-H 833,698 9,236 (61,450) 1,224,806 (324,262) 1,682,028
Note: HeE -

The other reserve, which is the contributed surplus account of
the Company, represents the difference arising from the share
premium reduction which was being effective and approved by
the Bermuda Registrar of Companies on 11 May 2016. Under
the share premium reduction, entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company as at 29
February 2016 in the sum of RMB3,049,440,000 be reduced,
with part of the credit arising therefrom being applied to
offset the accumulated losses of the Company in the sum of
RMB1,824,634,000 in full and the remaining balance of the
credit in the sum of RMB1,224,806,000 being credited to the
other reserve of the Company.

Details of the share premium reduction are set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 15 April 2016.

The share premium reduction was approved at the Company's
special general meeting held on 10 May 2016.
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HEE (BARRZEHABHIKR) BR
MEBERIVELENEZE R-2T—K~F
FA+—BAKREREQARTMERERL
A - RBEIRBR G RE  BIRAR
AR EEERER_T—A"F_A=-+nN
Az 23 REE A R®3,049,440,000
T EREEZEERERS AR
FHEBEARAZEFERARYE
1,824,634,0007T ' #2 NHERFIBBARY
1,224,806,000705F AA A &) E A G & o

HIRBR D EEZFBEHRAARBERR
TE-RFEATHERZERK -

HOBBR G ERARRR T —RFH
ATRETHRRENAS LELLE -
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